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Mutual D RUST
oan Numb (792726861

THIS DEED OF TRUST 1s batween
LEO F. KRAMER AND AUDREY E KRAMER

whose address t& m
1740 AUTUMN GLEN ST FERNL 89408-7204

{"Grantor™), CALIFORNIA EEEGNVEYANCE/CDMW‘L a CALIFORNIA

corporation, the address of which 1s
9200 OAKDALE SENU E'IDH CA 91311

{("Trusies™}); and
WASHINGTON MUTUAL BANK, A FE
EXISTING UNDER THE LAWS OF TH

ION, WHICH IS ORGANIZED AND
ATES OF AMERICA AND WHOSE ADDRESS
ENDERSON, NV 83014 (*BENEFICIARY")

LYON County, Nevada,

COMODATION ONLY THIS INSTRUMENT FILED FOR RECORD
BY TICOR TITLE COMPANY IS AN ACCOMMODATION
CRLY [T HAS NOT BEEN EXAMINED AS TO ITS EXECUTION

) OR AS TO TS EFFECTS UPQN TITLE

Tax umber: SEE EXHIBIT "A’ together with all
app! ces, insurance proceeds, and condemnation proceeds related to t; alt incoms, rents
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and profits from i, all plumbing, lighting, awr condittoning and heating apparatus and equ
and alt fencing, bhinds, drapes, floor coverngs, buit-in appliances and other fixtures at
installed on or In or used in connection with such real property

t,

Al of the property described above will be called the "Property™ K any of the
personal property, this Deed of Trust 18 also a Securty Agreement which gran {Bere

apphcable law As used herein “State” shall refer to the state of Nevada

2 Obhgaton Secured This Daed of Trust 18 given t:ﬁg«n A Bach promise
of Grantor contamed herein and n a WaMu Mo Plus{TM) _~ "Affeement and
Disclostire with Beneficiary with a maximum credet bt of [ [ $176,000:00

Agreamant”), including any extensions, renewals or modifigat repaymaent of alf
sums borrowed by Grantor under the Credit Agreement, wi i the date of each
advance until pad at the rates provided therein The Credit A gvides for varable and
fixed rates of mterest Under the Credit Agr nt, the G ay borrow, repay and

limit stated above and all such advances

re-borrow from time to time, up to the maximum
shall be secured by the len of this Deed of Trust
certam fees and charges payable by Grantor under
of Beneficiary as provided in Section 9 of this
by Beneficiary to protect the Property or st in the Property, includmng
advances made pursuant to Section Q ow ment provides that uniess sooner
repad, the Debt s due and payable infull thi yeArk from the date of thus Deed of Trust
{the "Maturity Date®) All amounts due find
called the "Debt”

ed of Trust also secures payment of
Agreement, certain fees and costs
repayment of money advanced

Property, which 18 unencumbered except by
abgrd not nconsistent with the intended use aof the
: déed of trust gwven in good farth and for value, the

writing to Beneficiary, and

and will not dunng the term of this Deed of Trust be

srty 1In goad repair and not to remove, alter or demolish any of the
Wwithout first obtainng Benehciary’s wntten consent,

psentatives of Beneficiary to nspect the Property at any reasonable
laws, ordinances, regulations, ¢ovenants, conditions and restrictions

time all lawful taxes and assessments on the Property,

m on time all terms, covenants and conditons of any prior mortgage or

ng the Property or any part of it and pay all amounts due and owing
a tmely manner,

{ see to it that this Deed of Trust remans a valid hen on the Property supenor to

xcept those described m Section 3(a) and to keep the Property free of all encumbrances

Ay impair Beneficiary’s secunty |t is agreed that if anyone asserts the pnonity of any

07/02/07) w8 4 _ Page 2 of 7
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filed in any action, the assertion alone shall be deemed to impair the Lien of thus Dead of

purposes of this Section 4{e).
it To keep the improvements on the Property msured by a company satfsfs

Benefictary aganst fire and extended coverage perids and aganst such othsr nsks 43 Bene

to deliver evidence of such insurance coverage to Beneficiary Beneficiary shall be'na
loss payes on all such policies pursuant to a standard lender’'s loss payable clause
collacted under any insurance policy may be applisd upon any indebtednsss

the same manner as payments under the Note or, at Beneficiary’s sgle
Grantor. In the event of foreclosure or sale of the Property purgis
sale, all nghts of the Grantor in Insurance policies then in g
the Shenff's or Trustee's sale,

from tme to time to perfect, protect and contmue Beneficy gst in the Property
Grantor irevocably appoints Beneficiary as Grantor's attornd bcite, file and record
any financing statements or similar documents i Grantor's nés i to axecute all documents
necessary to transfer title if there 18 a default, and

h} To adwvise Benehciary immediately iting of any change in Grantor's name,
address or employment,

b Sale, Transfer or Further Encumbrance of P n s parsonal to Grantor and the
entire Debt shall become immediately due a yon gale or other transfar of the
Property of any interest therein by Ggantos fe or otherwise including, without
bmit, any further encumbrance of the

€ Curing of Detaufts If Grantor :
includng all the terms of any pr:or AOFighge of trust, Beneficlary may take any action
required to comply with any such g waiving any other right or remedy 1t may
have for Grantor's falurg™t : Repaymient to Beneficiary of all the money spent by
Beneficiary on behalf o pihier shall ba _secuisd by this Deed of Trust, at Beneficianes option,
advance may be made
not relieve Banef: .
spent shall bear In : :
be repayable by Grapntw
Baneficiary 18 not obfigated

ith any of the covenants in Section 4,

o réement to pay amounts due hereunder, such shal
i fallure to fulfill the covenants in Section 4, The amount
qnit-time to tme applicable under the Credit Agreement and

though Beneficiary may take action under this paragraph,

afce under this Deed of Trust 1s essential i Grantor does not pay
or other amount due hereunder on time Or any other event occurs
sclare the unpaid balance of the Debt due and payable in full under
Grantor fails to comply with any other term, condition, obligation or

ortgage, trust indenture or security agreemant or gther instrument having
g od of Trust or if any representation of Grantor herein was false or misleading,
ind any other money whose repayment 18 secured by tlus Dead of Trust shall

107/02/107) w8 4 Page 3 of 7
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then or thereafter advise Trustee of the default and of Beneficiary’s election to have the Prope
sold pursuant to Trustea’'s power of sale in accordance wrth applicable law and deliver to“F#
any documentation as may be requred by law After Trustee or Beneficiary gives a

and the time required by applicable law, Trustee shall sell the Property, either in/wi

postpone any such sale by prowniding such notice as may be required by
by law, any person, including the Grantor, Beneficiary or Trustee, may
sale Trustee shall apply the proceeds of the sale as follows. .

shall convey to the purchaser the interest in the Property which

convey at the tme of execution of this Deeghof Trust and Iy
the facts showing that the sale was
nd of this Deed of Trust This recital

conducted in compliance with all the requirements o
shail be pnma facie evidence of such comphance and ¢

p tonfarred by this Deed of Trust s
std. of Trust to be judicially foreclosed or
siigble In eqinty OF at law In connection
ty. Benefictary shall further be entitled

gorm Commercial Code as then in effect in

not an exclusive remedy. Beneficiary
sue on the Credit Agreement or take
with any portion of the Froperty which
to exercise the nghts of a secured party
the state of Nevada,
{d} By accepting payme ed by this Deed of Trust after its due date,
; ompt payment when due of all other sums so

secured or to declare defa or-fa , and
{e} If Grantdr ests ons, Grantor shall have tha night to remnstate the
Debt in accordanc within thirty-five (36} days after a notice of default and

Property i1s located\

postage prepad to/C thirty-fiva (35) day penmod commences on the first day

following the day the notice of default and election to sell 1s maied
8 Cond g In the event any portion of the Property 1s taken or
damaged n 2 an proceeding, the entire amount of the award or such portion as

SR satisfy the obligation secured by this Deed of Trust, shall be pad to
Benefncyry #ad/ 1o the obligation in the same manner as paymems under the Credit

ees}iJCosts Grantor shall pay Benefictary’s and Trustee's reasonable cost of
rds. other reasonable expenses as allowed by law and reasonable attormey’s fees,
. r other proceeding to foreclose thes Desd of Trust, i any lawsuit or proceeding

h Beneficiary or Trustee prosecutes or defends to protect the hen of this Deed of Trust, in
g of an action to enjoin foreclosure and, In any other action taken by Beneficiary to

(07/02/07) wB 4 Page 4 of 7
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collect the Debt, including without knutation any disposstion of the Property under the State
Uniform Commercial Code; and, any action taken in hankruptey proceedings as well
appellate proceedings

10 Reconveyance Trustee shall reconvey the Property to the person entitigg
wntten request of Benefiiary or following satisfachon of the obligations secu

11 Trustes; Successor Trustee Beneficiary may, unless prohi
successor Trustee from time to tune m the manner providad by law—The

Grantor, Trustes or Beneficiary shall be a party unless suc ing s brought by
the Trustee ‘

12, Savings Clsuse If a law, which apphes to this Deed He Credit Agreement
and which setes maximum loan charges, s finally preted by a ving junsdiction so that
lected 1n connection with thus Deed of
Trust or the Credit Agreement exceed the permitted | { any such loan charge shall be

arge permitted kmit, and (n} any sums
will be refunded o Grantor
ipal owed or by making a direct
Be treated as a partial prepayment

already collected from Grantor which exteeaded
Beneficiary may choose to make this refund by,
payment If a refund reduces the prm&;}al,

13 Miscellaneous Ttus Deed of fus shi
legatees, administrators, executors, § 230
*Benehcary” shall mean the holder gnd

Trust, whether or not that person
of Trust refermng to one (1) person

pgsigns of the parties heretoc The term
Credit Agreement secured by this Deed of
§ Benvfictary herein The words used i this Deed
to refer to more than one (1} person f two (2)
st o betoime responsible for doing the things this Dsed of
Trust requies  This Tead of all-he” governed by and construed in accordance with

Foderal law and, to g ‘:' w does not apply, the laws of the state of Nevada [f
any provisron of -Dipos § daterminsd to be invahd under law, the remaining
provisions of this Deed g gt.ahall nonetheless remain in full force and effect

14 Beneficiary Surslar Statements  Beneficidary may collect a fee not to axcead the
maximum am d ™y Taw for furrwshing the statement as provided by Nev Rev. Stat

Ch 107 310,

re nders are exscuted by Grantor and recorded together wath thiz
venants and agreements of each such nder shail be mcorporated snto
and 8 suppiernent the covenants and agreemants of this Secunty Instrument as o

the of this Secunty Instrument. [Check applicable boxles)}
C irwum Rider [ other.
{epacify}
ed Unit Development Rider
07/02/07) wB 4 Page 5 of 7
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By signing below, Grantor accepts and agrees to the provisions of this Deed of Trust, and of i
any nder{s) exacuted by Grantor concurrently tharewrth

DATEE;at n’-‘ﬁ_‘é&;_( , H/ @ this qhdavof Aﬁef (

Lo, Jrmn”

'LEO F KRAMER

AUDREY £ ME .

JA07/02/07) w8 4 Page 6 of 7
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STATE OF _Calfornia

COUNTY OF _San Francisco

Onééﬁ_hL___ before me, 1‘ A A a0n zfé’A
{Name of Notary Public) ‘)

~
personally appeared = (&3 {LQ.O & leran \

(or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory-eviance)\to-he the pesso s) whose
na SFB@ubsctlbedtomewmnmstmmmtandac owledged 10 e that heyshageysexecuted the
same Tn hisyfier/their authorzed capaciti{jes),and that by Insthe &s)on the tetrument the
persefi{s)? or the entity upon behalf of which the persefi{s)nctet

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

L, B A |

(Signature of Notary Public)
\ (Thes area for notarial seal)

(notary)(07-02)

_ (sa9).
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STATE OF NEVADA }
) 58

county oF _Sen Esan VAW )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on C{ [ [/ / d g d\gv
n

LEO F KRAMER

"AUDREY € KRAMER e N <dhd
NN
[ N

o~ N~/ and

4

[/ AT and
{ | N
My commissian expires / ch
LY L]

WITNESS my hand and official seal \ .

Notary Public in and for the State of Navada

~/
RE T FOR RECONVEYANCE
otr To be uged onty when Grantor's
ind % d Credit Agreement cancelled
TO TRUSTEE N
$Md of Trust, and the tegel owner and helder of the

The undorsignsd 15, Trudtde
WaMu Mortgage Plias{TM Apteement secured thereby Sad Deed of Trust is hereby
df recohveyancs and you are requested, upon payment of all sums owing to

surrandered to you 1
you, to reconva i varraoty, to the personis) entitied theveto, the right, title and interest

now held by UC'GM\
DATE

N
WASHINGTON MUTUAL BANK
By
Its
{(07/02/07) w8 4 ' Page 7 of 7
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STATE OF _Cahfornig

COUNTY OF _San Fraﬂsg '
oy 2o before me, MCH‘LR Wopai ¢/ /N
(Name of Notary Public) )

personally appeared /4 \Kﬂfe.‘/ E MQN/ + LQD F. @&\/
. 7 %

perscnally-knawi-to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory-e (s) whose
name(s) s/ stibscribed to the within mstryment and a edglog that ecuted the
same i tisfherftfieir authorzed ca and that by histheighe

persay{$}p or the entity upon behalf of which the perso (5T pctes

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

‘O//‘h‘—% L

{Signature of Notary Public)

{nolary(07-02)

4,0l
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* GUARANTEE NO

EXHIBIT "A"

LT 62, SD UPLAND RANCH ESTATES UNIT NO 7, ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF, FILE
DOCUMENT NOQ 3156377, ON MARCH 9, 2004, COUNTY OF LYON, STATE OF NEVADA

APN 022-052-02

(

05/01/2008
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{|ACE C. VAN PATTEN, ESQ.

Nevade Bar No. 11731

TIFFANY & BOSCO, P.A.,

10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Ste, 220
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135

(702) 258-8200

Attorney for Defendant,

National Default Servicing Corporation

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

LEO KRAMER, - Case No.: 18-CV-00663
AUDREY KRAMER, .

Dept. No.: I

Plaintiffs,

DEFENDANT, NATIONAL DEFAULT
Vs, SERVICING CORPORATION'S

RESPONSES TO PLAINTIFFS®
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS SET
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MC ONE

DERMOTT, WEDGWOOD INC,,
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND
2016 LLC, and DOES 1 THROUGH 50
INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

PROPOUNDING PARTY: Plaintiffs, LEO KRAMER and AUDREY KRAMER

SET NUMBER: ONE

(“Plaintiffs”}, First Set of Requests for Admissions as follows:
PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Page | of 23

RESPONDING PARTY: Defendant, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION

Defendant, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION (“NDSC” or
“Responding Party”), responds to Plaintiffs, LEO KRAMER and AUDREY KRAMER

It should be noted that this Responding Party has not fully completed its investigation of
the facts relating to this case, has not completed discovery and has not completed its preparation

Qo)
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for trial.

All of the responses contained herein are based only upon such information and
documents as are presently available and specifically known to this Responding Party and
disclose only those contentions which presently occur to this Responding Party.

It is anticipated that further discovery, independent investigation and legal research and
analysis will supply additional facts and add meaning to known facts, as well as establish entirely
new conclusions and legal contentions, all of which may lead to substantial additions fo, changes
in and variations from the contentions herein set forth.

The following responses are given without prejudice to Responding Party’s right to
produce evidence of any subsequently discovered fact or facts which this Responding Party may
later obtain or recall. Responding Party accordingly reserves the right to change any and atl
answers herein as additional facts are ascertained, analyses are made, legal research is completed
and contentions are made, The responses contained hercin are made in a good faith effort to
supply as much actual information and as much specification of legal contentions as are presently
known, but should in no way be to the prejudice of this Responding Party in relation to further
discovery, research or analysis.

GENERAL OBJECTIONS

1. Responding Party objects to cach and every request to the extent that each and
every Request seeks ‘infonnation which does not refer or relate to the transactions, events, or
occurrences at issue in this lawsuit. Such discovery is irrelevant, and unduly burdensome and
harassing.

2. Responding Party objects to each and every request to the extent that each and
every Request is overbroad.

3. Responding Party objects to ¢ach and every Request to the extent that each and
every Request is vague, ambiguous or unintelligible.

4, Responding Party objects to each and every Request to the extent that each and
every Request seeks information protected by the attorney-client privilege or attorney work-
product doctrine. '

Page2 of23
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5. Responding Party objects to each and every Request to the extent that each and
every Request seeks information which is privileged pursuant to constitutional provisions, statute,
regulation, rule, case law or any other legal authority.

6. Responding Party objects to the “Definitions and Instructions” contained within
the Defendant’s First Set of Interrogatories, which are, respectively, (a) overbroad and do not
comply with the requirements imposed upon 2 Responding Party pursuant to NRCP 36 and NRCP
26(b)(2), and (b) are vague and ambiguous as specifically illustrated in the Answers below.,

Each and every Response set forth below is answered subject to the specific limitations
and objections set forth herein to avoid the unnecessary duplication and repetition of restating
them in each individual Answer.

REQUESTS FOR ADMISSIONS
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 1:

Admit that Washington Mutual Bank ("WAMU") ceased to exist and became 2 defunct
banking association when it was deemed insolvent and seized by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) on or about September 25, 2008.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 1:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request seeks information
beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)i). This request is not
proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the parties’
resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or
expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks
an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Further, Plaintiffs’ arc requesting that NDSC admit to information to which
it has no access and no personal knowledge. Moreover, the scope of the instant litigation is only
whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS 107, the issues relating to
the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been adjudicated as a

Page 3 of 23
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result of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada as case
number 3:18-cv-00001.

Withont waiving said objection, NDSC states that the FDIC website

ttps:/fwww.fdic.gov/bank/individual/failed/wamu htm) indicates that “On September 25,
2008, the banking operations of Washington Mutual, Inc. — Washington Mutual Bank, Henderson,
NV and Washingtor Mutual Bank, FSB, Park City, UT (Washington Mutual Bank) were sold in
a transaction facilitated by the Office of the Thrift Supervision and the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation.” ' |
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO., 2:

AMt that Washington Mutual Bank transformed its' loans into securities through a
process known as securitization and sold the loans to qualifying special purpose entities ("QSPE")
prior to JPMorgan Chase Bank's purported acquisition of Washington Mutual Bank’s assets on
September 25, 2008.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO, 2:

Objection. This request gwcs information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). This request is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the
importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties® relative
access to relevant information, the parties’ resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving
the issues, and whether the burden or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely |-
benefit. Additionally, this request seeks an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. Moreover, the scope of the instant
litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS 107, the
issues relating to the Plaintiffs” challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been
adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.8, District Court for the District of
Nevada a3 case number 3:18-¢cv-00001, Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access and no personal knowledge.

Because NDSC has no personal knowledge, it can acither admit nor deny at this time.

Page4 of23
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REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 3:

Admit that WASHINGTON MUTUAL BANK transformed loans into securities through
a process known as securitization and did not sell or assign Plaintiffs' line of credit for
$176,000.00 to JPMorgan Chase Bank.,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NG. 3:

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26{b)1). This request is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the
importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative
access to relevant information, the parties® resources, the importance of the discovery i resolving
the issues, and whether the burden or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely
benefit. Additionally, this request seeks an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably
caleulated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence. This request also comtains multiple
subparts. Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to information to which it has no
access and no personal knowledge. Moreover, the scope of the instant litigation is only whether
the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS 107, the issues relating to the
Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been adjudicated as a result
of the federal court litigation in the U.S, District Court for the District of Nevada as case number
3:18-cv-00001.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO, 4:

Admit that JPMorgan Chase Batk has affirmed under oath in various litigations, which
have been widely publicized through the courts and is now public record, that its employees have
forged and fabricated necessary documents such as, assignments, note endorsements, allonges
end affidavits as needed for litigations pertaining to real property.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 4:

Objection. This request is argumentative. This request seeks information beyond the
scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26{b)(1). This request is not proportional to the
needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in

Puge S 0f23
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controversy, the parties” relative access to relevant information, the parties’ resources, the
importance of the discovery in tesolving the issues, and whether the burden or expense of the
proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks an admission
which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. The issues rélating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have
already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the
District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC
admit to information to which it has no access and ro personal knowledge

Because NDSC has no personal knowledge, it can neither admit nor deny.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. §:

Admit that on April 4, 2018, (10) ten years after the seizure of Washington Mutual Bank
by the FDIC, JPMorgan Chase Bank's employee(s) fabricated and forged en assignment of Deed
of Trust for Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's real property to JPMorgan Chase Bank, which
Chase Bank did then knowingty and fraudulently record the forged assignment on April 10, 2018,
in the County of Lyon in Fernley, NV.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 5:

Objection. This request is argumentative. This request seeks information beyond the
scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). This request is not proportional to the
needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in
controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the parties’ resources, the
importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or expense of the
proposed discovery outweighs its‘likely benefit. This request contains multiple subparts which
prevent NDSC fiom addressing the whole, Addftionally, this request seeks an admission which
is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, The
issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been
adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the UJ.S. District Court for the District of

Nevada as cese number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access and no personal knowledge,

Page § of 23
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Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 6:

Admit that there is no valid legal assignment of Mortgage Loan or Line of Credit of Leo
Kramer and Audrey Kramer's Deed of Trust from Washington Mutual Bank to JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 6:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request seeks information
beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). This request is not
proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties” relative access to relevant information, the parties’
resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or
expens:e of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benofit. Additionally, this request seeks
an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. The issues relafing to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are
requesting that NDSC admit to information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 7:

Admit that it was legally impossible for Washington Mutual Bank to record Assignment
of the Deed of Trust of Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's real property to JPMorgan Chase Bank
on April 10, 2018,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 7:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request seeks information
beyond the séope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)}(1). This request is not
proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties® relative access to relovant information, the parties’

resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or
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expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks
an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. The issues relating to the Plaintiffs challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001, Further, Plaintiffs are
requesting that NDSC admit to information to which it has no access or persona! knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 8;

Admit that Washington Mutual Bank could not and did not grant, assign, and transfer Leo
Kramer and Audrey Kramer's Deed of Trust to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. on April 10, 2018,
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. §:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request secks information
beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)}(1). This request is not
proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties® relative access to relevant information, the parties’
resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issucs, and whether the burden or
expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks
an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to Iead.to the discovery of
admissible evidence. The issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the wndetlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. .Furﬁler, Plaintiffs are
requesting that NDSC adwmit to information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 9:

Admit that the chain of title of Washington Mutual Bank to JPMorgan Chase Bank
concerning Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's real property, which is the subject of this litigation,
is crowded and cannot be verified,

L
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 9:

* Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion, This request is vague and the terms
“crowded” and “verified” are ambiguous undefined terms, This request seeks information beyond
the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)1), This request is not proportional to
the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount
in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the parties’ resources, the
importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or expense of the
proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks an admission
which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence. The issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have
already been adjudicated as aresult of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the
District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-0000].

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 10;

Admit that due to the seizure of Washington Mutual Bank by the FDIC on or about
September 25, 2008, Washington Mutual Bank could not and did not perform all terms,
covenants, and conditions required of Washington Mutual Bank under the $176,000.00 Revolving
Line of 'Credit Agreement’ WAMU entered into with Plaintiffs on April 4, 2008, which is the
subject of this litigation.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 10:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion, This request secks information
beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). This request is not
proportional fo the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties” relative access to relevant information, the parties®
resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or
expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request seeks
an admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. The issues relating to the Plaintiffs® challenge of the underlying loan
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documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevads as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are
requesting that NDSC admit to information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 11:

Admit that the Deed of Trust that was recorded on April 10, 2018 that purported to grant,
assign or transfer Plaintiffs' Deed of Trust to JPMorgan Chase Bank form the basis of which
National Default Servicing Corparation recorded a notice of default on October 6, 2017, against
Plaintiffs' real property.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 11;

Cbjection. This request secks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). The issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the foderal court litigation in the U.S,
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001.

Without waiving said objections, NDSC denies that the Deed of Trust was recorded on
April 10, 2018 as it was an Assignment of Deed of Trust which was recorded on April 10, 2018,
NDSC further states that it does not record a notice of default against a property based on an
gssignment alone. NDSC records & notice of default due to a default under the terms of the Deed
of Trust,

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 12:

Admit that there was no valid Assignment of Deed of Trust or valid substitution of Trustee
when National Default Servicing Corporation recorded the Netice of Default pertaining to Leo
Kramer and Audrey Kramer’s real property, that is the subject of this litigation.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 12:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request seeks information beyond
the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). The issunes relating to the Plaintiffs’
challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been adjudicated as & result of the |
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federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-
cv-00001.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC denies.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 13:

Admit that "YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, were aware of the fact that
JPMorgan Chase Bank sent monthly statements to Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's,
home/mailing address of: 121 Cardinal Way, Hercules, CA 94547.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 13:

Objection. This request is overly broad and unduly burdensome. Additionally, this
request is vague, ambiguous and seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to information to
which it has no access to or personal knowledge of.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 14:

Admit that YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, who was unlawfully and
fraudulently appointed as trustee by JPMorgan Chase Bank, knew through JPMergan Chase Bank
that Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's home}conect mailing address was: 121 Cardinal
Way, Hercules, CA 94547.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 14:

Objection. This request is argumentative and calls for 2 legal conclusion. This objection
is overly broad as there is no temporal limitation on the request.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states that it was not made aware of the 121
Cardinal Way, Hercules, CA 94547 address until after the recording of the Notice of Default had
occurred.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 15:

Admit that YOU, National Default Serving Corporation, did fail to give proper notice of
Notice of Default 1o Plaintiffs’ [in accordance of NRS § 107.090 (3)b)] by failing to mail notice
of Notice of Default to Plaintiffs' home/mailing address of: 121 Cardinal Way, Hercules, CA
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94547, which was in fact the same address that was on file with JPMorgan Chase Bank at the
time YOU recordd the Notice of Defaunlt against Plaintiff' property, and is depicted on
JPMorgan Chase Bank's monthly statements that were sent Plaintiffs.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 15:

Objection. This request is argumentative and calls for a legal conclusion. This request is
vague and ambiguous as to the phrase “notice of Notice of Default” as this phrase could include
ather documents provided to the Plaintiffs which indicated the Notice of Defanlt had been filed.
It is also ambiguous as to the phrase “home/mailing address” which is an undefined term which
elso would call for a legal conclusion. Moreover, this request has multiple subparts and requires
information for which NDSC does not have access to or personal knowledge of relating to what
was in JPMorgan Chase Bank’s files.

Without waiving said objections, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 16:

Admit YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, did not ever mail any notice of
Notice of Default to Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer's home/mailing address of: 121
Cardinal Way, Hercules, CA 94547,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 16:

Objection. This request is vague and ambignous as to the phrase “notice of Notice of
Default” as this phrase could include other documents provided to the Plaintiffs which indicated
the Notice of Default had been filed, It is also ambiguous as to the phrase “home/mailing address™
which is an undefined term which also would cail for a legal conclusion.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states please see Defendant, National Default
Semcmg Corporation’s Initial Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses. NDSC mailed the notice
of default as required by NRS to 1740 Autumn Gien Street, Fernley, Nevada 89408 and 1229
Ballena Boulevard, Alameda, California 94501,

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 17:

Admit that YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, did never provide notice of

Notice Of Default by sending Notice of Default via certified mail, retum receipt requested, in
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accordance with NRS §107.808, to Plaintiffs' then curent address of: 121 Cardinal Way,
Hercules, CA 94547,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 17:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. Moreover, it assumes facts not in
evidence regarding the purported “current address.”

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states that NRS §107.808 is not a statute that
provides guidelines to which NDSC would have to abide or otherwise comply with.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 18:

Admit that YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, did not give proper notice of
Notice of Default to Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Avdrey Kramer, in accordance with Nevada State
Foreclosure Laws NRS § 107.090 (3Xb), prior to the unlawful foreclosure sale of Plaintiffs’ real
property. |
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 18:

Objection. This request calls for & legal conclusion.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied. Please see Defendant, National
Default Servicing Corporation’s Initial Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses,

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 19:

Admit that YOU, National Default Smncmg Corporation, have never obtain signatures
from either Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer, or Audrey Kramer, to assert that Plaintiffs were ever served
with proper notice of Notice of Default in accordance with NRS §107.090(3)(b).

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 19:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion and contains multiple subparis. This
request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(b)(1).
Additionally, this request seeks an admission which is neither relevant nor réasonably calculated
to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence ags NRS 107.090(3)(b) does not require a signafure
for compliance therewith. '

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied,

144
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REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 20:

Admit that YOU, counse! for National Default Corporation, argued at a 'recorded" hearing
on May 1, 2019, in the Third Judicial District Court, that National Default Servicing Corporation
was not required or obligated to provide Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, with proper
notice of Notice of Default, asserting the basis for your argument that “the property was not owner
occupied”,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO., 20:

Objection. The request is vague and ambiguous as it utilizes a defined work “YOU” but
then seeks to direct the request toward NDSC’s counsel. This request also seeks information
equally available to the Plaintiffs through the Court record. Moreover, argument presented &
hearing on a Motion to Dismiss is neither evidence nor testimony. As such, this request secks an
admission which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence,

Without waiving said objections, NDSC states denied as the request misstates and
mischaracterizes the argument presented.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 21:

Admit that due to the fact that Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, were not
provided with proper notice of Notice of Default in accordance with NRS §107.090(3)Xb) that the
unlawful foreclosure sale of Plaintiffs' propesty must be rendered VOID in accordance with NRS
§107.080(5)(2).

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 21:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evidence.

‘Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 22:

Admit that the Court in the instant case found that because NATIONAL DEFAULT
SERVICING CORPORATION faited to comply with the mandatory State of Nevada foreclosure
laws that the Notice of Default and Foreclosure Sale of Plaintiffs' property was deemed
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UNLAWFUL; and thexefore, Breckenridge could not be considered a bona fide encumbrancer of
Plaintiffs’ real property.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 22:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evideace, |

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 23;

Admit that Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, ere entitled to Damages of $5,000
or treble the amount of actual damages, whichever is- greater in accordance with NRS
§107.080(8)(a).

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 23;

Objection. This request calls for  legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evidence.

Without waiving said cbjection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 24;

Admit that Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, in addition to being entitled to
damages under NRS § 107.080 (8)( a), are also entitled to the remedy provided in subsection 5 in
accordance of NRS §107.080 (5)(a).

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 24:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evidence.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 25:

Admit that BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC did not tender any
negotiable instrument to YOU for the purchase of the subject property.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 25:

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1). Additionally, this reguest seeks an admission which is neither relevant
nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of &imissible evidence. How
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BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC paid the sales price at the sale has no bearing
on whether the sale was conducted pursuant to NRS 107,

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states that BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY
FUND 2016 LLC tendered to NDSC a check for the amount owed as a result of the foreclosure
sale.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 26:

Admit that BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC is entitled to the refund of
any money paid to YOU, National Defanlt Servicing Corporation, for the subject property.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 26: _

Objcction. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evidence,

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO, 27:

Admit that BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC is entitled to refund of any
money paid to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A for the subject property.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 27:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request assumes facts not in
evi&mce.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 28:

Admit that Plaintiffs are entitled to quict title on the subject property.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 28:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 29:

Admit that on 12/05/2013, there was no existence of a duly appointed assignment of deed
of trust from Washington Mutual Bank to JPMorgan Chase Bank when Chase then fraudulently
substituted National Default Scrvicing Corporation as Trustee,
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RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 29:

Objection. This request is argumentative and calls for a legal conclusion. This request
seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set forth in NRCP 26(!:)(1) as the
issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan documents have already been
adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District of
Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access to or personal knowledge of.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC states denied.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 30:

Admit that when YOU, National Default Servicing Corporation, recorded the Natice of
Default on Plaintiffs' real property located at: 1740 Autumn Glen Street, Fernley, Nevada 89408,

that JP'Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. had not acquire assignment of Deed of Trust from Washington
Mutuzl Bank.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 30;

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1) as the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. |

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC states denied.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 31:

Admit that National Default Servicing Corporation in fact was not and could not be a duly
appointed trustee because JPMorgan Chase Bank did not have assignment of Deed of Trust of
Plaintiffs' property.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 31:

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)X1) as the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S,
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District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. This request also calls
for a legal conclusion.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denicd.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 32:

Admit that JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association is not 'Attomey In fact’ for the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation {(FDIC).

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 32:

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery sct
forth in NRCP 26fb)(l) as the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. This request is not
proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the parties®
resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden or
expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Additionally, this request secks
an admission which ig neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of
admissible evidence. Further, Plaintiffs’ are requesting that NDSC admit to information to which
it has no access to or personal knowledge of. This request is also objected to on the basis that it
calis for a legal conclusion. .

Because NDSC has no personal knowledge, it can neither admit nor deny at this time,
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 33: |

Admit that the Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer never had a loan or Mortgage
Loan with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association,

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 33:

Objection. This request seeks information beyond the scope and limits of discovery set
forth in NRCP 26(b)(1} as the issues relating to the Plaintiffs> challenge of the underlying loan
documents have already been adjudicated as a result of tﬁe federal court litigation in the U.S,
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District Court for the District of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. This request also calls
for a legal conclusions.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 34:

Admit that Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer did not default on the $176,000.00 revolving
line of credit.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 34:

NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO, 3S:

Admit that National Default Servicing Corporation did not provide Leo Kramer and
Audrey Kramer with notice of how much was owed, if any, on the $176,000.00 revolving line of
credit before recording the Notice of Default.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NGO, 35:

INDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO., 36:

Admit that JPMorgan Chase Bank did not acquire Washington Mutual Bank’s loans or
lines of credit via the *Purchase & Assumption Agreement” with the FDIC.,
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 36:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request is unduly burdensome
and is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake
in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the
parties® resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden
or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Moreover, the scope of the
instant litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS
107, the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the undertying loan documents have already
been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District
of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

t
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Without waiving said objection, upen information and belief NDSC states denied.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS N0, 37:

Admit that JPMorgan Chase Bank is not owner of Washington Mutual Bank's mortgage
loans or line of credit loans via the "Purchase & Assurnption Agreement® with the FDIC because
all of Washington Mutual Bank's loans were sccuritized and sold off prior to the seizure by the
FDIC on September 25, 2008.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 37:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request is unduly burdensome
and is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake
in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the
parties® resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden
or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Moreover, the scope of the
instant litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS
107, the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ challenge of the underdying loan documents have aiready
been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S, District Court for the District
of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC states denied.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO. 38:

Admit that there is no assignment of Mortgage from Washington Mutual Bank loans or
line of credit loans via the "Purchase & Assumption Agreement” with the FDIC.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 38:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request is unduly burdensome
and is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake
in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the
parties’ resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden
or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Specifically, Plaintiffs are
requesting that NDSC admit to information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.
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Moreover, the scope of the instant litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted
appropriately under NRS 107, the issues relating to the Plaintiffs’ chalienge of the underlying
loan documents have already been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S.
District Court for the District of Nevada as casc number 3:18-cv-00001,

Without waiving said objection, upon information and belief NDSC states denied.
REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO, 39:

Admit that JPMorgan Chase Bank has falsely asserted ownership to Leo Kramer and
Audrey Kramer's Line of Credit from Washington Mutual Bank.

RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO. 39:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request is unduly burdensome
and is not proportional to the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake
in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relative access to relevant information, the
parties’ resources, the iraportance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden
or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Moreover, the scope of the
instant litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS
107, the issues relating to the Plaintiffs* challenge of the underlying loan documents have already
been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the U.S. District Court for the District
of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are requesting that NDSC admit to
information to which it has no access or personal knowledge.

Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS NO, 40:

Admit that neither Leo Kramer nor Audrey Kramer owed any money on the Line of Credit
from Washington Mutusl Bank for $176,000.00.
RESPONSE TO REQUEST NO, 40:

Objection. This request calls for a legal conclusion. This request is unduly burdensome
and is not proportional fo the needs of the case, considering the importance of the issues at stake
in the action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ relatiye access to relevant information, the

parties’ resources, the importance of the discovery in resolving the issues, and whether the burden
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or expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit. Moreover, the scope of the
instant litigation is only whether the foreclosure sale was conducted appropriately under NRS
107. the issues relating to the Plaintifls” challenge of the underlying loan documents have already
been adjudicated as a result of the federal court litigation in the L1.S. Distriet Court for the District
of Nevada as case number 3:18-cv-00001. Further, Plaintiffs are requesting that NDSC admit o
information to which it has no access or personal knowledge. Finally, the request is vague and
ambiguous as to the phrase “owed any money.” While a bankruptey discharge would prevent in
personam liability for the debt owed. it would not have discharged the in rem liability associated
with the loan. For the purposes of its response, NDSC assumes the Plaintifts are not asking
whether the debt could be personally collected from them.
Without waiving said objection, NDSC states denied.

DATED Septemiber 5, 2019,

TIFFANY & BOSCO, P.A.

s
Ly ya

Ace C. Van Pauen, Esy.

Nevada Bar No. 11731

10100 W. Charleston Blvd.. Ste. 220

Las Vepas Nevada 89135

Attorneys for Defendant,

National Default Servicing Corporation
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that on September 9, 2019. [ placed a copy of the above DEFENDANT,
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION'S RESPONSES TO
PLAINTIFFS' REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS SET ONE into a sealed cnvelope and mailed

it via regular mail, postage prepaid. addressed to;

Leo Kramer

Audrey Kramer

2364 Redwood Road
Hercules, CA 94547
Plaintiffs in Proper Person

An employec of Tiffany & Bosco. P.A.
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Monthly receipt/s or evidence that JPMorgan Chase Bank knew Plaintiffs’ address

EXHIBIT E
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784%.- 7 pam. (CBT)
Deat or Hard of Haaring (TTY) 1-800-542-0842

-
.

- ~ 14459 Page 1 of 8

CHASE ¢ WM
. or
Monday - Friday

: Home Equity Line of Credit Statement
IR LS U T 10 O L PO PR T T Aocount Nurber as000z6081  Feh
ig,t:vm Zoesi8D- BRE Biglement Perlod t 3/2018 -. .
121 CARDINAL WAY Minimum Paymen ’
HERCULES, CA 94547-1802
Explanation of Payment Amount
Prinoipal $0.00
Line of Gredit Overview (as of 02/12/2018) T . e — 7088
Unpaid Principal Balance $167,76582 . :
Creditline ] $176,000.00° ..
MM— g == T e ————'.—-—-—-—'w. ; ———
Intorest Rale 5.40000%
Recoverable Comoris Advance $i0,812.40 "1
mmm-m-mm Laan more about the payolf process by oling the '
Account Summary
Other Credite 0,00
Fees Clupd/Advancese $0.00
Intereet Charged $760.88
New Balaroe 2 $208.488.79
Esotow Payment (Taxes and/or insumnos) $0.00

lmhndamoﬁlmuuﬁmapnynﬂqm.plunaoanwrwmr
automated system at 1-877-505-2894,

'Important Messages

Ifyouoranyooomantcfyourhomeareorraoenﬂymmadmnn or related active service, you may be elighble for
benefite and proteations under the federal Servicemembers Civl m“m ?smgm). state Jaw, or Chase policy, Those beneflis
nndprmotbmmwm:depmtoctionfranforeobmreormbnwnMaoourtom.andhoomem, Interest rate and
foo benefits. Some protections also may be avaliable If you &re the dependent of an elighble Setvicemember. In addition, eomme
state laws may allow Servicemembers to requeet a payment deforral.

For more information, please call Chase MI!tlgrywaeut 1-877-4688-0110,

The Comorat eAdvanoeBehmomayhoiudomforhapodhm, home valuations, legal fece, property maintenance and
other costs. It is listed under the Loan Overview seation.

Piease refer to the bankruptoy Information in this statement for more information relating to your case.

Hwaz



Wds rege oo
1-000-520-8447

Tam, -7 pm (C8T)
Deaf or Hard of Hearlng (TTY) 1.800-582-0842

CHASE(®

i
'r_] chase.oom

Home Equity Line of Credit Stateinent

|||||l"|||||||ull"n|lllItullll||||l|||||||m|t|ll|||ll||||| Accoum Numbet 8500028581
LEOF KRAMER . Minimum P t ' st
o g
121 CARDINAL WAY inimum Paymen
HERCULES, CA 04547-1802
-Explanation of Payment Amount

. Prinolpal $0.00

Line of Credit-Overview (as of 01/12/2018) jorest e £267,08
Nonthly Payment 297,98

Unpaid Principal Balence $167,785.82
Cradkt Line $176,000.00
AvalableforUse. — - . - L 8000
Intecent Rabs . 5.40000%
Recoverable Corporaie Advance ) $10,812.40
mMWHmnMIMqMMMWHMprMh
Account Summary .
Previoue Balance 350405255
Paymenis/Credits $0.00
Other Cradiis $0.00
Fese Chigd/Advances $0.00
Interest Charged $767.08
Now Badance = - 5208,719.41
Escrow Payment (Texes and/or Insurance) $0.00

2This ls not a payoff amount, To request & payoff quols, ploass call our 24-hour
automaisd system at 1-877-506-2054,

important Messages

if you or any t of your home are or recently were on active M duty or related active seivioe, you may ba eligbls for
bmdhmdz;.r?;mnsmw the federal &wﬂmmmmmﬂ<m). state law, or Chase policy. Theee benaliis
andprolootbmmayholudepmtootbnlmmfombouraorwhtbnvdﬂwmuouﬂordar.mdhmﬂm.ﬁmmaw
foobmdits.aomeprotootionubomuybomuablelfyoummodependwwanoﬂglbloSowloemunbar.lnaddltlon,m

siato laws may aliow Servicemembers to request a payment deferral,

For more information, please call Chase Mitary Services at 1-877-489-0410.
The Corporate Advance Balance may Includs axpenaes for Inspections, home valuations, legal fess, property maintenance and

other coats. It Is listed under the Loan Overview section,
G

Please refer to the bankruptoy information ki this statement for more Information relating to your oase.



CHASED ¢ - wwowmd ™

| ea s, Statement Period 11122017 - 1211212017
¢ " Propery Address 1740 AUTUMN GLEN 8T
. FERNLEY NV 80408

LEO F KRAMER
121 CARDINAL WAY
HERCULES, CA 84547-1002

AGCOUNT STATEMENT IS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

Account Information Year-To-Date Payments

RN ruphoy ri

Bank - Discharoed Tolat .00
Contraciual Due Date (For Informational Purposes Only)  1108/2010

Interest Rale §.18000%

Lats Charge Fea (per month) $%.00

Current Maturtty Dale 05/2038

Sunent Princios) Balance * $167.758.62

mwmmmmmmmhmm e T

7‘ - m DONOANON Was WD gad, L h .hy w e
statsment ia for and/or informational and dose not conetitls an atismpt 1o oollect dobt bhpooopomﬂlnhﬂlylorunh
Mm?m'mduwmmhwmwmmmumhmwm. ite lien on

i you do not wish 1o receive thia monthly Information Stulement in the future, mummwmwmmdmm

ploase onll 1-508-520-8447,

v Please delach s retum.tha batiom bartion of this stalernsnt with vour oevinant usks the snoleed wemiopa. ... W ...

Pl

rmamn .- =l
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CHASE L" r B Bankruptcy lnformal!_ ™ \

Loan Number 3500026881
Siatement Parlod 06/18/2017 - 0O 22017
Property Address 1740 AUTUMN GLEN 87

FERNLEY NV 86408

LEQ F KRAMER
121 CARDINAL WAY
- HERCULES, CA 84647-1602

ACCOUNT STATEMENT I8 POR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

255592501200704131000383000000

Account Information Year-To-Date Payments
- 2 7 Totat $0.00

Bankrupioy Status Disoharged

Contraciual Due Date (For Informational Purposss-Only)  $1/0042010

Intorest Rale &5.15000%

Late Charge Fee (per monith) $35.60

Cusrent Maturity Dale 05/2088

Gurrent Prinoloal Balgnoe ! $187,765.62

only, nol the amoUt! T Yy Yo ——— —
mhwnmm e e ——

imrtantMassas

s extent your o fo siay of banknig
mmnmmmmmmwmwmddmanmmhm dabtorbhnpooopmomllabﬂybrm
obligation, However, a secured parly refains rights under s seourty instrument, Inokiding the right o foreciose It ion

lfyoudonotMﬁbmmlemmmmbmdon&hnmﬂhﬁnhmmorﬁywluvemqumﬂonw&eddmm
ploase oal 1-805-820-6447,

coH

v Please dutach e roturn 1he batiom portion of this sialsment with your payment using the encloeed envelops, v. @
LA
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CHASEQ € oo

Loan Number 850002658
Stalement Period 07M1Y2017 - 08/12/2017
Property Address 1740 AUTUMN GLEN ST

FERNLEY NV 80408

'LEO F KRAMER
121 CARDINAL WAY
HERGULEB, GA 84547-1602

AGCOUNT STATEMENT I8 FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

i
g
3
g
:
3
g
3

L]
]

Account Information Year-To-Date Payments
. N e~ - Tobal- - . - N X
Banksuploy Dlﬂdlmc'l L .
intorest Rate 6.15000%
Late Charge Foa (per month) $36.40
Curont Maturity Date 05/2038
1 $167,756.62
mhhhﬂwmmm.ndmmm*ﬁbnm

important Messages

o e T ey T TS T
or purposes an o oollect or

obligation. Hmvm,ammmmmmmmmwmmmunmbmm:um.

# you do not wiehi 1o recsive thia monthly Information Btaternent in the future, or i you-have any questions regarding this morigage/deed of trust account,
ploass oalf 1-888-820-6447.

w Plosus retreh and refiirn tha bakiom notion of this statement with vour bavment uaing the enolosed envelone., v Ll(ﬁa



CHASE “" r“r\ Bankruptoy lnformayg,}ﬂ‘ T

Loan Number SE00028581
Siatemeont Period 08/14/2017 « 08/12/2017
Property Address 1740 AUTUMN GLEN ST

FERNLEY NV 80408

'LEO F KRAMER
121 CARDINALWAY -
HERCULES, OA 84847-1602

¥o

ACCOUNT STATEMENT I8 FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY

163503801500705009000902000080

Aoeount infonnatlon Year-To-Date Payments _
Total $0.00
_ Discharged )

wﬁmﬁmw N .
i o g et o

Gumlhwg . 08/2038

, ot the
whhﬁwwmwm amount required 19 pay your

) Oit . g, Of ¥ m
sinfoment e fo7 0 08 on!ymddooenolwmluhm
obligation, Mm:mmwmmrmmmmm
rfyoudonotwidmmmhmmyhbmﬂonahhnmthlmWM.oermwmmardlrmwomwamm
dease call 1-800-243-8081.

b dobtto lomoh
nﬂm oolluou of inpoupmomlhbﬁty

v Plnane detach and mirn the botiom notion of Thix siniament with vatir navmant nnbive fhes ansinend sl - Ll(ps
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CHASEO( . K
s Home Equity Lins Of siztement
Statement Period: 12-14-16 through 01-13-17"
Account Number: 00429400728881 Line nformation as of 01-43-17
@) Loet Paymect Reosved: 08-25-16 $864267  Credk Line: $176,000.00
New Minkmum Payment Due: 020817  Avaliable for use; $0.00
New Minimum Payment Amount: $31,331.41  Prior Year Inlerest Paid: $0.00
I""“llllll"’lllllI"Ill'l'll"llll"llll'"'l'Il""l"l“"l
0000442 HLB 008 01817 b - BRE
LEO F KRAMER '
121 CARDINAL WAY
HERCULES, CA 94547-1602
5
2
o
- Ca [P . . L T [, .-——--‘..-'.‘
~-YOur livé of Sedif ks blocked. This means that you can't draw from your line of credit &t this time. However, ) §
It's important that you make your monthly payments by your scheduled due date. If you have any questions, §
ploase call us at 1-800-836-5656 Monday through Friday from & e.m.-midnight or Saturday from 8 a.m.-8 2
p.m.'Eastemn Time. .
YOUR ACCOUNT IS PAST DUE. PLEASE MAKE A PAYMENT TODAY.
Provious Staletnent Balance $203,870.76 To Contact Us: 3
$0.00 By Phone: (800) 836-5056
$0.00 Para Espafiol: (800) 800-5026
$0.00 Hearing Impaired; (800) 5820542
$208,670.76 internet: www.chase.com
Payments/ Debits/ Principal Balance
Cradits AdvancesTess “ARer Transaction
121416  Balance Forwerd $107,765.82
12-14-16 Baginning ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE
4.40% Dally Petiodic Rate .00012021
1214416 Lock 001 Beginning ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE 0.00% -
Dally Periociic Rate .00000000
12-1516  Revoving Rale Changed To 4.05% ANNUAL PERCENTAGE
RATE Dally Periodic Rale 00012704
01-01-17  Revolving Beginning ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE
, 4.65% Dally Periodic Rate 00012750
01-13-17  FINANCE CHARGE (interest) Acorued 12-14-18 Thru $0.00

011317

Your aclivlly is coninued on the next page



AR YW Home Equity Line Of Credit Statement,
I Statement Period: 03-16-14 through 0418 )
)

Ay !

HERCULES, CA 94547-1602

Account Number: 00428400726861 Line Information as of 04-14-14
Last Payment Received: 12-27-10 $2,500.00  Credit Line: " $176,000.00
New Minimum Payment Due: 05-0914  Available for use: $0.00
New Minimum Payment Amount; $25,453.04  Prior Year Interest Paid: $0.00
=
——
N -1 3
LT LT || EELERY Y LLLETU A PLEELLELE R LU e L L EE
0009768 HLS 001 10414 D - BRE Eg
LEO F KRAMER —¢
121 CARDINAL WAY E§

[

"‘News You Can Use
Urgentl We have not recelved your monthly home equity account payment. Call us immediately at
1-800-848-8380 to discuss your options.

We are a debt collector. If you are represented by an attorney, please refer this letter to your attorney
and pravide us with the attorney's name, address, and telephone number. To the extent your original
obligation was discharged, or Is subject to an automatic stay of bankruptcy under Title 11 of the
United States Code, this statement Is for compliance and/er informational purposes only and does
not constltute an attempt to collect a debt or to Impose personal liability for such obligation.

YOUR ACCOUNT IS PAST DUE, PLEASE MAKE A PAYMENT TODAY.

Previous Statement Balance $199,256.67 To Contact Us:

(-} Payments/Credits $0.00 By Phone: {800) 836-5656
{+) Debite/Advances $0.00 Para Espatfiol: {800) 800-5628
{+) Debits/Fees/Finance Charges $594.86 Hearing Impaired: (800) 582-0542
(=) Current Statament Balance** $199,851.53 Intemet:  chase.com

**This is not a payolf amount Pleass contmct us to request a payolf quots,

AT, s © mmmmerrammemree e 3l nEemenm ety arreE AT 48 A LR R A e 4t % A e s amerhmb e oh [ .. e e e e e ———————— s e

Activity Since Your Last Statement

Post Date Description Payments/ Deblts/ Principal Balance
Credits Advances/Fees After Transaction

03-16-14  Balance Forward $174,398.49
03-16-14  Beginning ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE 4,15% Dally

Periodic Rate .00011369 '
04-14-14  FINANCE CHARGE (Interest} Accrued 03-16-14 Thiu 04-14-14 $594.86

Total $0.00 $594.86 $174,398.48
Current Statement =  Cumrent Fees and Finance + Previous Fees and + Principal Balance
Balance Charges Flnance Charges
$199,851.53 $623.74 $24,820.30 $174,398.49

More News You Can Use

)
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Fabricated Assignment of Deed of Trust by JPMorgan Chase Bank,
(Signed April 4,2018—Recorded April 10, 2018)

EXHIBIT F

Gu3)



«
D& 4: 578046

04/10/2018 08:53 AM Page: 1 of 1

OFFICIAL RECORD
Requested By: SERVICELINK TITLE AGENCY INC

RECORDING REQUESTED BY: Lyon County, NV

Dawna L. Warr, Recorder
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: Fee: $38.00 RPTT: $0.00 @
National Default Servicing Corporation Recorded By: mkassebaum
7720 N. 16® Street, Suite 300 /_\ \
Phoenix, AZ 85020 :
NDSC NO.: 12-31926-JP-NV
APN: 022-052-02 / \
PROP ADDRESS: 1740 Autumn Glen St, Fernley NV 89408-7204 TN

"~

ASSIGNMENT OF DEED OF TRUST

L

N

For Value Received, Washington Mutual Bank, = Federal Associatio undersigned i6n hereby
grants, assigns and transfers to JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Assodiation all be ial interest under
that certain Deed of Trust dated 04/04/2008 executed by Leo F. Kramer and Audrey EKramer Trustor, to
California Reconveyance Company, A California Corporation Truste and recordgd bn 05/01/2008 as
Instrument No. 425436 of the Official Records of Lyon County, NV descritingthe | rein:

AS PER DEED OF TRUST MENTIONED ABOVE.

Together with the Note or Notes therein described or referred to,the mpney due and to become due thereon

with interest, and all rights accrued or to accrue under said Pee

Dated: Aﬁﬂ/ g: 2o/8

JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association,@s4 I t for the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation as Receiver of Washington Mutual Bagk-¥ shington Mutual Bank, FA

= M M
e LR

STATE OF Louisiana
, befere me, n m |'—fé I , a Notary Public for said State,

PARISH OF Ouachita

who personally known to me (or who proved to me on
e the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the
acl dgéd'to me that hefshe/they executed the same in his/her/their
ies), andithat by hisfher/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or

On

the entity upon betalf of which fhe person(s) acted, execut ed the ins’trg_nem.
AY GO N
e OUACHITA PARISH, L(s)g\‘on
LIEETIME COMMY i0
NOTARY 1D #6639

Amy Gott #66396

Hag



Transcript of May 1, 2018 Hearing With Judge Schlegelmilch

EXHIBIT G
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Transcriplion Star?‘: i

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

LEO KRAMER, pro se ) Case No.: 18-CV-00663
AUDREY KRAMER, pro se )
) Dept. No.:1
Plaintiffs,

VS.
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MC
DERMONT, WEDGEWQOD, INC.,
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND
2016 LLC, AND DOES 1 THROUGH
50 INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

S St gl gt st st gt v put ‘st et

TRANSCRIPT OF:
HEARING ON MAY 1, 2019
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

G
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Transcﬂplionﬁar‘ v

«

APPEARANCES
PRESIDING JUDGE:
JOHN P. SCHLEGELMILCH
PLANTIFF AUDREY KRAMER, Pro se

PLANTIFF LEO KRAMER, Pro se

MR. ACE VAN PATTEN-ATTORNEY FOR

NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION

MR. KENNETH CHING-ATTORNEY FOR

BRECKENRIDGE, ET AL
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Transcriptiorﬁ:\S\la

PROCEEDINGS

[Off Mic Conversation]

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So we’re here in case
18Cv00663, Kramer versus National Default McDermott
Wedgewood Breckenridge Property et al. All right, so
we’'re here for two motions to dismiss the first amended
complaint, one filed by McDermott Wedgewood & Breckenridge
and the other filed by National Default. Okay, those are
being duly opposed at this point. So, who'’s present today?
We have the Kramer'’s present and -.

Kenneth Ching: Got a Kenneth Ching [Indiscernible]
f0:00:49] I just need a second for Breckenridge Wedgewood
and McDermott.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay.

Ace Van Patten: Ace Van Patten on behalf of National
Default Servicing.

Judger: And it’s Ching?

Kenneth Ching: C.H.I.N.G., Ching.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. I want to make
sure I got it right.

Kenneth Ching: Yes.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. Okay. So,
Mr. Ching, well, you filed a motion to dismiss first, so

why don’t you get started?

Qo)
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Transcription Star -

Kenneth Ching: Thank you, Your Honor. And Your
Honor, I haven’t been to your court before - I argue
sitting?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: That’s fine.

Kenneth Ching: A1l right. Thank you, Your Honor,
there’s a number of reasons to dismiss my clients from
this case, you know, as a very basic starting point,
Breckenridge is really the only owner to the subject
property in the first place; Wedgewood is the managing
member, Alyssa McDermott is an employee of Wedgewood. And
McDermott and Wedgewood have no place in this case at all,

~

as they are not - you know, that they weren’t representing

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: They’re not the owners
of the property.

Kenneth Ching: Breckenridge, right. They are simply
related through corporate entities. Breckenridge bought
this property at a foreclosure sale, Your Honor, and our
first relationship to the case starts at that purchase. We
relied upon publicly-recorded documents, including a
notice of default. And so, there - I don’t think there’s
any legitimate question that Breckenridge 1s a bonafide
pursuer for value, and the only questions that have been
raised are speculation about how our general counsel

should have known more about real estate, given that he

Gt
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TranscriptjonfS\tar‘ w7

has experience in real estate law. And I don’t think that
is a meaningful basis to challenge our BFP status.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, fair - I mean,
fair enough, but I mean, I understand what you’re saying,
but they’ve asserted that you’re not a BFP. In the moving
documents, you filed the motion to dismiss. So - and there
isn’t - just on the face of the pleadings, I have to take
any inference in light —-in the light favorable to the
plaintiffs.

Kenneth Ching: Certainly, Your Honor. But I think
the only allegation that could even be fought to challenge
the BFP status are pure speculation; they’re not even
factual allegations. They are allegations that becauée Mr.
Nelson was an attorney, he should have researched more
into the defects in the property. And because he didn’ft,
he was conspirator in a fraud. I just think that’s a -
those are the [Indiscernible] [0:03:44] that we’re reading
in the case file and decided all the time that a motion or
the clinic can’t stand on - Surely, there already factual
allegations. I mean, there’s already an allegation that
Mr. Nelson conspired with somebody somewhere or that
Breckenridge did. The argument as far as I understand it
is that he’s an attorney, he’s a real estate attorney, he
should have gone back and researched the chain of title

and found the defects, which have not actually been

HMY
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Transcriplionﬁar‘ ’ o - 6

specified. And these records are actually [Indiscernible]
[0:04:16] that we keep us in the case because we only came
along at the foreclosure sale, we don’t have obligations
to challenged that. So, that will be my response, Your
Honor, if you would’ve take those inferences. I don’t
think they’re involved [Indiscernible] ([0:04:33].

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, and - Okay. Well,
I understand what you’re saying, but I mean, the
allegation - all right. So, geﬁerally, after reading the
first amended complaint, okay, it’s somewhat jumbled, I’ll
grant you that. But I got to read it as a whole as best as
I can, okay? So, generally, the way I read it 1s that
there was a defect in the sale because notice of default
and election to sell was never properly served.

Kenneth Ching: Yeé.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, it all kind of
comes back to that. 5S¢, there’s defect in the sale. You
were a party - and maybe you weren’t at that point. There
was a federal lawsuit pending the day prior - that was
dismissed the day prior to the sale.

Kenneth Ching: For which there was no lis pendens,
relatable lis pendens recorded on property.

Kenneth Ching: You honor, I guess to - so, I
understand what you’re saying there’s a defect in the

sale. I would probably look to my colleague to address
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Transcriptionﬁar‘ B

that view, one of the difficulties for Breckenridge 1is we
didn’t put on the sale. We.just showed up at the sale and
bought a property there. So, I look to my colleague to
establish the wvalidity of the notice of default and so on.
We weren’t - we weren't around for that part of this
transaction. So, yes, I agree, with Your Honor, it seems
to me that on those facts, there’s still no allegation to
suggest we’re not a BFP, there’s not an allegation that
Breckenridge met with NDSC, conspired to do a defunct -
you know a defective éale and thereby, should be a - you
know, not be of and have BFP status. We just

showed at the sale and purchased it, the property. And I
don’t think there’s any allegation to contrary. We have no
relationship to the subject property before the
transaction prior to that point. So, I don’t — I don’t
believe an allegation that which we confer bad faith, I
guess, is, you know, the general idea that somehow we were
involved. Again, except for the idea that because we have
in-house counsel, he should have gone back and traced the
title through NDSCs, you know, sale notice of default
process, which I don’t think is the law, Your Honor. 1
think - I think my client is entitled to rely on publicly-
recorded documents, which again, is why the absence of lis
pendens is meaningful. There is a lawsuit which has been

dismissed.
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But they had - all
right. So, the actual sale occurred. When did your clients
take the property again? I think it was in May of 2018,
ém I right?

Kenneth Ching: That’s correct. Yeah.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Am I correct? I wanted
to make sure I'm correct on that.

Kenneth Ching: Yes, I do believe that is correct.
I’'m locking for my -.

[Silence]

Kenneth Ching: It’s May 18, Your Honor, of 2018. I
just want to say it took place -.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So, May
18th. They filed their original complaint on June 8th.

So, they are well within the 60-day period to file a suit
to contest the sale?

Renneth Ching: Yes.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. So, as opposed to
a presale, you have - now, there’s no pending - all right.
So, at the time of the sale, there was no pending case.

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay? LSo, therefore,
there is no 1lis pendené that could be attached to the

property.

all



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

.25

« L &
s - -

Transcriptionﬁ‘la 9

Kenneth Ching: I‘m referring to the federal case,
Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, I appreciate
that. I know you’re referring to the federal case but the
federal case was dismissed by Judge Du [phonetic]. Okay?

Kenneth Ching: Sure, yes, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: QOkay. So, the federal
case was dismissed by Judge Du, so even if there was a lis
pendens, botentially, on the property in relation to that
case, it would have been removed or it should have been
removed at the time of the sale because there was nothing
pending, you know, in the courts. So - but apparently,
they filed an appeal on that. I don’t know what that is. I
— you know, and I'm not - who knows where things go into
the black hole of the Ninth Circuit. So, but, you know,
the - so, sure, if its pre-sale, I think you have - if
it’s a presale and there’s a lis pendens, I think
automatically, I can declare it void. Okay? But if it’s
post-sale, they’re allowed 60 days to contest the sale
based upon the (inaudible) who filed the statutes.

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: You know what I'm

saying?

Kenneth Ching: I do.

Al
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Sc, now whether or not
you’re a bonafide pufchaser, I think is a factual
determination that is subject to discovery at least. Not
to say that I would make that determination today, right,
because I wouldn’t. This is just on a Rule 12 motion to
dismiss.

Kenneth Chingten: Understood.

Kenneth Ching: I see what you’re saying, Your Honor,
and I accept what you’re saying. I will go b;ck to just
again suggest that I don’t think - I don’t think there’s
allegations to even support a theory that we’re not a good
faith purchaser, that we’re not a bonafide purchaser.
Again, it’s an inference based on the fact we have in-
house counsel, and a speculation that we conspired with -
T don’t know. I don’t know who we'’re supposed to conspire
with. So, I guess, I’'m suggesting that the allegations -.

| Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But I don’t - but even .
if your client - all right. So, even if your client is a
bonafide purchaser, okay, they still can contest the saie
within 60 days, post-sale.

Kenneth Ching: Agreed.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So - and
they served you, so you want notice of it because it looks
like you were served at least with the original complaint

back on June 20th of 2018. So, you were served - not only
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they filed within that 60 days, you were served within
that 60 days. So, they put you on notice that they were
contesting the sale.

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: I'm having - to be
honest with you, I'm having a problem with what the remedy
is one way or another. Okay. So, in this case - and nobody
really dealt with that issue on motion to dismiss. So, I
mean, though, even if they prevail, even if the Kramer’s
prevail, I’1ll reverse the sale because they didn’t get the
notice of default like they’re claiming, okay? So, all it
does is just.start over.

Kenneth Ching: Agreed, Your Honor, which also leads
to another point that is in our briefing that it isn't
been alleged that they are in default, that they may be
just a bit tendered. So, I think there are some underlying
defects in that aspect of their allegations, but I didn’t

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: I'm not.sure that they
will reguire - so, because they got discharged in
bankruptcy, I'm not sure that they were required. You see,
that’s another hitch in this whole thing, all right? So,
because they’re perscnal responsibility got discharged.
I'm not saying the responsibility that the deed to trust

disappears, certainly not. But their personal liabilify on
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the note was discharged in bankruptcy a number of years
back. So, I think there’s issues in relation to - there
could be tender issues and other issues in relation to
this case that go directly to the property perhaps, but
they can’t go to the Kramer’s because they don’t have any
pérsonal responsibility. 1It’s a very - its interesting in
that respect, you know? But still, ultimately, at the end
of the day, the process just starts again. Just starts
over. And if the process just starts over and there’s not
tender on the outstanding balance of the - what’s owed
under the deed of trust, it gets sold again. And so,
unless they can come up with some kind of financing to pay
off the note, that I don’'t know, you know, pay off the
property based on how much is still owed on. I mean, I
don’t even know the answer to that question right now.

Kenneth Ching: How much?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: How much is actually
owed on the property with the interest and everything else
that’s accumulated on the last seven years or whatever it
is - from the time of default to discharge. I mean, the
bankruptcy or, you know, clearly sets forth that the deed
of trust survives. So, I'm not - I'm not even too worried
about that issue. You know, the only thing that bankruptcy
lawyers discharge personal liability is the plaintiffs.

But because they’re the makers of the deed of trust, they

Uun)
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still have - they still are provided the ability, I think,
under the law, to come in and pay the note off - pay the
property off. I shouldn’'t even say the note because the
note is - the note itself, any personal liability on the
note is discharged. So, to pay the property off, is a
better way to put it. Based on the deed of trust. So,
it’s interesting in that respect.

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor. A few other points
to address in terms of fraud, that has not been alleged
with particularity [Indiscernible] [0:16:16] fraud
requires and to particularity the time, the place -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: In the second - in the
first amended complaint, did they actually allege fraud?
Kenneth Ching: They have constructive fraud, I

believe. I think that was the first complaint.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: I think that that was
the first complaint and I note it, yeah. I mean...

Kenneth Ching: Based on res judicata, (inaudible)
caught issues, as well, Your Honor, that the second - the
first amended complaint is not very different than the
first complaint. So, the extent of the first complaint was
dismissed all the same - all same complaints except for,
you know, basically, we got unlawful foreclosure which
after the first complaint was dismissed, it’s all granted,

for leave to amend and they’ve restated several of
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their other - several of their other complaints, excuse
me, their legal claims the slander of title, the debt
relief, quiet title, those were dismissed earlier, Your
Honor, and then, simply re;filed.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, they were stated
different, I think. They were stated based on this big -
national - nationwide conspiracy for - that there was no
evidence of in this particular sale.

Kenneth Ching: Agreed, Your Honor. And once again,
I suspect that conspiracy — I mean -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: And that was also dealt
with at the federal level.

FKenneth Ching:l Yes.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, the original
complaint didn’t really include except for one sentence,
the allegation that they didn’t receive the notice of
default. It was one line in the original complaint, and
that’s why I gave them leave to re-file it because they
could be an unlawful foreclosure action based on their
failure to receive the notice of default.

Kenneth Ching: Sure. Agreed. So, that’s what I saw
it as leave to amend and then be backed with other, well,
conspiracy theory, which I can’t speak to, except to say
that Breckenridge denies conspiracy (inaudible) any

participation in any conspiracy.

653
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: I view that kind of
stuff as mostly surplusage.

Ace Van Patten: Agreed.

Kenneth Ching: Your Honor, so those are the big
picture points, and if you wanted to go point by point
with any of the claims, I don’t have new things to say
about them other than what’s said in the brief about
specific claims and why we think they don’t lie against
Breckenridge, Wedgewood or McDermott. Your Honor, at a
minimum, I would ask the court to consider dismissing
Alyssa Mcbermott, an individual who'’s just an employee of
Wedgewood, who has no - there’s no allegation of
[Indiscernible] [0:19:31] she’s simply an employee.
There’s no allegation issues acting outside the scope of
her employment through Wedgewood. There’s no - she’s just
an individual who happens to work for us. I having her
named personally in ahy lawsuit. I think it doesn’t stand
Rule 12 analysis, you know, based on the allegations.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Right. So, both
McDermott and Wedgewood are not owners of the property.

Renneth Ching: No, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, Wedgewood is just
the manager for Breckenridge ?

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor.
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. Fair enough.
All right. Okay. 8o, Mr. and Mrs. Kramer, do you have
anything in relation to that?

Audrey Kramer: Yes, Your Honor. The reason that we
included Breckenridge and Wedgewood Inc and Alyssa
McDermott was because when we were first contacted and
when our property management first contacted Mrs.
McDermott touted herself as the owner - the new owner of
the property. And so, we had no way of knowing to the
contrary of that. And -.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, you knew - all
right. So, you knew it by the time you filed your second
- your first amended complaint because it was clear at the
time we were here the last time, that they’re not titled
owners, they have no ownership interest in the property,
that Breckenridge is the only one on title.

Audrey Kramer: And when - and when I first had
contact with M;. Nelson, who was in-house attorney for
Breckenridge, he had - I explained this to him, and I -
all I asked him for is that he would give me an affidavit
providing that what they’re alleging now that I would
happily drop them from the complaint, he did not do that,

so maybe I think that he was not able to do that -.
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But the deed,
transferring the deed - the trustee’s deed transferring
the property transfers it to Breckenridge alone. I mean,
to - yeah, Breckenridge alone.

Audrey Kramer: But I didn’t know that it - for me,
that just could have been like a shell company still
associated with her name. I have no way of knowing of that
discovery of any sort or any affidavit to that effect that
the fact that she wasn’t part of Breckenridge and then -
or Wedgewood Inc., you know? I - it was just like moving
shells around, I really didn’t know. And so, I would have
been happy or sufficed to say had they have been willing
to give an affidavit, that’s all I asked for. I would have
not included them in the complaint. And when I spoke with
Mz. Nelson on the phone, he was - and I know that this is
not an admissible thing as evidence or anything like that,
but he touted himself, first of all, he was very
knowledgeable of National Default and Chase. And he also
said that he’d done over 200-plus transactions, and he
came across as a professional flipper, and because it was
a big enough company that they had in-house counsel, I
believed that - and I also looked up on Google and they
had multiple lawsuits that they were involved with, with
regarding propérty purchases that they do in California,

as well. 2And so, I believed that he - it would have just
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stood to reason, logical reason, that he would have done
due diligence, or should have done due diligence at the
very least, and asked National Default because of his
established relationship that he told me about, .and he
knew Chase was involved. I didn’t disclose that to him.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So, he filed
for quiet title, though. All right? So, did you ever read
chapter 40 and what the requirements are that you need to
follow in order to proceed on a quiet title action?

Audrey Kramer: I'm sorry. I couldn’'t -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Did you ever read
chapter 40 in relation to the requirements that you need
to follow in order to suppert a quiet title action?

Audrey Kramer: I have read it. I'm not sure that T
was first as the -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. Well, this is the
problem. While I was very clear in relation to gquiet
title. WNow, on the unlawful foreclosure, you know, that’s
a different deal, and the sale could potentially be
reversed. Okay? But you’re suing for quiet title, okay?
That you want to have a title placed in your name. All
right? You cannot - if you - the law requires, okay,
absolutely requires within 10 days of issuance of a
sﬁmmons that a lis pendens be filed, okay? Absolutely

requires it, okay? There’s no wiggle room on that. It also
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requires that the property needs to be posted, none of
which has occurred in this case. And it - so - and it also
requires that you name the property itself as a defendant
and name the - and it’s the property itself at full
description is included in the summons, none of which
occurred in this case. None of - none of which occurred

in this case. 0Okay? 8o, the fact of the matter is, is

that even though you sued for quiet title, basically quiet

titles is that - is you’re asking the title be placed in
your name as opposed to these individuals. Well, you
cannot support that claim.

Audrey Kramer: So, Your Honor, I believe that if we
prevail on the unlawful foreclosure that -.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: That doesn’t quiet
title in your name. That does not.

Audrey EKramer: That’s why we asked for quiet title
because 1f we prevailed on a nondisclosure of notiée of
default.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All it does is pretty
back to the start. That’s all it does. It doesn’t quiet
title in your name.

Audrey Kramer: Okay. I just - I believe strongly
that they knew about the litigation and the controversy of
the property because they purchased or obtained their

checks a week before the purchase transaction took place,
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while it was still being litigated in federal court. And
I believe that given the history that Mr. Nelson presented
to me which he didn’t have to do, he was just - sounded
boastful at the timé, and he was so knowledgeable about
all the interactions and the people that were handling the
foreclosure. And in terms of the specific layers, that it
just seemed like he knew or should have known that thers
was pending litigation on the property in absence of
getting the lis pendens. So, I’'m just saying, as I
believe that he knew, I believe that because of the amount
of litigation that they may have with other properties
that they purchased as professional flippers, that this
wasn’t foreign to them, and I would think it even the very
least, the least thing he would do is say, “Hey, what’s
going on with this.” You know, I really thought that there
would have been some kind of [Indiscernible] or something
like that on the telephone or whatever, where he would
have been able to inquire as to the difficulty. And also,
if he did an examination of the title documents, which I
would think that an in-house lawyer would do, if this is
what their full job is, is just purchasing properties at
foreclosures, they would seen that there were problems in
the title, in the chain of titles. It’s really obvious
that there’s breaks in the title. And I would have

thought that that would been glaring that he would have -
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there would have been a red flag, that there could be
problems over this, and that we would actually get all
your checks in advance until you see how the thing turned
out.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But you’re not - you're
not arguing that there’s problems with the chain of title,
you’re arguing that there was -

Audrey Kramer: He told I -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: - that some - that some
- for some reason, there was an assignment that wasn’t
recorded on time. You know, that’s - that has nothing to
do with title. Okay? So, title was in your name. I
mean, clearly, title was still in your name at the time of
the sale. The title to the property was still in your name

at the time of the sale. The only difference is that it -

Audrey Kramer: It was the assignment of the deed of
the trust.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: You can assign the deed
a trust 100 million times.

Audrey Kramer: Correct, but there were breaks in
that, that’s what I’'m trying to tell you. There were
breaks in that chain of title. And I didn’t argue it here
in this first amended complaint because, Your Honor,

[crosstalk] [0:28:28]
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, because the
federal court already send, You don’t have an argument.

Audrey Kramer: Right. So, it doesn’t - it doesn’t
negate the fact that they’re still present. And I’'m just
saying - and so, I'm just using that as a reason of why I
believe that there was cohorting going on between the
parties, because there was a break in the title. And any
lawyer — and this is what they.do full time before this
particular {inaudible), this purchase, you know,
foreclosed properties, that he would have seen that there
was some glaring problems with the title, that he would |
have at least at the very least asked National Default,
you know, what’s going on with this property? Is it still
pending? Has the case been setted?” |

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But you’re implying a
duty that he doesn’t have. So, it -

Audrey Kramer: It’s just reasonable - it’s a
reasonable assumption.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, but we’re - but

we're implying a duty that he just does not have. There’s

no duty for him to do any of those things, so on behalf of

Breckenridge anyway.
Audrey Kramer: Well, we’re just giving you a reason
why we felt that there was a conspiracy and cohort and

prior knowledge, and I'm - we have no evidence or proof
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that they actually went to the auction on the courthouse
steps or if when it took place, that could have been done
on the telephone. And I don’t think that that falls in
line with the law. Because in order to foreclose
lawfully, it has to be a public auction.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Do - but do you have
any evidence to say it wasn’t?

Audrey Kramer: That I would like to have evidence or
discovery to show otherwise.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So - Okay.

Audrey Kramer: Anyway, I will tell you that I don’t
have a problem with releasing Alyssa McDermott or
Wedgewood. And it’s not my decision, it’s yours, clearly,
but I don’t have any problem with that.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So - All
right. So, Mr. Van Patten, on your motion to dismiss?

Ace Van Patten: Well, Your Honor, I'1l just add to
what’s already been said [Indiscernible] [0:30:36] sort of
jump ahead to what seems to be reaily the heart of it, the
unlawful foreclosuré claim. We don’t think that there’s
sufficient allegations in the complaint which support an
unlawful foreclosure. First of all, the bankruptcy does
not cure or otherwise waive the default, they haven’t
alleged that there was no default only that because of the

bankruptcy, we think that there’s not [Indiscernible]
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[0:31:04] As your honor pointed out, there’s still is an
underlying debt obligation. It’s just not personally
exercisable against with the party being discharged. Like
- so, all the interim rights the -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: -But aren’t they still
entitled to notice, because they are - they’re the makers
of deed of trust?

Ace Van Patten: They would be entitled to notice,
but they’re alsc obligated to alleged that they’re not in
default, and here they haven’t done, so there is no basis
for their - for their allegation that they’re not in
default when the bankruptcy had no effect on whether or
not the account was current or default or otherwise, it
oﬂly affects whether that debt is non-recourse debt or
standard debf, it could be enforced against them
personally. And in terms of the notice, though, the
notice that they’ve alleged they’re entitled to get that
they were not living in the property, it’s not owner-
occupied property. The statutes that they’ve cited to
under the foreclosure mediation program, the Homeowners
Bill of Rights, NRS 107.090, they’re inapplicable here.
The mediation requirements and the Homeowners Bill of
Rights requirements required property be owner occupied.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: And I don’t disagree

with that. Okay? But the allegation that they failed to

Gu3)
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receive notice of the deed, notice of default and election
to sell, and therefore they were not given the opportunity
to cure [phonetic] the property is a factual allegation.
Right? They’re not entitled to foreclosure mediaéion, I
grant you that, okay, because they’re not primary
residence in the property. That’s not their residential
property or there’s no evidence for the court that it’'s
their residential property. From the evidence that I saw
was that they had somebody property managing it and were
renting it out. Okay? So, from what I’ve seen in the
complaint. I mean, that’s how even in allegation Chiefin
and or somebody was property managing it and renting it.

Ace Van Patten: Well, I think, Your Honor, though,
even 1f they alleged that they didn’t receive notice, they
haven’t provided a basis for - the statute doesn’t require
that the notice be sent to every possible address, it
provides for what addresses need to be provided. And that
they were not living in the property; they hadn’t filed a
recorded request to receive that. The fact that they did
not personally receive notice of that doesn’t sort of
negate the facts that under the statutes, they may not
have received personal notice of it.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But if the bank
actually knew and they asserted, okay, and they complained

that the bank actually knew where they were located.

o
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Ace Van Patten: Again, the - I don’t think that that
allegation alone is enough to defeat the motion to dismiss
when the basis of what they’re relying upon underneath
that in a briefing is NRS107.090, which requires a |
recorded request. They’re not arguing under NRS5107.090
that they didn’t receive statutorily-required notice.
Under .090, the only way that that’s even triggered is by
recording a request to be provided with these documents.
There’s no allegations in the complaint that they’ve
recorded such a request.

Judge John P. Schleéelmilch: Okay, I understand what
you’ re saying there. But regardless of what they’re
arguing and their opposition’s, the factual assertion is
that they didn’t get notice on the complaint, right?
Didn’t get notice of the default, that’s the factual
allegation.

Ace Van Patten: As Your - as Your Honor put it
earlier, if the court is reading that, the complaint sort
of broadly -.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Don’t I have to? I
mean, isn’t that the law to state in - aren’t I required
to read it in favor of the plaintiffs on a motion to
dismiss?

Ace Van Patten: Well, I think we’re also - we should
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Because we're not here
con a summary judgment.

Ace Van Patten: Understood.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: And so, it’'s a
different standard. You know, itfs a different standard
that the courts are bound to on a motion to dismiss than
they are on a summary judgment. So - and really, that’s
my sole and only problem with some of the - what you guy
you know, what you folks are indicating to the court.

Ace Van Patten: And I understand if the court is
going to be read it that way and going to grant them that
deference, then obviously, that’s special audit
[phonetic]. But we still think that there are no other
grounds for the other claims to be assertive - that were
asserted as part of those and because of [Indiscernible]
[0:36:34], but also, as the court pointed out, quiet
title, it’s even more applicable to NDSC, we hadn’t
recorded interest. We’re merely acting as a foreclosure
trustee. Similar with the slander of the title for when
we’re conducting a foreclosure sale based on the default.
There’s no malicious intent there, it’s strictly - and
even if the notice was defective, that’s not a malicious
communication.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: It’s not a slander.

Jt’s not a slander.
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Ace Van Patten: And so, I think that at most, if the
céurt is inclined to, to correct that, or to read the
complaint as broadly as it seems to be inclined to, then I
think the only thing that’s viable in regards to NDSC is
this unlawful foreclosure portion. And I think that there
is also an argument that NDSC lacks standing. I don’t
think there’s any allegations in there which would dispute
the NDSC. NDSC was only acting as in the capacity of
trustee, it doesn’t - it wasn’t the beneficiary, who by
the way, has not been named in the action. It didn’t need
to require possession of the note or the original Deed of
Trust or those assignments in order to get {inaudible)
foreclosure. Thus, substitution of trustee was reported
years ago. And so, that’s what gives NDSC authority to
proceed — it’s not proceeding as beneficiary. 8o, I think
at most, if any claims were made, it should be limited to
that unlawful foreclesure, and really, what should be at
issue whether those notices were appropriately provided
now.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: .Okay. Very good.
Anything on that, folks?

Audrey Kramer: Yes, Your Honor. So, regarding the
107.090, I've read that very carefully, numerocus times.
And what it states is in section 3, the foreclosing ARM,

in this case, National Default, must fulfill both
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subsection A and B. Subsection A requirement, each person
who recorded a request for a copy of notice; and
Subsection B, requiring each person with an interest who’s
interest or claimed interest is subordinate to deed of
trust must be notified in writing via registered or
certified US mail, return receipt requested, and the
postage prepaid a copy of the notice of default. It
doesn’t say that anybody who wants to be noticed.

Judge John P. Schlegelmileh: You are entitled to
notice. She doesn’t even have to argue that.

Audrey Kramer: Thank you.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay?

Audrey Kramer: Thank you.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. You’re
entitled to notice.

Audrey Kramer: And because how would I know to ask
for if [crosstalk] [0:39:08] I didn’t know it was being
filed against us in the first place?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. You’re entitled
to notice.

Audrey Kramer: Okay. Thank you on that. And then,
with regard - I'm trying to remember all of the points
that Mr. Van Patten just said. With regarding any monies
or whether or not we tendered, vou know, or required to

tender, that’s in contention, in terms of we question the
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validity of monies, because we never, ever fully accessed
what the line or revolving line of credit was. And that’s
what everybody’s hung their hat on is that line, because
that’s what our bankruptcy attorney put in the schedule of
- we didn’t call that scheduled - Financial schedules,
I'11l just say that.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, you got
discharged.

Audrey Kramer: Well, not - we didn’t have anything
and it wasn’t even like what you think. We did not want to
file bankruptcy, we have legal representation from Sagaria
Law, because they had handled the first bankruptcy which
was the chapter -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Right, that’s already
been determined. That’s already been determined by the
Federal Court. And that’s always due to [Indiscernible]
[0:40:28]. Federal court found that that deed of trust is
still existing on the property, that they’re entitled to
go forward with foreclosure and the deed of trust, that
the bankruptcy didn’t discharge that, that the underlying
obligation on that deed of trust is still alive, even
though you’re not personally responsible for it. So,
don’t argue what the federal court has already decided.

Audrey Kramer: [Indiscernible] [0:40:54] Your Honor.

The whole bankruptcy was dismissed because it was brought
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wrongly by the association. And the trustee, the
bankruptcy trustee actually refunded all of our money that
we gave.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: As to dismissal of the
bankruptcy and where all I saw was a discharge,.

Audrey Kramer: Well, I followed that in federal
court and you told me -

- Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All I saw was a
discharge, so - and maybe it was dismissed because - it
was discharged because it changed. Maybe the chapter 13
was dismissed and went to chapter 11 or something, I don’t
know.

Audrey Kramer: And the -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Or chapter 7 was — I
don’t - I don’t recall all the - I'm sorry, I don’t do
federal bankruptcy law, so I don’t know which chapter you
started with and which chapter you ended with because you
can —

Audrey Kramer: The creditor withdrew their
complaint. There - the creditor withdrew, and because of
that, they closed the bankruptcy. It wasn’t discharged
like it had finalized.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: No, but the - but the

deed - the deed of trust stil survives.

410
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Audrey Kramer: Okay. So, anyway, the dollar amount,
again, they were challenging the validity of the dollar
amount on that. And we’ve not been able to address that
with anybody because we’ve been going - playing catch-up
through this process. BAlso, with regard to National
Default Servicing being duly appointed as a substitute of
trustee, we question the wvalidity of that, because, as Mr.
Van Patten may have mentioned, that - or maybe you said,
Your Honor, that this trustee - substitution of trustée
was done years ago, and it was done years ago. It was done
in December 5th, 2013. It was when Chase gave assignment
or substitution of trustee toward National Default.
However, Chase just filed in April 10 of 2018, their
assignments, self-assignment, self-fabricated fraudulent,
assigned the deed of trust to themselves for five years
after they have given assignment of deed of trust or
substitution - excuse me - substitution of trustee to
National Default. They didn’t have the authority to even
appoint them as the trustee, because they even have it
assigned themselves to do that. And so, I'm saying
there’s evidence of that. I'm giving you supporting -.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: As the successor to the
bank, prior to that, they had the authority to do that.

Audrey Kramer: Your Honor, there are several -.

LT
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Even if they didn’t
self-assign the note.

Audrey Kramex: I'm not sure that I agree with that.
And I think there are other courts in in this country that
have also disagreed with that, and it’s been challenged in
the Ninth Circuit. There’s a case file to that effect.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Not if they purchased
the underlying assets from another bank.

Audrey Kramer: But they didn’t, they got — they were
at - they had servicing rights, servicing rights. They
didn’t actually have the assets, they have servicing
rights of it.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, you’re just —
you’ re just saying, if they have servicing rights under
the deed of trust, then they have the right to appoint a
trustee.

Audrey Kramer: They didn’t have the - the deed of
trust was never assigned to Chase, it still has not been
lawfully assigned to Chase.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. Well, that's
been determined by the Federal Court already. Judge Du
determined that issue.

RAudrey Kramer: But, Your Honor, Judge Du determined

that there are other courts that -

Ua
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Judge Du determined
that. That’s [Indiscernible] [0:44:40] to this case. We
went over that the last time we were here.

Audrey Kramexr: Okay.

Judge John P. Sdhlegelmilch: QOkay? All right. So,
this is what I'm going to do. Cause of action number one,
unlawful foreclosure stands. OQkay? Cause of action
number four, for declaratory judgment, stands, which, by
the way, keeps Breckenridge in the case. The motion as it
relates to McDermott and Wedgewood is granted. There’s no
evidence to indicate that they had any ownership interest
in the property or have any bearing as to - or any
interest in the property. There’s just‘been no evidence of
ﬁhat at all. So, as McDermott Wedgewood, they’re
dismissed from the suit. Quiet title action is dismissed;
they haven’t presented a claim for quiet titlef and
doesn’t fit the criteria of chapter 40 for quiet title.
Nor have - nor have the Kramers properly proceeded on a
quiet title as required under Chapter 40, including fail
to provide the notices as required under the statute
[Indiscernible] [0:46:14] filing lis pendens regqulrement,
the statute failed to post the property as required under
the statute, failed to issue the summons named property
and naming the property in the complaint, period. So,

quiet title is dismissed. 2And they, haven’t made a claim

(LB
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for quiet title. The only thing that made a claim for
based on factual allegations in the complaint is that the
property was unlawfully foreclosgd on, and they should get
declaratory judgment that the property should go back and
wind back to its original position prior to the notice of
default and election to sell. 1It’s the only claim that
they’ve set forth that has any factual basis, okay, under
the complaint. So, the slander for title, as well is
dismissed. So, there’s no claim for slander of title -
Okay.

Audrey Kramer: You Honor, may I ask why we don’t
qualify for signed your title?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Because they haven't
slander your title. This is a judicial - a non-judicial
foreclosure sale that you’re contesting that was unlawful.
That doesn’t slander your title. You can’t go out and
sell this property tomorrow. I hate to tell you that.

Audrey Kramer: I understand that.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: But you cannot go out
and sell this property tomorrow without paying the bank
fully what they’re owed. So¢, there’s no slander, there’s
no preventing you frem selling this property. And you can
assert that. The Federal court already determined that
issue. So, you can’t even assert that that’s the case.

So, those two causes of action will stand under the
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standards expressed by the Nevada Supreme Court that we
take every inference in favor of the plaintiff based upon
the amended complaint. So, cause of action one in four
exists. Cause of action two and three are dismissed. And
this case goes forward on those two causes. And, of
course, I understand, declaratory judgment is more of a
remedy, but the fact is the remedy is going to be - it
would be asserted against Breckenrxidge in this particular
case for the unlawful foreclosure. So, if this court
ultimately reverses the sale, it affects the property
rights of Breckenridge. ©Okay? And I'm not taking away
any of your arguments at this point, I am clearly stating
for the record, that this is based on 12B standard for
dismissal.

Ace Van Patten: Thank you very much.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. As it relates to
discovery motion, there is a discovery motion, or there
was a individual case conference. I’'m not sure it’s a
discovery motion necessarily, but somebody tried to stop
discovery before the court allowed it, which is not
proper. You cannot start discovery before the court
allows discovery to commence, okay? And very clearly,
under the new Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, the early
case conference does not take place until 30 days after

the first answer is filed. And if other people filed other

L5



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

13

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

C N @

Q;=i
Transcri t‘loniglar “
g | 37

pleadings, then everybody has to be at the early case
conference, okay? So, the new Nevada rules of civil
procedure, and I would .suggest that you lcok at them, are
very clear on that issue. OCkay? So, and those were
effective as of March 1lst, and you try to hold your case
conference in March. So, under the new rule, it was a
nugatory.

Audrey Kramer: It was a what, I couldn’t hear you.

Judge Jochn P. Schlegelmilch: A nugatory, it didn’t
happen, because you have no right to ask for another case
conference because of the way the new rules - what the new
rule states. Now, that being said, an answer needs to be
filed, and I’'11 give you 20 days from today’s date to get
an answer on file. Once the answer is filed, then proceed
as normal, and I would hope that you will cooperate even
if you’re not in an agreement to discovery in this case,
because the fact is, that it very clearly says that the
rule‘- the rule itself says that it applies to attorney-
driven cases and pro per-driven cases with equal force.
Okay? So, just because we're at a pro per, doesn’t
necessarily mean that we cannot follow 16 (1). All right?
And in fact, 16 (1) specifically says it, right at the
end. This rule applies to non-representative parties.
Okay? All right.

Audrey Kramer: Thank you, Your Honor.

o)
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, but - So, I'm going
to — I know there was an opposition filed to the early
case conference report. I'm going to grant that insofar
as it wasn’t truly an early case conference report,
because an early case conference technically should not
have occurred at this point. 2&And you have the right to
refuse to participate at that point, okay?

Audrey Kramer: So, Your Honor, you said - I just
heard you say this, and I’m not aware of this. They filed
an opposition?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Yeah, they filed an
opposition -.

Audrey Kramer: [Indiscernible] [0:52:44] and they’'ve
not been served with that and/or would be -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Well, the court
received it the 22nd, so that’s the date the court got it.

Audrey Kramer: So, this has been an ongoing -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: On April 22nd, so -.

Audrey Kramer: This has been an ongoing issue, Your
Honor, that I’'ve brought to your attention the last time
we were here, October 5th in 2018, where we’re not getting
served, or -

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, are you living in
2364 Redwood Road -

RAudrey Kramexr: That is correct.
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: In Hercules,
California?

Audrey Kramer: That is correct, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. 945477

Audrey Kramer: That is correct, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So, there’s
an affidavit and certificate of mailing that'’s been filed
with the court. 8o, I don’t know if you’re having a
problem with the post office -

Audrey Kramer: No, Your Honcr.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: - or what’s going on,
but the fact of the matter is, they’ve asserted - they’ve
indicated that they have - and this is not - you know,
Hutchison & Steffen was the one - were the ones that filed
the objection to the early case conference.

Audrey Kramer: Your Honor, if I could just bring to
your attention, and I put this in my opposition to their
motion for non-opposition reply on our part that they use
NEO Post [phonetic] I think it’s called. And it’s a self-
stamping method. And I included copies of their envelopes
because they put on the date that they say that they put
it in the mail. And sometimes, it gets through and thé
post office doesn’t even stamp it. But there’s proof that
the post offices come back on a couple of occasions, which

I’ve included in my exhibits, to show you that this has

H18
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been going on. And the post offices put the correct date
when they actually deposit it into the mail. And so,
that’s what’s been happening, is that they’ve been holding
[Indiscernible] [0:54:31]. These gentlemen have done
themselves with somebody within their office; it’s been
neglectful in terms of putting that into the mail when
they give - 7

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. It is - all
right, all right. It is an ethical obligation of every
attorney to make sure that if their staff files and signs
a certificate of mailing, that it goes out in the mail on
the date it’s dated. So -

Audrey Kramer: That’s not happening, Your Honor.

‘Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: So, all right. Well -

okay. I’m not geoing to imply that, all right? So, the

fact of the matter is, one way or another, the early case
conference under the rule, didn’'t happen. Ali right? BSo,
you got to do it again once an answer is filed. I'm
giving them 20 days to do it. Who wants to write the
letter?

Kenneth Ching: 1’1l write, Your Honor.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Okay. Mr. Ching, write
the order, e-mail it to everybody. So, can you get it
done in about 10 days?

Kenneth Ching: Yes, Your Honor.

L9
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Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: All right. So, I'1l1l
give you 10 days to do the order. So, e-mail it to the
court’s judicial assistant and the Kramers,.and also NDSC.
Then, I will give you five days, anybody five days to make
any objection to the order, send it to me in Word or
WordPerfect. I prefer WordPerfect if you use it. I don’t

know if your phone uses it. But also, send me a copy

that’s editable. After I look at the objections, I will

modify it as I deem appropriate, and enter the order.
Orders in this court are always presented on plain
pleading. Proposed orders are always presented on plain
pleading per rule.

Kenneth Ching: I'm sorry, [Indiscernible] [0:56:27]
do you need the numbers on the side or without?

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: No, no. With the
numbers but not with your firm name on it.

Ace Van Patten: Got you.

Judge John P. Schlegelmilch: Got it? Plain pleading
paper. Okay? All right. That’s the order. Thank you.

Kenﬁeth Ching: Thank you, Your Honor.

[Audio End]

[0:56:47]

CERTIFICATE AND DECLARATION OF TRANSCRIBER
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I, [Judith Julian], am a disinterested party, and have no
interest in the outcome of the hearing.Further, I certify
this transcript is a true, complete, and accurate record,
to the best of my ability, of the recorded material

provided for transcription of proceeding.

Signed:

a2

Wt

Transcribed by: Judith Julian
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Private Investigator, William Paatalo’s Executed Declaration
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer,

Plaintiffs, '
Case No. 18-CV-00663

. DECLARATION OF PRIVATE
INVESTIGATOR WILLIAM J.
: PAATALO
N?gﬁonal Default Servicing Corp.,
etal,

Defendants,

I, William J. Paatalo, hereby declares as follows:

1. I'am an Oregon licensed private investigator under ORS 703.430, and
have met the necessary requirements under ORS 703.415. My Oregon PSID
number is 49411, | |

2. Tam over the age of cighteen years, am of sound mind, having never
been convicted of a felony or a crime or moral turpitudé. I am competent in all
respects to make this Declaration. I have personal knowledge of the matters
declared herein, and if called to testify, I could and would competently testify

thereto.

3. Ihave 17 years combined experience in law enforcement and private

investigation with concentration on the mortgage lending industry and enforcement}

1. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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actions seeking foreclosure of title or enforcement of possession. My Resume
(*CV”) is attached as “Exhibit 1.” \

4. Ihave worked exclusively over the last 8 — years and more than
15,000 hours conducting investigatory research and interviews related to mortgage
securitization and chain of title analyses. Typicéﬂy my investigations are at the
request of a homeowners or their counsel with the objective of determining
whether there are facts that corroborate both the actual assertions and implied
statements contained in various documents that purport to transfer, deliver or
otherwise imply possession or ownership of a debt, note or mortgage (deed of trust
in nonjudicial states). _ '

5. I have performed such analyses for residential real estate located in
many states, including, but not limited to Washington, Oregon, California,
Arizona, Nevada, Florida, Ohio, Montana, New Jersey, Illinois, and numerous

other states.
6."  As of this date, I have conducted more than 1,200 investigations.

7. Because of my education and experience I am familiar with and have

sufficient training and expertise to qualify as an expert, and I have testified as an

expert in state and federal judicial proceedings in various jurisdictions throughout |

the United States.

8. Most recently, I testified at trial as an expert witness on August 6,
2018 in Re: PennyMac Holdings, LLC v. Mario Carini, et. al., California Superior
Court, County of San Diego, Case No. 37-2017-00039675-CL-UD-CTL.

9. My specific areas of expertise that have been deemed qualified by the

courts are as follows:

2. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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. Knowledge of the “Pooling & Servicing Agreements” and various
Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC) filings associated with mortgage-
backed securitized trusts.

. Specific language in the PSA’s and Prospectus / Prospectus
Supplements involving securitization participants, key dates, “Servicer Advances,”
sources of third-party payments, and transfer and conveyancing requirements to
name a few. '

o Knowledge and use of ABSNet / MBSData and the interpretation of
its internal accounting data showing “advance payments” made to the certificate
holders / investors, as well as other information specific to accounting, chain of
title, and other aspects of securitization. -

. Chain of Title analyses based upon publicly recorded documents,
documents produced in discovery, and documents attached as exhibits to
foreclosure complaints. Documents typically included mortgages, deeds of trust,
assignment, notes, and allonges; in addition to documents filed under penalty of
perjury with the SEC. '

11. I was retained by the Plaintiff to review the chain of title for the Deed
of Trust (DOT) originated by Washington Mutual Bank, F.A. on or about April 4,
2008, as well as the Substitution of Trustee (SOT) recorded on 12/05/2013 which
are the subject of this action, and to render any opinions as to defects, deficiencies,
or fraud should they exist.

12.  The following documents were inspected and marked as exhibits:

Exhibit 2 — Amended Complaint & Exhibits

Exhibit 3 — Dayen Article

Exhibit 4 — Testimony Transcript — Robert Schoppe - FDIC
Exhibit § — Declaration of Neil Garfield, Esq.

Exhibit 6 — Chase letter to FDIC September 12, 2014

Exhibit 7 — Chase Emergency Motion — Proodian — FL - 2018
Exhibit 8 — Chase Supplemental Responses — Daee — TN - 3/30/15

3. Declaration of Private investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Exhibit 9 — Chase Supplemental Responses — Daee — 11/25/15
Exhibit 10 -Memorandum — Daee — TN ‘

Exhibit 11 — Purchase & Assumption Agreement

Exhibit 12 — JPMorgan Chase Stipulation of Fact

Exhibit 13 — Hearing Transcript — Schiefer v. Wells Fargo

Exhibit 14 — FOIA Response '

Exhibit 15 - Chase Collateral File Screenshots ~ Comparable Case #1
Exhibit 16 —~ Chase Collateral File Screenshots — Comparable Case #2
Exhibit 17 - Chase Consent Judgment — National Settlement

Exhibit 18 - Order — FL — Wells Fargo as Trustee v. Riley

Exhibit 19 - Chase “Investor” disclosure letters

Exhibit 20 - Affidavit of Marylin Lea

Exhibit 21 — Kelley Case — LNTH Screenshot

Exhibit 22 ~ LNTH Inv Codes — 3 comparable cases

Exhibit 23 - Deposition Transcript — Peter Katsikas — JPMorgan Chase
Exhibit 24 - Peter Katsikas testimony — Proodian

Exhibit 25 — Deposition Transcript — Matthew Dudas - JPMC

13.  Having reviewed the above documents, and having conducted well
over 300 investigations of WaMu mortgage loans involving the FDIC and Chase,
my professional opinions are as follows:

a. The chain of title to the Kramer DOT is clouded and cannot be verified.
JPMorgan Chase did not acquire, nor can it prove, ownership of any WaMu loan
via the “Purchase & Assumption Agreement” (PAA) with the FDIC, including the
Kramer DOT, and it rerna~ins an issue of fact as to whether it even acquired the
servicing rights to any WaMu loan, including the Kramer loan, that was securitized|
and sold prior to the FDIC Receivérship on September 25, 2008. |

b. Washington Mutual Bank (WMB) tacitly admitted in “Securities &

Exchange Commission” (SEC) filings that no endorseiments would be placed upon

4. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Pa;atalo

Gy



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

1| mistepresentations of beneficial ownership in order to create the illusion of

| Default Servicing Corporation” (NDS) as Trustee in the recorded Substitution of

C C

the notes it was selling and securitizing, and no assignments of the mbrtgages
would be prepared or recorded to document the securitization and sales of the loans
by Washington Mutual, Inc.’s subsidiaries. With full knowledge of these pre-
receivership securitization and sales transactions, 'including the sale of the Kramer
DOT, JPMorgan Chase (JPMC) has falsely asserted ownership to these loans using
a generic and nondescript Purchase & Assumption Agreement (PAA) with the
FDIC, and in turn, has executed self-serving assignments that contain material

standing and clean chains of title in thousands of foreclosure related cases. Such is |

the case here. My opinions, having previously been challenged as just theories, are
now supported by JPMC’s own admissions under oath in various court proceedings
across the United States. These admissions show (1) JPMC knows of no employees
or agents, cutrently or previously, who have any personal knowledge of any of the
facts of the underlying transactions which they represent in their self-authored
documents, and (2) in spite of these facts, JPMC admits that its employees forge
and fabricate the necessary documents, (assignments, note endorsements, alionges,
and affidavits) as needed for litigation; precisely the type of behavior discovered
and forbidden in the billion-dollar consent judgments issued in the past decade.
These behaviors continue unabated per my years of ongoing investigative research.
And,

c. The assignment of beneficial ownership of the Kramer DOT to JPMC,
which is fraudulent for the reasbns set forth below, is executed and recorded more

than four-years after JPMC asserted itself as beng:ﬁciary and substituted “National
Trustee (SOT) on 12/05/2013. As such, and for reasons set forth in this

5. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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frustees. .
EVIDENCE IN SUPPORT OF OPINIONS

I. Background - WaMu’s “Off-Balance Sheet Activities”

14,  On April 13, 2011, the U.S. Senate’s “Permanent Subcommittee On
Investigations” published an investigative report that includes a detailed analysis of]
WaMu’s securitization activities leading up to the financial collapse in 2008. The
report can found be found at the following government website address:

https://www.hsgac.senate.gov/subcommittees/investications/media/senate-
mvesiﬁga'ﬁons-suEcommidee-re]eases-levin-cob'urn-repoi’f—on-rlie—finaucial—

Crisis

15.  Key excerpts from the report are as follows:
Pg.116 —
E. Polluting the Financial System

Washington Mutual, as the nation’s largesf thrift, was a leadiélf issuer of home
loans. When many of those loans began to go bad, they caus
to the financial system.

According to a 2007 WaMu presentation, by 2006, Washington Mutual was the
second largest non agency issuer of mortgage backed securities in the United
States, behind Countrywide. _

By securit] zing billions of dollars in poor quality loans, WaMu and Long Beach
were abie to decrease their ris exgosure while passing along risk to others in the
financial system. They polluted the financial system with mortgage backed
securities which later incurred high rates of delinquency and loss.’ At times, WaMu
securitized loans that it had identified as [ikely to go delinquent, without disclosing
its analysis to investors to whom it sold the securities, and also securitized loans

tainted %y fraudulent information, without notifying purchasers of the fraud that
was discovered and known to the bank.

Pg. 119~ -

“WaMu Capital Corp. acted as an underwriter of securitization transactions
generally involving Washington Mutual Mortgage Securities Cotp. or WaMu

6. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Asset Acceptance Corp. Generally, one of the two entities would sell loans into a
securitization trust in exchange for securities backed by, the loans in question, and
WaMu Capital Corp. would then underwrite the securities consistent with industry
standards. As an underwriter, WaMu Capital Corp. sold mort%a e-backed
securities to a wide variety of institutional investors. WCC sold WaMu and Long
Beach loans and RMBS securities to insurance companies, pension funds, hedge
funds, other banks, and investment banks. It also sold WaMu loans to Fannie Mae
and Freddie Mac. WCC personnel marketed WaMu and Long Beach loans both in
the United States and abroad. :

Before WCC was able to act as a sole underwriter, WaMu and Long Beach worked
with a variety of investment banks to arrange uncferwyite, and sell its S
securitizations, including Bank of America, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank,
Goldman Sachs, Lehman Brothers, Merrill Lynch, Roval Bank of Scotland, and

UBS. To securitize its loans, WaMu typically assembled and sold a %ol of loans
gp a %llfhfyglu%tspemal-purpose entlty%SP that it established for that purpose,
ically a trust. ‘

The QSPE then issued RMBS securities secured by future cash flows from the loan
ol, Next, the QSPE — working with WCC and usually an investment bank - sold
e RMBS securtties to investors, and used the sale proceeds to repay WaMu for
the cost tgf tihe loan pool. Washington Mutual Inc. generally retained the right to
service the loans.

16. These findings are also supported by Washington Mutual, Inc.’s 10-Q
filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on June 30, 2008
which states on (p.60),

Off-Balance Sheet Activities

The C.qmg_any transforms loans into securities through a process known as
secyritization. When the Company securitizes loans, the loans are usually sold to a
qualifying special-purpose entity ("QSPE"), typ:calfy a trust. The QSPE, in turn,
1ssues securities, commonly reférred to as asset-backed securities, which are
secured by future cash flows on the sold loans. The QSPE sells the securities to
mvestors, which entitle the investors to receive specitied cash flows during the .
term of the security. The QSPE uses the proceeds from the sale of these securities
to pay the Company for the loans sold to the QSPE. These QSPEs are not
consolidated within the financial statements since they satisfy the criteria
established by Statement No. 140, Accountin {or Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities. In general, these critéria
require the QSPE to be legally isolated from the transferor (the Company), be
limited to permitted activities, and have defined limits on the types of assets it can
hold and the permitted sales, exchanges or distributions of its assets.

17.  Itis my opinion that the Kramer DOT was securitized and sold into
the secondary market through one of WaMu'’s subsidiaries and its “off-balance

sheet activities. As will be explained in-depth below, JPMC has specific “MSP”
7. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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(Mortgage Servicing Platform) screenshots within its custody and control that will
show and prove (1) the sale prior to the FDIC Receivership, and (2) the investor

codes for each sale and transfer.

II.  JPMC did not acquire the assets of WaMu’s subsidiaries

17. Attached as Exhibit 11 is the widely publicized copy of the PAA
dated September 25, 2008 between the FDIC and JPMorgan Chase. Page 2 of the
PAA states,

“Assets” means all assets of the Failed Bank purchased pursuant to Section 3.1.
Assets owned by Subsidiaries of the Failed Bank are not ‘Assets’ within the
meaning of this definition.”

18.  The relevance to this will be explained further below.

III. No schedule or inventory of assets listing any specific WaMu
mortgage loan acquired by JPMC exists. This includes servicing rights.

19.- One fact is now well established — no schedule or inventory of assets
listing any specific WMB mortgage loan acquired by JPMC, including the Kramer
DOT, exists or has ever been produced or disclosed. The reason for this fact is
most, if not all, residential mortgage loans originated by WMB‘Were sold and
securitized through WaMu’s “Off-Balance Sheet Activities.” |

20. The testimony of Lawrence Nardi, the operatiohs unit manager and.

mortgage officer of JPMC, who previously wotked with WAMU and was picked
upl by JPMC after WMB failed confirmed that no schedule of assets exists, (see;
Deposition of Lawrence Nardi in the matter of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as

successor in interest to Washington Mutual Bank v. Waisome, Florida 5th Judicial

8. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Circuit Case No. 2009CA005717.

http://www.scrib.com/doc/102949976/120509JPMCvWaisomeFLL awrenceNardiD
eposition)

Here are the relevant questions and answers:

Q: (p.57, beginning at line 19) “Okay The are you aware of any type of
schedule of foans that would have been created to represent the -- either the loans
that were assets, loans or loans that were serviced by WAMU? Are you -- was the -
- do you know if there is a schedule or database of loans like that?”

A: (p.58, beginning at line 1) “I know that there was a schedule
contemplated in certain documents related to the purchase. That schedule has never,
materialized in any form. We’ve looked for it in countless other cases. We've
never been able to produce it in any previous cases. It certainly be a wonderful
thing to have, but it’s as far as I know, it doesn’t exist, although it was it was
contemplated in the documents.

Q: (p.260 beginning at line 18) “Have you ever in your duties of being a
loan analyst loan operations specialist, have you ever seen a FDIC bill of sale or a
receiver’s deed or an assignment of mortgage or an allonge?”

A: (p.260, beginning at line 23) “For loans, I’m assuming you’re talking
about the WAMU loan that was subject to the purchase here”

Q. (p.261, line 1) “Right.”

A. (p.261, beginning at line 2) “No there is no assignments of mo e.
There’s ngpallonges.g'mereg's no in the thousands of loansgtnhlelxlt I have coggg ?%
contact with that were a part of this purchase, I've never once seen an assignment
of mortgage. There is simply not they don’t exist. Or allonges or anythin

transferring ownership from W to Chase, in other words. Speciﬁcaﬁy,
endorsements and things like that.”

21.  Attached as Exhibit 5 is the Declaration of Neil F. Garfield, Esq.

submitted in Re: Mario Polychronas, Debtor - US BK CD-CA Case No. 1:11-bk-
18306-vk retrieved from the Federal Court’s PACER System. Pér Garfield’s sworn

testimony, Mr. Schoppe stated “that there never was any instrument prepared or

9. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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executed between JPMorgan Chase and either the FDIC or the bankruptcy trustee
in which Chase acquired the loans. Specifically, he stated, 'if you are looking for
an assignment of loans, you won't find it because it does not exist,’” (Exhibit 5,
7). |

22. This is supported by Robert Schoppe’s own testimony provided as
Exhibit 4 whereby Schoppe testified,

“Q. Are there any provisions in the Purchase and Assumption Agreement that
talks to who's going to keep all the records, who's going to maintain the records if
they're needed down the road‘? '

A. Yes, there is.

Q. Okay. Explain that to us.

A. There is a continuing cooperation clause in there which basically says, in
layman's terms, whoever has the records, if the other party needs them, we can get
them.

Q. And soin thls case, who maintains the records for all of the WAMU
originated loans?

A. JPMorgan Chase holds all those records.

Q. Under the Purchase and Assumption Agreement, did it. provide that y'all
were going to get like a list of all the loans or anything like that? Is there some
kind of list that y'all have at FDIC, as receiver?

A. The agreement does call for us to get a list of the loans. We agreed that we
would not get them. There were tens of hundreds of thousands of loans. We had no
way of actually getting and -- we usually -- every other bank, we will geta
download of all the loans. They number in the thousands. Here, they were
numbering in the millions, I believe, tens of millions, and we simply didn't have
capacity to download that information, store it someplace where we could get it. So
we agreed with JPMorgan that we would not take a download. If we needed the
information, we would just get it from them.

(Note) Schoppe also testified to.the following:

10. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Q. So when JPMorgan Chase took over ot bought these purchases, do they
pay something for this Purchase and Assumption agreement? _

A. Again, ] think -- I tried to explain it. Perhaps I didn't do a very good job,
so let me do that again. They assumed all of the assets, and they also assumed
which assets were -- round numbers, please don't quote me on that — I think it was
about $330 billion. They also assumed; I believe it was about $300 billion worth of
liabilities. ' '

23.  No schedule or inventory of any specific asset is also supported by an

[FOIA response letter from the FDIC on March 30, 2017 whereby the FDIC could

find no responsive documents regarding any schedule of assets on the books of
WMB. This FOIA letter was provided to me by a client as part of an investigation.

(Exhibit 14). _
24.  For years now, JPMC has been getting away with a massive .

presumption that it acquired multi-billions of dollars’ worth of Toans created by
“Washington Mutual” via the “Purchase & Assumption Agreement” (PAA), yet
the mortgage loans they claim to have acquired, speciﬁcé.lly the Kramer DOT, was
not “on the books” of “Washington Mutual Bank” at the time the “Office of Thrift
Supervision”‘ (OTS) took control of WMB.

- IV. Washington Mutual Bank routinelF disclosed in SEC Prospectus
filings for public frus at the notes it was selhing were not going fo be
endorsed “or ofherwise marked fo reflect the transler” to the trusts, and no .
assignments would be prepared, which resulfed in the intentional clouding of

tles. :
25. The following admissions / “Risk Factors” were made by WMB to the

investors in the WMABS 2007-HE2 Trust’s 424(B) Prospectus Supplement on P.
21 (SEC link -http://www.secinfo.com/d16V Ay.u48.htm#1stPage)

For transactions in which WMB fsb holds some or all of the mortgage |
notes and mortgages as custodian on behalf of the trust, investors should
consider the following:

11. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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The trustee will not physically possess some or all of the mortgage notes
and mortgages related to the mortgage loans owned by the Trust. Instead, WMB
fsb will hold some or all of the mortgage notes and mortgages as custodian on

behalf of the trust. The mortgage notes and mortgages held by WMB fsb will

not be endorsed or otherwise marked to reflect the transfer to the trust, and
assignments of the mortgages to the trust will not be prepared or recorded.
As a result, if a third party were to obtain physical possession of those mortgage
notes or mortgages without actual knowledge of the prior transfer to the trust, the
trust’s interest in those mortgage notes and mortgages could be defeated, thereby
likely resulting in delays or reductions in distributions on the certificates.

For transactions in which WMB fsb holds some or all of the mortgage
notes and morigages as custodlan on behalf of the trust, investors should
consider the following:

With respect to each mortgage held by WMB fsb as custodian on behalf of
the trust, an assignment of the morigage transferring the beneficial interest under
the mortgage to the trustee or the trust will not be prepared or recorded. In
addition, an assignment of the mortgage will not be prepared or recorded in
connection with the sale of the mortgage loan from the mortgage loan seiler to
the depositor.

26. These same admissions / disclosures wete made by WMB in
many of their public securitization transactions filed with the SEC, and it is my
opinion that this was WMB’s common business practice with its private
placement transactions and GSE sales to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac as well.
This is supported by the Nardi testimony as will be explained further below.

, V. Evidence shows a pattern and practice of fabricating
endorsements and allonges upon notes, as the MISP System show notes are
endorsed with WaMu signatures after 9/25/2008.

27.  Though no copy of the original Kramer Note was provided for
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inspection, the following information is relevant for purposes of understanding
the overall conduct and widespread practice of forging and fabricating
documents beyond just the assignments.

28.  Attached as Exhibits 15 & 16 are collateral file servicing system
screenshots produced in discovery in other cases which I was involved. Both of
these comparable cases involve loans originated by WMB with the notes bearing
endorsements “in blank” by a WaMu officer. | |

29. The screenshots in Exhibit 15 show that the Note was taken into
Chase custody on “Jul 18, 2009 5:49.59" and that the Note was subsequently
endorsed “WaMu to Blank” on “Feb 24, 2012 12:14:51,” with another
“facsimile” endorsement of “WaMu to Blank” being created on “Oct 28, 2014
4:08:57” (Exhibit 15, P. 3, and “Exception Add Date & Time” P.4).

30. Attached as Exhibit 16 are discovery documents provided by JPMC
in “comparable case #2.” The screenshots in this exhibit shows “NEN1 - Note
Endorsement 1 — WAMU to Blank — Sep 24, 2013, 12:00:00 AM” (Exhibit 16,

P.2).
31. My opinion in these qomparable cases is that the notes were

endorsed after the FDIC’s takeover of WaMu on September 25, 2008, as there is
an abundance of information now in the public démain, as well as within the
realm of my personal investigative experiences, to universally suggest that the
lérgest servicers create note endorsements and/or allonges when missing, or
when needed in litigation to prove-up “standing.” These are commonly referred
to in foreclosure proceedings as “ta-dah” endorsements, which are never dated or
witnessed by anyone having personal knowledge as to any underlying
transactions. ,

32. On September 25, 2015, a hearing was held in Schiefer v. Wells

13. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Fargo Bank, USBK — WD — ARK, 5:14-AP-0706. 1 retrieved a copy of the
hearing transcript' from the Federal Court’s PACER System and I have attached

as Exhibit 13. From my review. of the testimony provided, Wells Fargo’s
witness, Robert Bateman, provided incriminating testimony as follows That

JPMC applied the WaMu officer’s endorsement upon the note in 2013:

P.35, L15-25 & 36, L1-5:

Question: "With respect to your prior answers as defined above, you
indicated that the promissory note has never been aggregated into a larger of
mortgage notes. Please explain the legal nature of the transfer in which you .
acquired this individual promissory note."

Response: "Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. purchased the promissory note on
February 1, 2007 from JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as successor
in interest from the FDIC as receiver of Washington Mutual Bank."

(NOTE: This statement is an impossibility since WaMu had not failed
until 9/25/2008).

P.44,1L13-25 & P. 45, L1-11:

Q So, from your -~ from your review before today and — and going through
this a little bit today, other than the endorsements, is this the same note -- or does
it appear to be the same note as what we've been taiking about on the proof of
claim and on the other exhibit?

A This copy of the note has a second endorsement on it that we have not
previously discussed or -- or looked at, as far as I remember. I have seen a -- the
original note, and I have seen a copy of the original note, which is the same as
this copy. I have seen this copy before with the two endorsements on it that are in
our electronic scanning system. Our system doesn't have a copy that has -- that
has the redaction, but I have looked at-a copy of this note with both endorsements
on it. And when I say both endorsements, the second endorsement is a blank
endorsement that is signed by Washington Mutual Bank, N.A.

14, Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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Q Okay. And could you just read that whole endorsement to me, please,
for the record? :

A "Pay to the order of blank without recourse Washington Mutual Bank,
F.A. by" -- and then there's a signature, and the name under it -- "Leta
Hutchinson, Assistant Vice President."

Q Mr. Bateman, have you seen these -- these discovery responses before?
A No, I don't think T have.
P.46, L1-25 & P.47 thru 48:

Q Okay. Well, what I'd ask you to do for the Court is read the
Request to Admit Number 3, which appears at the top of page 6, and then the

answer. If you'll just wait a second so everyone in the courtroom can get there.
All right. Please.

A "That at the time you acquired physical possession of the original note,
it bore both the endorsements shown on the copy of the last page of the
promissory note attached hereto as Exhibit A."

Answer to Request for Admission Number 3: "Denied. The note bore the
endorsement from First Western Mortgage to Washington Mutual Bank, N.A.
when received on February 14th, 2007. The endorsement in blank from
Washington Mutual Bank, N.A. was completed in February 2013 pursuant to a
limited power of attorney appointing ~ appointing Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, as the
lawful attorney in fact for JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as
successor.in interest from the FDIC as receiver of Washington Mutual Bank. A
copy of the limited power of attorney is attached as Exhibit A."

Q Okay. Based upon your reading of that response, when was that second
endorsement added?

A I'll read again what it says: "The endorsement in blank from Washington
Mutual Bank, N.A. was completed in February of 2013."

Q And in — in everyday laymen's terms, what would that mean to you?

15. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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A It means what it says.
Q Which is?

A On February '13, there was an endorsement in blank on the note.

| Q Well, it says "completed." Who -- who completed?

A From Washington Mutual Bank, N.A.
Q Who would have completed the endorsement?

A 1just read what this says. It says this was — this was completed by

Washington Mutual Bank. Well, in reading further -- let me continue to read
after that. Excuse me. Reading further:

"Pursuant to a limited power of attorney appointing Wells Fargo Bank,

N.A. as the attorney in fact for JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as
successor in interest from the FDIC as receiver of Washington Mutual Bank."

Q So, reading further, what do you think?

A That the endorsement was by JPMorgan Chase Bank.
Q I'm sorry?

A That the endorsement was done by JPMorgan Chase Bank.

33. Attached as Exhibits 8 & 9 are Supplemental Responses

produced by JPMC and a Memorandum Exhibit 10 in the case captioned Daeev.
JPMorgan Chase USDC, MD TN Case No. 3:13-cv-1332 which I retrieved from |
the Federal Court’s PACER System. In Daee, two allonges were created on the
| subject Note by JPMC employees as needed to prove up the standing issues in
the litigation. The chronoiogical sequence for the creation of these allonges is
outlined in JPMC’s Supplemental Response (Exhibit 8).

16. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J, Paatalo
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34, Attached as Exhibit 9 is JPMC’s Supplemental Responses dated
3/30/2015 which admit the following: '

4. State the dates JP Morgéﬁ Chase Bank, N.A. executed the allonges and
state the basis for this knowledge, '

RESPONSE: (Objections Omitted) Chase's internal records indicate that
the allonges were executed shortly before the foreclosure proceedings at issue in
this case began.

1. Identify the employees, supervisors or agents of JP Mergan Chase
Bank, N.A. who has personal knowledge of the assignments and endorsements
that occurred on December 17, 1998 and the allonges.

RESPONSE: (Objections Omitted) [d]espite a diligent search, at this time
Chase is not aware of any employees, supervisors, or agents that have
independent personal knowledge or recollection of the assignments,
endorsements or allonge, apart from knowledge gained from a review of relevant
business records.

2. Identify every person known to JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. who has,
or who claims or purports to have, kmowledge of facts which you contend support
the allegations contained in your Answer and Motion for Summary Judgment.

RESPONSE: (Objections Omitted) Chase states that the documents Chase
relied on speak for themselves. Chase's position in this case is based on its
review of business records, and despite a diligent search, at this time Chase is
not aware of any employees, supervisors, or agents that have independent
personal knowledge of the facts at issue.

35. JPMC admits that its employees created the assignment and note
allonges despite having no personal knowledge of the underlying transactions
and could produce no witnesses past or present with any knowledge of the facts
surrounding the case. JPMC’s position was that the self-serving documents they

produced simply “spoke for themselves.” This is a tacit admission of non-

17. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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compliance with the National Settlement and Consent Judgment attached as
Exhibit 17. A
36. Insanctioning Chase for its discovery abuses and delay tactics, the

Court’s analysis concluded in its memorandum (Exhibit 10),

“dfier the court’s October 10, 2014 Memorandum pointed out multiple
missing steps and unsupported assumptions inherent in Chase’s representations
to the court, Chase conducted further investigation and has now reversed course,
contending that those transactions are irrelevant. Chase now essentially takes
the position that the documents it recorded with the Sumner County Register of
Deeds were (and remain) legally irrelevant and should be ignored in the court’s
analysis. After months of delay, Chase now claims that no.depositions are
warranted because, according to Chase, none of the employees or former
employees have any personal knowledge of the underlying transaction(s,]”

“Chase seems lo believe that it can operate on its own schedule, that it can’
selectively produce records that favor its position (whatever that position may be
at a certain point in time), and that it can prevent reasonable inquiry into the
veracity of its (shifting) representations and the import of underlying records.”

37. The Daee and Schiefer cases represent a common theme in the
hundreds of cases I have investigated involving alleged securitization of loans
with WMB / JPMC involvement, I believe it is likely that the same holds true in
all cases. |

38. . JPMC appears to have taken the position that it acquired beneficial
interest in the Kramer DOT and loan via the PAA and the FDIC Receivership of
WMB. But this is not what the publicly recorded assignment reflects. Attached as
an exhibit to the complaint (Eihibit 2) is the only recorded assignment per my
research which purports the following: |

18. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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DOC #: 578946
Recorded: 04/10/2018
Executed: 04/4/2018

Assignor: Washington Mutual Bank, a Federal Association
Assignee: JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,

39. The assignment is executed by “Debbie A. Swayzer — Vice President
— JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Attorney In Fact for the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation as Receiver.of Washington Mutual Bank F/K/A

Washington Mutual Bank, FA.” First, the FDIC is not named as the assignee, as

this was WaMu who ceased to exist as of 9/25/2008. Second, the assignment is a

self-to-self transfer with JPMC playing both sides of the transaction even though

JPMC names the defunct WaMu as the assignee. And third, there.is no reference
to any power of attorney document recorded in conjunction with this assignment
showing the FDIC’s involvement, as well as JPMC’s authority to act on its
behalf as an agent. This document is clearly fraudulent on its face, and this is
quite common per my experience. It should be noted that I was personally
solicited by a document fabrication mill in Idaho to forgé and back-date an
assignment in 2015 for a WaMu loan with a defective chain of title. (See:
Exhibit 3).

40. Also attached to the complaint is the Substitution of Trustee (SOT)
recorded on 12/05/2013 whereby JPMC substitutes NDS as Trustee in place of
“California Reconveyance Company”, the original Trustee named on the DOT.
The recorded documents show that JPMC did t_16t become beneficiary until more
than four-years later. Though the assignment somehow implies that JPMC was
acting as agent for the FDIC, there is no such authority implied in the SOT.
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There simply is no evidence to show JPMC having any authority as a beneficiary
when it executed the SOT in 2013, and as such, the SOT appears to be invalid.

V1. JPMorgan Chase admits to destroying WaMu records and
executing assisnments and endorsements for loans _“not reflected on the
books and records of WMB as of September 25, 2008.

41, In addition to the tacit admissions in SEC filings outlined above,
attached as Exhibit 6 is a letter from JPMorgan Chase’s counsel to the FDIC
dated “September 12, 2014.” This exﬁibit was taken directly from the FDIC’s
gow}emmental website located at: https://www.fdic.gov.

42,  This letter is a notice to the FDIC that JPMC sought
reixﬁbu:rsement for expenses related to correcting defective chains of title on -
various loans that “were not reflected on the Books and records of Washington
Mutual Bank” at the time WMB failed on September 25, 2008.

| 43, JPMC makes the following tacit admissions in the letter:

The additional matters giving rise to JPMC's indemmnity rights relate to costs
incurred in connection with mortgages held by WMB prior to September

25,2008. These costs have resulted from aspects of-and circumstances related to-
WMB mortgages that were not reflected on the books and records of WMB as of .

September 25, 2008, and include:

Costs incurred by JPMC to expunge records associated with WMB morigages as
a result of errors in mortgage documentation occurring prior to September 25,
2008, including erroneously recorded satisfactions of mortgages and associated
legal fees and disbursements.

Costs incurred by JPMC to correct various defects in the chains of title for WMB
mortgages occurring prior to September 25, 2008, including recording and legal
services fees.

20. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo

a



10

11

12

13

- 14

15

le

17

18

19

20

C 21

22

23

24

25

26

27

« - €

At the time of WMB' s closure, the above liabilities were not reflected on its
books and records.

44. Again, it is my opinion that due to the defective and non-existent
chain of title for the Kramer DOT, JPMC has taken advantage by assigning and
transferring the DOT and Note unto itself. But again, no Note has been presented
for my inspection.

45. 1am not an expert in the law. However, I am informed by various
counsel in similar foreclosure related cases that the original note must be present
or re-established for enforcement to occur and that I should presume that the
language of the Uniform Commercial Code applies in all states when enforcing a

mottgage or deed of trust, to wit:

"9.203 - Attachment and enforceability of security interest; proceeds; supporting
obligations; formal requisites. (a) A security interest attaches to collateral when.

it becomes enforceable against the debtor with respect to the collateral, unless an

agreement expressly postpones the time of attachment.

(b) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (c) through (i), a security
interest is enforceable against the debtor and third parties with respect to the
collateral only if:

(1) Value has been given;”

46. Given the absence of corroboration of the implied assertion of a
transaction in which the debt was purchased for value, it appears that these
preconditions are not satisfied in this case. As an investigator I take the absence
of any attempt to re-establish the note to mean that the current parties do not
have any evidence of having purchased the debt for value, to which my

investigation has found no such evidence.
VIL. JMorgan Chase adniits that mortgage assignments are
21. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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transfer ownership, but only servicing rights.

47. From: Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. as Trustee for WaMu Mortgage
Pass Through Certificates, Series 2005-PR4 Trust v. Riley, Circuit Court
Fifteenth Judicial Dist., Palm Beach County, FL, Case No.:50-2016-CA4-010759-
XXXX-MB:

(Order attached as Exhibit 18.)

Plainiiff Engaged in Unclean Hands Trying to Prove Standing to
Foreclose

Unclean Hands, Generally

1. “Onewho comes into equity must come with clean hands else all relief
will be denied him regardless of merit of his claim, and it is not essential
that act be a crime; it is enough that it be condemned by honest and
reasonable men.” Roberts v. Roberts, 84 So.2d 717 (Fla.1956)( emphasis
added). . '

2. Therefore, even if Plaintiff had standing to foreclose (a meritorious claim),

- Plaintiff would be denied the equitable relief of foreclosure upon a finding
that Plaintiff took actions in pursuing this foreclosure that reasonable and
honest men would condemn.

3. The Florida Supreme Court noted “the principle or policy of the law in

withholding relief from a complainant because of ‘unclean hands’ is
punitive in its nature.” Busch v. Baker, 83 So. 704 (Fla. 1920). As U. §S.
Supreme Court Justice Black wrote:

“IT]ampering with the administration of justice in the manner

indisputably shown here involves far more than an injury to a single litigant. It is

a wrong against the institutions set up to protect and safeguard the public, .
institutions in which fraud cannot complacently be tolerated consistently with the
good order of society.” Hazel-Atlas Glass Co. v. Hartford-Empire Co., 322 U.S.
238, 246, 64 8. Ct. 997, 88 L. Ed. 1250 (1944).

48. Also, in the Order,

22. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J, Paatalo




10

11

12

13

14

15

le

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

C ¢

21, Attrial, Ms. Marcott admitted that any claim JP Morgan Chase ever owned or sofd
Defendant’s note and mortgage was false. She testified that Defendant’s note and mortgage wers

not assets of Washington Mutual after 2005, As such, the 2010 sssignment could not truthfully '

document & travsaction that JPMorgan Chase obtained Defendant’s note and morigage from
Washington Mutual and sold it to the Plaintiff Trust, This transaction never happened.

22, Moreover, the 2015 assignment contains a materially false statement that JP
Morgan purchased Defendant’s note and mortgage from the Federal Deposit Insurance
Cotporation (“FDIC™) as Receiver for Washington Mutual, ‘

23, The note snd mortgage were not assets of Washington Mutual to be sold by the
FDIC Receiver to JP Morgan Chase aud or 10 be sold by JP Morgan Chase to the Plalntiff Trust.
Plaintif’s Trial Witness admitted the statement that the FDIC sold this loan as Receiver to
Washington Mutual to JP Morgan Chase who sold it to the Plaitiff is materiatly falsc.

49. In the case Proodian v Washington Mutual Bank, F.A.. JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. et. al., JPMC employee “Matthew Dudas — Legal Specialist
I11” is asked about the assignment of Proodian’s WaMu Mortgage fiom the FDIC
to Chase (Exhibit 25). The assignment, and thousands of others like it, state that
the FDIC is assigning the mortgage to JPMorgan Chase, and that JPMC is

executing as attorney in fact for the FDIC. However, when Dudas is asked point

blank whether the FDIC assigned the mortgage, here was his response:

Q Wwas the mortgage assigned from FDIC
to Chase?- | .
MS. GABSI: Objection to form.

A No. . ' "

,

50. Dudas testified that this assignment does not transfer any

23. Declaration of Private Investigator — William I. Paatalo
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“ownership” rights in the mortgage, but rather ONLY transfers the “servicing
rights.”

Q Let me get this clear what this

document means and says to me, that this

document represents an assignment of servj;q/

right, is that correct? .

A VYes. .
Q That this document does reflect
an Assignment of Mortgage, is M@orrect?
MS. GABSI: Obj to form.

A It's not an‘aégé ent ownership.

51. Nowhere in any of these assignments does it specifically disclose
that it is only servicing rights that are being assigned. JPMC clearly states in its
self-authored Kramer assignment that it is transferring beneficial interest in the
DOT and Note unto itself.

VHI. Chase admits the loans were sold and securitized, then denies.

52. In cases I have reviewed across the country, borrowers have made
and continue to make, inquiries to “Chase” seeking the identity of the investor(s)
of their WMB loan(s) only to be told, '

“Your loan was sold into a public security man%ged by JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A. and may include a number of investors, As the

24. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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servicer of your loan, Chase is authorized by the security to handle an
related congems on their behalf ” y ty to y

53. Attached as Exhibit 19 are two letters provided by JPMC to other
borrower clients of mine with this exact language. In both cases, after having
made these disclosures to the borrowérs, JPMC took the position in coutt that it
was the sole owner of the loans by the authority granted in the PAA, and there
were no investors associated with these loans because, “WaMu never sold or
securitized the loans.” '

54. This same situation occurred in a case I was involved in Ontario,
Canada. Attached as Exhibit 20 is an affidavit of JPMC’é Marilyn Lea in the
Canada case. Per the Lea Affidavit 20 & 21, she states that the letters sent from
Chase stating that the subject loan had been “sold into a public security managed
by [Chase]” were “sent in error.” -

55. “Exhibit V” to the Affidavit shows an MSP Servicing System
screenshot of the “Loan Transfer History.” (LNTH) Per the Affidavit 423 (a)(b),
Lea states that in November 2009 the loan “was transferred to Investor ID A11”
and that “Investor A11 was Chase owned.” She also attests that “Investor A70”
was also Chase owned. In cases I have been involved investigating Chase and
these investor codes involving loans that were owned or serviced by WaMu.and
its subsidiaries, almost all codes coming into question are attested to as “bank
owned” / “Chase Owned,” even when codes exist in the loan transfer history
screenshots moving from “OLD/INV” to “NEW/INV” (Ola Inveétor to New
Investor). This is highly unlikely, unusual, and is indicia of a “cover-up.”

56. Attached as Exhibit 21 is a screenshot taken from JPMC’s MSP
System regarding a WaMu loan originated on 08/07/2007 in a case I was
involved. Two of the codes in this screenshot are “A01” and “A11.” The “A11”
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code existed in WaMu’s system on 12/17/07 and was not a code created by
Chase as attested to in the Lea Affidavit. As explained further below, the “A01”
code belonged to the WaMu subsidiary “Washington Mutual Asset Acceptance
Corporation,” and I believe investor code “A11” was a private investor aﬁd not
“bank owned;” likely “Washington Mutual Mortgage Securities Corporation”
(WMMSC). |

57. Attached as Exhibits 22 are Pre-Receivership MSP screenshots in
two other cases I am involved. Each of these screenshots show investor code
“A01” and in each case, Chase claims the loans were never sold or securitized,
and were “bank owned” and acquired through the PAA. This is false.

58. Like these cases, it is my opinion that the Kramer “Loan Transfer
History” screenshot within JPMC’s MSP System, if produced, will very likely
show the investor code(s) “AO1” and/or “A11” signifying the securitization and
sale of the Kramer DOT and Note through WaMu'’s subsidiaries.

IX. JPMC’s “AO1 Stipulation” is an admission against its own
interests. '

59.  Attached as Exhibit 12 is a “Joint Trial Stipulation Re Issues Of
Facts” signed by JPMorgan Chase Bank on June 7, 2017 in the matter of Harry
M. Fox v. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.4. et. al., CA SC LA, Case No. Bé602491.
I was personally retained as an expert witness in the Fox case.

60. The following facts were admitted and stipulated to by
JPMorgan Chase Bank on P.2, |
/
/
/

26. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J, Paatalo
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“8. Investor Code AOI in the Loan Transfer History File represents
WaMu Asset Acceptance Corporation.”

“9. Investor Code 369 in the Loan Transfer History File represents
Washington Mutual Mortgage Securities Corporation.”

“10. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. did not purchase the loan from the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.”

61. JPMC has contested my opinion in similar cases prior to their
stipulation that the “A01” code belonged to one of the WalMu subsidiaries
WMAAC or WMMSC. Numerous witnesses for JPMC have testified in
depositions and trials that my theory is incorrect because (1) the investor code
“A01” was assigned to WMB (2) the code signified “bank owned,” and (3) that
the loans were never sold or securitized. -

62. Attached as Exhibit 23 is the deposition transcript of JPMC
witness Peter Katsikas who contradicts JPMC’s own stipulation regarding
Investor Code AQOI. Per P. 45-46,

Q. So what three characters — well, let's put it another way. What
characters would indicate a Chase-owned asset -- a WaMu-owned asset? Excuse
me.

A. For these two loans?

0. Yes.

A. 401,

0. 4017
A. Yeah,

Q. And that AO! stands for what?
A. That's just the three digit code, which is bank-owned.
Q. A0I1?

27. Declaration of Private Investigator — William J. Paatalo
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A. Uh-huh.

63. 'Petcr Katsikas is the same witness used by JPMC in many cases,
and he takes the same position in the court transcript marked as Exhibit 24, P,
81,

THE COURT: Okay. And then AOI was an ID used specifically for loans that
came from WaMu?

THE WITNESS: As being bank-owned.
THE COURT: So bank-owned loans from Washington Mutual?
THE WITNESS: Correct. Yes, that's correct.

64. Inthe Fox case, a public trust was identified in the chain of title,
and the trust was declared the beneficiary of the Fox Deed of Trust. To sustain its
argument that the loan was properly securitized and sold to the trust, JPMC and
U.S. Bank, N.A. as Trustee both stipulated that the Depositor entity WMAAC
purchased and then sold the loan to the trust prior to the Receivership, and as

such, the loan was not a part of the purchase with the FDIC.

65. Strictly from a title perspective, the above evidence clearly shows
that WMB purposefully and intentionally chose not to document any chain of title
to the mortgages and deeds of trust and note(s) upon selling the loans prior to its
failure on September 25, 2008, and that JPMC has taken it upon itself to not only
“expunge records associated with WMB mortgages as a result of errors in
mortgage documentation occurring prior tfo, '] but a.lso: to “correct various
defects in the chains of title for WMB mortgages occurring prior tfo.”JThis means
there is no chain of title that can be determined outside of fabricated paperwork. In-
other words, the chain of title to tens of thousands of WaMu loans, including the |
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|| Kramer DOT, are “clouded” and fatally defective due to WaMu no longer being in
existence. Yet in this case, the fatal defects did not impede the defunct WaMu from}

assigning the Kramer DOT and Note ten years after its demise. _

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United State and Nevada
that the above is true and correct, and that this declaration was executed this 8th

day of June 2019.
g

) William J Paapsio ) ' :
Private Investigator — Oregon PSID# 49411
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Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for 1186 - 1195
Summary Judgment :
Filed: May 21, 2019

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion 1158 - 1168
for Summary Judgment
Filed: May 2, 2019

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion to Continue 4911 - 4915
Hearing
Filed: June 8, 2020

Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for 1149 - 1157
Summary Judgment
Filed: May 2, 2019
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL
PAGE NO.
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Late Filed 4739 - 4772
Motion for Summary Judgment
Filed: April 8, 2020
Order Granting Telephonic Extension 5091
Filed: March 11, 2021
Order ’ 5005 - 5014
Filed: December 16, 2020
Order Granting Motion to Dismiss 571 -574
Plaintiff’s Complaint
Filed: October 24, 2018
Order Denying Motion to Strike Portions 4921 - 4923

of NDSC’s First Supplemental Disclosures
Filed: June 18, 2020

Order - Motion for Leave to Amend Complaint 5015 -5016
to Include Fraud Case of Action
Filed: December 16, 2020

Notice of Entry of Order Granting 5017 - 5020
National Default Servicing Corporation’s

Motion in Limine to Exclude and Disqualify

William J. Paatalo

Filed: January 11, 2021

Order Granting In Part and Denying 1201 - 1205
in Part Defendants’ Motions to

Dismiss

Filed: May 24, 2019
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO. VOLUME

Order Granting National Default Servicing 5003 - 5004 XI
Corporation’s Motion in Limine to

Exclude and Disqualify William J. Paatalo

Filed: December 16, 2020 '

Order Granting Continuance 4918 - 4920 Xl
Filed: June 9, 2020

Order Dismissing Appeal 4960 - 4961 X1
Filed: November 9, 2020

Order Directing Transmission of Record 5085 - 5086 XI
Filed: February 22, 2021

Pages 787 - 798 (Duplicate ) Copied in error

Plaintff’s Corrected Proposed 3566 - 3773 VIII
Second Amended Complaint
Filed: JTanuary 30, 2020

Plaintiff Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer’s 4861 - 4876 XI
Motion for Leave to File Motion for Summary

Judgment; Memorandum of Points and Authorities

Thereof; Declaration of Audrey Kramer

Filed: April 28, 2020

Plaintiff” Objection to Judge’s Order 1243 - 1276 iv.
Granting in Part and Denying in

Part Defendant’s Motions to Dismiss

Plaintiffs’ First Amended Complaint
Filed: June 10, 2019

10




=N (%) (]

w o =2 Oy A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Plaintiff’s Objection to Order Granting
National Default Servicing Corporation’s
Motion in Limine to Exclude and Disqualify
William J Paatalo by Mr. Ace C Van Patten
and National Default Servicing

Filed: October 12, 2020

Plaintiff’s Reply to Defendant

National Default .

Servicing Corporation’s Opposition

to Motion for Leave to Amend

Complaint to Include Fraud Cause

of Action Due to Newly Discovered
Material Evidence; Memorandum of
Points and Authorities in Support Thereof
Filed: February 5, 2020

Plaintiff’s Objection to Order on the Motion
for Summary Judgment by Mr. Ace C .
VanPatten and National Default Servicing
Filed: October 12, 2020

Plaintiff’s Notice of Motion and Motion

and Motion to Strike Portions of

Defendant, National Default Servicing
Corporation’s First Supplemental Disclosure
of Documents and Witnesses: Memorandum
of Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Herewith
Filed: January 15, 2020

Plaintiff’s Objection to Order Granting
National Default Servicing Corporation’s
Motion in Limine to Exclude and Disqualify
William J. Paatalo

Filed: January 12, 2021

Declaration of Audrey Kramer filed Concurrent

11
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO.

4948 - 4954

3779 -3793

4938 - 4947

3493 - 3510

5036 - 5049
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National Defauit Servicing Corporation’s

Motion in Limine to Exclude and Disqualify
William J. Paatalo on Plaintiff’s Motion for Leve

to Amend Complaint to Add JPMorgan Chase Bank
N.A. and to include Fraud Cause of Action Due to
Newly Discovered Material Evidenc eby Mr. Ace C.
VanPatten and National Default Servicing

Filed: October 12, 2020

Plaintiff’s Objection to Defendant 4365 - 4378
National Default Servicing Corporation’s

Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents

and Witnesses and Notice of Motion and

Motion to Strike Portions of the Second

Supplemental Disclosure of Documents

and Witnesses; Memorandum of Points

Aauthorities in Support Thereof

Filed: February 25, 2020

Plaintiff’s Leo Kramer and Audrey 4379 - 4515
Kramer’s Opposition to National Default

Servicing Corporation’s Motion for Summary

Judgment; Memorandum of Points and

Authorities in Support Thereof: Declaration

of Audrey Kramer

Filed: March 5, 2020

12

CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO.

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant 1078 - 1125

National Default Servicing Corporation’s

Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff First Amended

Complaint; Declaration of Audrey Kramer

Filed Concurrent Herewith: Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Filed: February 4, 2019

Plaintiff’s Objection to Order Granting 4931 - 4937
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PAGE NO._

Plaintiff>s Objection to Order Granting 5050 - 5063
National Default Servicing Corporation’s

Motion in Limine to Exclude Fraud Cause of

Action on Plaintiff’s Motion for Leave to Amend

to include JPMorgan Chae Bank, N.A. based on

Newly Discovered Evidence of Fraud

Filed: January 12, 2021

Plaintiff’s Objection to Notice of Non- 951 - 987
Opposition Filed by Defendants, Alyssa

McDermott, Wedgwood Inc., and Breckenridge

Property Fund 2016 LLC; Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in Support Thereof:

Declaration of Audrey Kramer filed Concurrently

Herewith

Filed: January 4, 2019

Plaintiff>s Opposition to Defendants, Alyssa 338 - 551
McDermott, Wedgwood Inc., and

Breckenridge Property Fund 2016, LLC’s

Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s Complaint

Declaration of Audrey Kramer filed

Concurrent herewith: Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Filed: July 17, 2018

Plaintiff’s Request for Production 927 - 939
of Documents Set One
Filed: December 21, 2018

13
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PAGE NO.

Plaintiff’s Notice of Motion and \ 3353 - 3414
Motion for Leave to Amend

Complaint to Include Fraud Cause of

Action Due to Newly Discovered Material

Evidence; Plaintiff’s Request Evidentiar

Hearing in Support of Fraud; Declaration of

Audrey Kramer filed concurrently herewith;

Memorandum of Points and Authorities in

Support Thereof

Filed: January 9, 2020

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendants, 823 - 920
Alyssa McDermott, Wedgewood Inc.,

and Breckenridge Property Fund 2016

LLC’s Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s First
Amended Complaint; Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in Support Thereof;
Declaration of Daniel Starling; Declaration of Lee
Anne Chaffin; and Declaration of Audrey Kramer
Filed Concurrently Herewith; Further Plaintiff’s
Request for Discovery in this Matter

Filed: December 21, 2018

Plaintiff’s Request for Judicial Notice 3224 - 3352
of : Expert/Fact Witness, William J.

Paatalo;s Amended Updated Curriculum

Vitae, Executed Declaration and Forensic
Report and Exhibits and Judicial Notice of:
Widely Publicized Government Documents
Within the Public Domain in Reference to JP
Morgan Chase Bank’s Pursuant to NRS 47.130
Matters of Fact; In Support of Plaintiff’s Motion
for Leave to Amend Plaintiff’s First Amended
Complaint and Request for Evidentiary Hearing
Filed: January 9, 2020

14
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Filed: July 5, 2018

Plaintiff’s Response to

Morgan Chase Bank’s

Thereof

Plaintiff’s Leo Kramer

Plaintiffs

M . @

CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO.

Plaintiff’s Opposition to Defendant 185 -337
National Default Servicing Corporation’s

Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff’s Complaint

Declaration of Audrey Kramer filed

Concurrent herewith: Memorandum of

Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Plaintiff’s Objection to National Default 4962 - 4979
Servicing Corporation’s Memorandum

of Costs and Disbursements

Filed: November 10, 2020

3794 - 3807

Defendant National Default

Corporation’s Objection to the

Plaintiff’s Request for Judicial Notice

of : Expert/Fact Witness, William J.
Paatalo;s Amended Updated Curriculum
Vitae, Executed Declaration and Forensic
Report and Exhibits and Judicial Notice of:
Widely Publicized Government Documents
Within the Public Domain in Reference to JP

Pursuant to NRS 47.130

Matters of Fact; In Support of Plaintiff’s Motion
for Leave to Amend Plaintiff’s First Amended
Complaint and Request for Evidentiary Hearing;
Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support

Filed: February 5, 2020

and Audrey Kramer 4994 - 4997

in Pro Se, Respectfully Request that
the $320.00 Jury Fee Deposit Plaintiff’s
Posted on July 30, 2019 be Returned to

Filed: November 19, 2020

15
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO. YOLUME

Plaintiff’s Reply to National Default 3808- 3820 VIII
Servicing Corporation’s Opposition

to Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Portions of

Defendant, National Default Servicing

Corporation’s First Supplemental Disclosure

of Documents and Witnesses: Memorandum

of Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Filed: February 10, 2020

Plaintiff”s Objection to Breckenridge 4980 - 4993 ‘ X1
Property Fund 2016 LLC’s Memorandum

of Costs and Disbursements

Filed: November 16, 2020

Plaintiff’s Request for Production of 799 - 811 [
Documents Set One
Filed: December 21, 2018

Plaintiff’s Ex Parte or in the Alternative 4906 - 4910 X1
Shortening of Time Application to Hear

Plaintiff’s Motion to Continue and Reschedule

June 10, 2020 Hearing Due to Covid 19 Pandemic;

Declaration of Audrey Kramer

Filed: June 8, 2020

Plaintiff’s Motion to Continue and Reschedule 4884 - 4905 X1
June 10, 2020 Hearing Due to Covid 19 Pandemic

Declaration of Audrey Kramer

Filed: June 8, 2020

Plaintiffs Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer’s 4532 - 4712 X
Motion for Summary Judgment; Memorandum ’

of Points and Authorities in Support Thereof;

Declaration of Audrey Kramer

Filed: March 24, 2020

16
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL
PAGE NO.

Plaintiffs Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer 4821 - 4860
Reply to Breckenridge Property Fund 2016.

LLC’s Opposition to Plaintiff’s Motion for

Summary Judgment, Memorandum of Points

and Authorities in Support thereof

Filed: April 21, 2020

Plaintiffs, Audrey Kramer and Leo 812 - 822
Kramer’s Request for Admissions

Set One

Filed: December 21, 2018

Plaintiffs Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer 4778 - 4820
Reply to National Default Servicing

Corporation’s Opposition to Plaintiff’s

Motion for Summary Judgment; Memorandum

of Points and Authorities in Support Thereof

Filed: April 21, 2020

Plaintiffs Audrey Kramer and Leo 940 - 950
Kramer’s Request for Admission

Set One

Filed: December 21, 2018

Plaintiffs Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer 4719 - 4727
Objection to Breckenridge Property Fund 2016

LLC’s Joinder to National Default Servicing

Corporation’s Reply in Support of Motion for

Summary Judgment; Memorandum of Points

and Authorities

Filed: April 6, 2020

Plaintiffs, Audrey Kramer and Leo’ 775 - 786
Kramer’s Special Interrogatories

Set One

Filed: December 21, 2018

17
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Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey

Kramer’s Notice of Motion and Motion

to Strike Opposition to Summary Judgment
filed by Breckenridge Property Fund 2016,
LLC; Alyssa McDermott, and Wedgwood Inc.
Filed: June 12, 2019

Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey

Kramer’s Notice of Motion and Motion

to Strike National Default Servicing
Corporation’s Answer to First Amended
Complaint and/or in the Alternative

to Strike Defendant’s Affirmative

Defenses Pursuant to NRCP 12 (F);
Memorandum of Points and Authorities Thereof
Filed: June 6, 2019

Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey

Kramer’s Notice of Motion to Strike
Breckenridge Property Fund 2016 LLC’s
Answer in its Entirety for Failure to Timely

file an Answer or in the Alternative to Strike
Portions of Defendant’s Answer and all
Affirmative Defenses; Memorandum of Points
and Authorities in Support Thereof: Declaration
of Audrey Kramer

Filed: June 11, 2019

Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and
Audrey Kramer’s Initial Disclosure

of Witnesses and Documents
Filed: July 15, 2019

18
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1435 - 2302
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PAGE NO.

Plaintiffs’ Reply to Defendants’ 1401 - 1434
Opposition to Plaintiff’s Notice of Motion
and Motion to Strike Opposition to Summary
Judgment Filed by Breckenridge Property
Fund 2061, Alyssa McDermott and Wedgwood In.
Filed: July 5, 2019 '

Plaintiffs’ Opposition to 3160 - 3223
Defendant National Default

Servicing Corporation’s Motion

in Limine to Exclude and Disqualify

William J. Paatalo: Declaration of

Updated Curriculum Vitae of William

J. Paatalo filed Concurrently Herewith:

Memorandum of Points and Authorities

in Support Thereof

Filed: January 7, 2020

Proposed Second Amended Complaint 3415 - 3492
Filed: January 9, 2020

Receipt for Documents 4959
Filed: October 26, 2020

Receipt for Documents 5083
Filed: January 28, 2021

Receipt for Documents 4955
Filed: October 15, 2020

Receipt for Documents 5084

"|[Filed: February 12, 2021

Rejection of Unconscionable Offer of 1196 - 1200
Judgment
Filed: May 22, 2019
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CONTINUED INDEX TO RECORD ON APPEAL

PAGE NO. YOLUME
Remittitur 4998 XI
Filed: December 3, 2020
Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss 555 - 561 II
Filed: August 2, 2018
Reply in Support of Motion to Dismiss 988 - 993 I
First Amended Complaint
Filed: January 4, 2019
Request to Submit Motion to Dismiss 921 - 923 111
First Amended Complaint
Filed: December 21, 2018
Request for Submission 4916 - 4917 XI
Filed: June 8, 2020
Request for Transcripts 5087 - 5090 X1
Filed: February 23, 2021
Request for Submission of National 566 - 568 I
Default Servicing Corporation’s
Motion to Dismiss
Filed: August 20, 2018
Request for Submission 552 -554 II
Filed: August 18, 2018
Response to Plaintiff’s Objection 4773 - 4777 XI

to Breckenridge Property Fund 2016
LLC’s Joinder to National Default
Servicing Corporation’s Reply in Support
of Motion

Filed: April 17, 2020

20
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Response to Plaintiff’s Motion for Leave 4880 - 4883 X1
to File Motion for Summary Judgment
Filed: May 6, 2020
Setting Memo ' 4717 - 4718 XI
Filed: March 26, 2020
Setting Memo 569 - 570 I
Filed: August 30, 2018
Setting Memo 1073 - 1074 I
Filed: January 18, 2019
Stipulation and Order 3777 - 3778 VII
Filed: February 5, 2020
Stipulation and Order to Continue Hearing 1126 - 1129 I1I
Filed: March 6, 2019

Summons ( Issued ) 116 - 117 f

21
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John T. Steffen (4390)

Matthew K. Schriever (10745)
Alex R. Velto (14961)
HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, PLLC
10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200 -
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Tel (702) 385-2500

Fax (702) 385-2086
mschriever@hutchlegal.com

Casey J. Nelson, Esq. (12259)
Wedgewood, LLC

Office of the General Counsel
2320 Potosi Street, Suite 130

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Tel (702) 305-9157

Fax (310) 730-5967
caseynelson@wedgewood-inc.com

Attorneys for Defendant
Breckenridge Property Fund 2016 LLC
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THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

LEO KRAMER, AUDREY KRAMER,
Plaintiff,
V.

NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MCDERMOTT,
WEDGEWOQOD INC., BRECKENRIDGE
PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC and DOES 1
THROUGH 50 INCLUSIVE,

Defendants.

Case No.: 18-CV-00663
DeptNo.: 1
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY

FUND 2016 LLC’S JOINDER TO NATIONAL
DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION’S
MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

COMES NOW Defendant BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC (“Breckenridge™),

by and through its attorney of record, Matthew Schriever, Esq. of Hutchison & Steffen, PLLC and hereby

joins National Default Servicing Corporation’s (“NDSC”) motion for summary judgment.
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Breckenridge adopts and incorporates the Memorandum of Points and Authorities in ;the motion
as though fully set forth herein and requests summary judgment be granted against Plaintiffs,

Plaintiffs have previously raised the arguments in this lawsuit in the related and dismissed federal
court litigation. The Plaintiffs subsequently appealed the federal court litigation and the Ninth Circuit
affirmed the dismissal. These arguments have been fully adjudicated and summary judgment is proper.

This case pertains to the foreclosure of real property commonly known as 1740 Autumn Glen
Street, Fernley, NV 89408 (“Subject Property”) that took place on or about May 18, 2018 wherein
Breckenridge purchased the Subject Property. Plaintiffs have no viable claims against these Defendants.
The essence of Plaintiffs’ Complaint is that the foreclosing lender, JPMorgan Chase, and its trustee,
NDSC, did not have the ability to foreclose. Plaintiffs concede that they executed the note and deed of
trust, but dispute that there was a default. However, the issue of their default was already raised by the
Plaintiffs in the federal court litigation that they recently lost. Plaintiffs now argue that notice of the
foreclosure was not properly provided to them. However, as shown in NDSC’s motion, discovery has
proven that the foreclosure complied with NRS, that the Plaintiffs received notice of the foreclosure and
foreclosure sale, and that there are no genuine issues of material fact. Therefore, summary judgment is
appropriate.

Breckenridge was not involved with this matter until it purchased the Subject Property at the
foreclosure sale. Breckenridge took title to the Subject Property pursua.ﬁt to a NRS 107.080 foreclosure
sale. NRS 107.080 pravides in pertinent part:

5. Every sale made under the provisions of this section and other sections
of this chapter vests in the purchaser the title of the grantor and any
successors in interest without equity or right of redemption. Except as
otherwise provided in subsection 7, a sale made pursuant to this section
maust be declared void by any court of competent jurisdiction in the county
where the sale took place if.

(a) The trustee or other person authorized to make the sale does not
substantially comply with the provisions of this section;

(b) Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, an action is
commenced in the county where the sale took place within 30 days after the
date on which the trustee’s deed upon sale is recorded pursuant to
subsection 10 in the office of the county recorder of the county in which the
property is located; and
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(¢) A notice of lis pendens providing notice of the pendency of the
action is recorded in the office of the counly recorder of the county where
the sale took place within 5 days after commencement of the action.

* Hok

7. Upon expiration of the time for commencing an action which is set forth
in subsections 5 and 6, any failure to comply with the provisions of this
section or any other provision of this chapter does not affect the rights of
a bona fide purchaser as described in NRS 111.180.

Plaintiffs did not record a notice of lis pendens with the county recorder within 5 days of filing
the Complaint. Accordingly, Breckenridge is entitled to bona fide purchaser status pursuant to NRS
111.180(1) which provides:

Any purchaser who purchases an estate or interest in any real property in
good faith and for valuable consideration and who does not have actual
knowledge, constructive notice of, or reasonable cause to know that there
exists a defect in, or adverse rights, title or interest to, the real property is a
bona fide purchaser.

Even if Plaintiffs are successful in proving their procedural allegations pertaining to the notice of
foreclosure allegedly done by other entities prior to the foreclosure sale, Breckenridge is entitled to bona
fide purchaser status because a Notice of Lis Pendens was not recorded with the county within 5 days of
commencement of this action and the Plaintiffs fail to allege that Breckenridge had “actual knowledge,
constructive notice of, or reasonable cause to know that there exists a defect in, or adverse rights, title or
interest to, the real property[.]” Accordingly, the order granting summary judgment should include
findings of fact and conclusions of law that Breckenridge was a bona fide purchaser and that the sale is
deemed valid as to its interest in the Subject Property.
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Affirmation pursuant to NRS 239B.030; The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding

document filed in this court does not contain the social security number of any person.
DATED this _4_/ ay of February 2020,
HUTCHISON & STEFFEN, PLLC

John T. Steffer4300)

Matthew K. Schriever (10745)
Alex R. Velto (14961)

10080 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145
mschriever@hutchlegal.com

\

Wedgewood, LLC

Office.of the General Counsel

Casey J. Nelson, Esq. (12259)

2320 Potosi Street, Suite 130

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

E-mail: caseynelson@wedgewood-inc.com

Attorneys for Defendant
Breckenridge Property Fund 2016 LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I am an employee of Hutchison & Steffen, and that on the date indicated
below, I served a true and correct copy of the BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC’S
JOINDER TO NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION’S MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT via U.S. Mail to the parties designated below:

Leo Kramer

Audrey Kramer
2364 Redwood Road
Hercules, CA 94547

Ace Van Patten, Esq.

TIFFANY & BOSCO, PA

10100 W. Charleston Blvd., Ste. 220
Las Vegas, NV 89135

DATED this ZJ_ day of February, 2020.

a

@@Tﬂm & STEFFEN
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2364 REDWOOD ROAD
HERCULES, CA 94547

PLAINTIFFS IN PRO PER M d I o

'LEO KRAMER

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

LEO KRAMER, Case No.: 18-CV-00663

AUDREY KRAMER,

PLAINTIFFS” OBJECTION TO
DEFENDANT, NATIONAL DEFAULT
SERVICING CORPORATION’S’ SECOND
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES AND
NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO
STRIKE PORTIONS OF THE SECOND
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF

Plaintiffs,

VS.

NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING

CORPORATION, BRECKENRIDGE DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES;
PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC, and DOES 1 ) MEMORANDUM OF POINTS
THROUG’H 50 INCLUSIVE, AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT THEREOQF
Defendants. Date: TBA
Time: TBA
Dept: 1

R R i R T T o L L WL e

TO THE HONORABLE COURT, ALL PARTIES AND THEIR ATTORNEYS OF RECORD,

IF ANY:
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PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on
thereafter as the matter may be heard, in Department 1 (one) of the above-entitled Court
Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, (Plaintiffs), file this Objection to

Defendant, National Default Servicing Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure

&

, 2020, at 9:00 a.m. or as soon

of Documents and Witnesses and will and hereby move the court for an order striking

portions of Defendant’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses

This motion is made on the grounds that, certain allegations, potential statements,

and documents contained within Defendant’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of

Documents and Witnesses are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and impertinent in

this case in that they are only intended to confuse the court. Further, they are

scandalous and are intended to harass the Plaintiffs. Specifically, Plaintiffs are

réqueéting the Court strike the following pursuant to N.R.C.P 12(f):

Date

09/25/2008

Description

OTS Order Appointing FDIC as NDSC000772

Bates Stamped

Receiver for WaMu NDSC000774
10/03/2008 | Affidavit of FDIC NDSC000775
' NDSC000777
09/25/2008 | Limited Power of Attorney between | NDSC000778
, - FDIC and WaMu NDSC000782
09/25/2008 | Purchase and Assumption NDSC000783
| Agreement between FDIC as NDsc000826
receiver for WaMu and JPMor an
Chase Bank

1) ‘OTS ORDER APPOINTING FDIC AS RECEIVER FOR WAMU

‘Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Lines 6-7 ‘OTS order appointing FDIC
as receiver for WAMU on the grounds that these documents are unwarranted,
redundant, immaterial and impertinent in this case in that they provide no support
to the fact that National Default Servicing Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs
with the “Notice of Default” as required by Nevada foreclosure laws which are

2
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the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory
Relief. ~

2) Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 8 ‘Affidavit of FDIC on the
grounds that these documents are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and
impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that National
Default Servicing Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of
Default” as required by Nevada which are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim
for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

3) Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 9 ‘Limited Power of Attorney
between FDIC and WaMu on the grounds that these documents are
unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and impertinent in this case in that they
provide no support to the fact that National Default Servicing Corporation failed
to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of Defauit” as required by Nevada which
are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory
Relief.

4) Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 11 Purchase and Assumption
Agreement between FDIC as receiver for WaMu and JPMorgan Chase Bank
on the grounds that these documents are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and
impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that National
Default Servicing Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of
Default” as required by Nevada which are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim
for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

Plaintiffs’ Objection and motion will be based upon this Notice, the
Memorandum of Points and Authorities filed herewith, all pleadings currently on file in
this matter, and upon such documentary and evidence as may be presented at the time of

the heafing.

Dated: 9-@‘{/ Qo0 | ..#0 %“"‘—""

Leo Kramer, pro se

‘ Dated:&ﬂ&ilﬂ_a- 020 @J&%&(ﬁm@
A, - Audrey Krdwmier, pro se
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
| I-INTRODUCTION

Rather than address why Defendant, National Default Servicing Corporation
(NDSC) commenced nonjudicial foreclosure when there was no assignment of Deed of
Trust designating Defendant as duly appointed trustee and rather produce a credible
evident to demonstrate that NDSC provided Plaintiffs with Notice prior to the recording
of the Notice of Default, NDSC and its Attorneys engage in impermissible chicanery in
this proceeding by prefacing documents the NDSC and its Attorneys do not reasonably
believe are relevant and will not be supported by admissible evidence and that are
intended solely to inflame this proceeding and deceive this Honorable Court.

This case arises out of the wrongful and unlawful foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ real
property pursuant to which Plaintiffs are suing Defendants, NATIONAL DEFAULT
SERVICING CORPORATION and BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC
for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.,

After discovery and due diligence investigation conducted by a private
investigator William Paatalo who was retained by Plaintiffs, found there is ample
evidence that JPMorgan Chase Bank, in coordination with others, engaged in Systematic
Real Esfaté Fraud and recording of fraudulent Real Estate Documents that touch and
concern Plaintiffs’ real property in the state of Nevada. Based on the newly discovered
evidence, Plaintiffs found it necessary to seek leave of court to amend their Second
amended comblaint to add JPMorgan Chase Banks to the existing complaint because of
judicial economy. Accordingly; because JPMorgan Chase Bank is not a party to the
within action, and because JPMorgan Chase Bank is not before this Honorable court,
Plaintiffs respectfully Request that the Court Strike any argument relating to JPMorgan
Chase Bank until such time Chase Bank is a party and duly before this Court.
Additionally, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION lack standing to
act as Attorneys for JPMorgan Chase Bank who is currently not before this Honorable

Co.1_1rt. |
4 Q3.9
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II- STATEMENT OF FACT

For the sake of brevity, Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the statement of facts
filed so far in this matter and further state the following:

On October 6, 2017, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION
was not and is not a duly appointed trustee and was not lawfully permitted to Record the
Notice of Default pertaining to Plaintiffs’ real property and retirement home.

On October 6, 2017, when NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION recorded the Notice of Default, NATIONAL DEFAULT
SERVICING CORPORATION failed to satisfy condition precedent to filing a Notice of
Default (“NOD”) in the State of Nevada. For example: Assignment of Deed of Trust
was never filed, according to Nevada law, prior to the filing of the NOD. Accordingly,
NDSC lacked standing to file NOD.

" After filing the unlawful Notice of Default, NATIONAL DEFAULT
SERVICING CORPORATION also failed to give Plaintiffs Notice as required by
Nevada law., |

In allowing Plaintiffs to amend their initial complaint, the court found that
Defendant National Default Servicing Corporation did not provide Plaintiffs with
Notice of default as required by Nevada law.,

After the filing of their First Amended complaint, Plaintiffs retained Mr. William
J. Paatalo, (Mr. Paatalo) is a licensed private investigator with Seventeen (17) years of
combined experience in both law enforcement and the mortgage industry. Mr. Paatalo
is a well-qualified expert and fact witness and one of the leading experts in the areas of
chain of title analysis, foreclosure fraud, chain of title, the securitization of residential
and commercial mortgage loans, and accountlng issues relevant to alleged “defaults, and
has Spent more than 15,000 hours conducting investigatory research specifically related
to mortgage securitization and chain of title analysis.

Mr. Paatalo is also Plaintiffs’ Fact Witness with knowledge to assist this

Honorable Court and the jury to determme a fact in issue in this case particularly
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relating to JPMorgan Chase Bank in as evidence in Plaintiffs’ Motion for leave to
amend. As such, the court should Strike the portion of National Default Servicing
Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses with
respect to any document or witness relating to JPMorgan Chase Bank on the grounds
that they are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and impertinent in this case in that
they are only intended to confuse the court. Further, JPMorgan Chase Bank is not
before the Court,

Accordingly, Plaintiffs seek to strike portions of Defendant, National Default
Serviding Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses
on the grounds that these documents are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial or
impertinent, and would not lead to admissible evidence for Defendant, National Default
Serviciﬁg Corporation’s failure to give Plaintiffs Notice pertaining to Notice of Default

as required by Nevada law.

II1- ARGUIV[ENT

A PORTIONS OF DEFENDANT NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION’S SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF
DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES SHOULD BE STRICKEN
.BECAUSE IT IS REDUNDANT, IMMATERIAL, IMPERTINENT,
AND SCANDALOUS AND HAVE NO POSSIBLE BEARING ON THE
'SUBJECT MATTER OF THIS LITIGATION FOR WRONGFUL
FORECLOSURE AND DECLARATORY RELIEF

N.R.C.P.-12(f) provides in pertinent part that "[u]pon motion made by a party,..
the court may order stricken from any pleading any insufficient defense or any
redundant, immaterial, 1mpert1nent scandalous matter." “The disfavored character of
Rule 12(f) is relaxed somewhat in the context of scandalous allegations and matter of
this type often will be stricken from the pleadings in order to purge the court's files and
protect the subject of the allegatiohs.” Wright and A. Miller, Federal Practice and
Procedure (Civil) 2d § 1382, at 714 (1990). “Scandalous” matter “improperly casts a
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derogatory light on someone, most typically on a party to the action.” Armed Forces
Bank. NA. v. FSG-4, LLC, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 130636, 9-10 (D. Nev. 2011).

Office of Thrift SuEerwsnon f“OTS”) Order Appointing FDIC As Receiver
or Washington Mutual Ban amu

“[M]otions to strike should not be granted unless it is clear that the matter to be

stricken could have no possible bearing on the subject matter of the litigation.”
Colaprico v. Sun Microsys., Inc., 758 F. Supp. 1335, 1339 (N.D. Cal. 1991). Here,
Piaintiffs contend that p. 8., Lines 6-7, OTS Order Appointing FDIC as Receiver For
WAMU has no bearing on the two causes of action currently before the court for
Wrongful Foreclosure and Declaratory Relief. Further, p. 8., Lines 6-7, of Defendant,
National Default Serviéing Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of
Documents and Witnesses should be sﬁicken on the grounds that these documents are
unwérranted, redundant, immaterial and impertinent in this case in that they provide no
sﬁpport to the fact that National Default Servicing Cotporation failed to provide
Plaintiffs with the “Notice of Default” as required by Nevada law which are the central

points of Plaintiffs’ claim for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

Affidavit of FDIC

' Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 8 ¢ because the Affidavit of
FDIC has no possible bearing on the subject matter of the litigation. Additionall.y,
Affidavit of FDIC does not attest to whether or not National Default Servicing
Corporation gave Plaintiffs proper notice required by the laws of the state of Nevada.
Furthermore, this affidavit Ibid, signed by Robert C. Schoppe, does not identify
Plaintiffs or Plamtlffs real property whatsoever. Further, purported ‘Affidavit of
FDIC’ does not assoclate identify or name any Borrowet/s, property address or APN

number w1thln thlS document and specifically does not identify Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs’
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real property, Plaintiffs’ APN number, nor does the affidavit in question reference
Plaintiffs’ Revolving Line of Credit or any document therefrom.

Moreover, Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 8 ‘Affidavit of FDIC
on the grounds that these documents are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and
impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that National Default
Servicing Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of Default” as
required by Nevada law which are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim for wrongful

foreclosure and Declaratory Relief. -

Limited Power of Attorney (“POA”) between FDIC and WAMU

Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 9 ‘Limited Power of Attorney
between FDIC and WaMu on the grounds that these documents are unwarranted,
redundant, immaterial and impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the
fact that National Default Serv{icingl Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the
“Notice of Default” as réquired by Nevada law which are the central points of Plaintiffs’
claim for wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief,

Clearly noted in the limited POA, paragraph 5 states: “Whereas, pursuant to
the Agreement, the FDIC as Receiver granted to JPMorgan Chase an exclusive
option for a period of ninety (90) days after September 25, 2008 to cause the FDIC
under applicablé Resolution of the FDIC’s Board of Directors and re-delegations
thereof.” Further noted on Pg. 2 under Sect. 2, last 2 lines it states: “....which
powers remain with the Receiver, and further provided that the powers set out in
this paragraph shall terminaté automhﬁcally no later than January 25, 2008”.

However, on Pg. 3, Sect. 3, paragraph (2) fhe Limited Power of Attorney states:

.‘ .“E-xcept as provided undef pal,r;graph two (2) above, this Limited Power of
" Attorney shall be effective from and after September 25, 2008, and shall
. continue in full force and effect through September 25, 2010, unless

otherwise terminated by an official of the FDIC authorized to do so by the
FDIC Board of Directors (""Revocation'). At such time this Limited Power

3 G
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of Attorney will be automatically revoked. Any third party may rely upon
this document as the Attorney-in-Fact's authority to continue to exercise the
powers herein granted unless a Revocation by the FDIC has been recorded
in the public records of the jurisdiction where this Limited Power of
Attorney has been recorded, or unless a third party has received actual
notice of any such revocation”.

Moreover, the Limited Power of Attorney between FDIC and WAMU is
not pertinent to the two causes of action currently before the court for Wrongful
Foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

Purchase and Assumption Agreement (“PAA”) between FDIC as receiver for
aMu an organ Chase Ban

Plaintiffs object and move to strike p. 8., Line, 11 Purchase and Assumption
Agreement between FDIC as recelver for WaMu and JPMorgan Chase Bank on the

grounds that these documents are unwarranted redundant, immaterial and impertinent
in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that National Default Servicing
Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of Default” as required by
Nevada law which are the central pomts of Plalnt1ffs claim for wrongful foreclosure
and Declaratory Relief.

Additionally, p. 8., Line, 11 Purchase and Assumption Agreement between FDIC
as réceiver for WAMU and JPMorgan ChaSe’ Bank, there are no schedule of any loan/s
attached to the PAA, and there certainly is no schedule identifying Plaintiffs’ loan
attached to the PAA. Further, Plaintiffs’ unused Revolving Line of Credit was
securitized and sold prior to the seizure of WAMU by the FDIC. Furthermore,
Plaintiffs are not indébted to WAMU on the Revolving Line of Credit. Furthermore,

the PAA is not pertinent to the two causes of action currently before the court.

"[T)he function of a 12(f) motion to strike is to avoid the expenditure of time and
money that must arise from Htigatiné spurious issues by dispensing with those issues
prior to trial.” Mag Instrument, Inc. v. JS Products, Tnc., 595 F.Supp.2d 1102, 1106
(C.D. Cal. 2008). While "[t[he granﬁné’ of [a motion to strike] is within the discretion of

7 Gz13)
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the court," F.D.I.C. v. Niblo, 821 F.Supp. 441, 449 (N.D. Tex. 1993), courts
consistently state that a motion to strike is sparingly granted and disfavored. See
Tracfone Wireless, Inc. v. Access Telecom, Inc., 642 F.Supp.Zd 1354, 1361 (S.D. Fla.
2009);Nevada Fair Hous. Ctr., Inc., v. Clark Cnty., 565 F. Supp.2d 1178, 1187 (D. Nev.
2008). Here, Plaintiffs’ Object and motion to sirike is proper because portion of
Defendant, National Default Servicing Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure
of Documents and Witnesses Ibid, are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial and
impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that National Default
Servicing Corporation failed to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of Default” as
required by Nevada law which are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim for wrongful
foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

Further, Plaintiffs have no knowledge of the documents proffered by National
Default Servicing Corporation and therefor challenge the authenticity of the (1) OTS
Order Appointing FDIC As Receiver For Washington Mutual Bank (Wamu); (2)
Affidavit of FDIC (3) Limited Power of Attorney between FDIC and WaMu and (4)
Purchase and Assumption Agreement between FDIC as receiver for WaMu and
JPMbrgan Chase Bank as well as the Deed of Trust; Substitution of Trustee, Notice of
Default and Election to Sell under the Deed of Trust; Assignment of Deed of Trust; and
(6) Notice of Trustee’s Sale. Furthermore, Plaintiffs are challenging the validity of (a)
14 Da& Pre Foreclosure File, (b) Deed of Trust; (¢ ) Endorsed Note; (d) Fair Debt
Letter(s); '(f) TSG and Endorsement; (g) Recorded Assignment(s); (h) Recorded SOT;
(i) Written Statement to the Borrower Pet NRS 107.080.2(c)(3) (As Applicable) (j)
AB300 Affidavit of Authority, (k) NOTS and (1) NOD 10 Day Mailings in Defendant
pﬁor supplemenfal. These documents, Id, are immaterial and impertinent as to whether
Defendant, National Default Servicing Corporation complied with Nevada law with
respect to serving Plaintiffs with “Notice of Default” as required by Nevada law.

Additionally, Plaintiffs object and move to strike all of Defendant, National

Default Servicing Corporation’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and
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Witnesses referencing JPMorgan Chase Bank and Judge DU of the United States
District Court on the grounds that these documents are unwatranted, redundant,
immaterial and impertinent in this case in that they provide no support to the fact that
National Default Servicing Corporation fail to provide Plaintiffs with the “Notice of
Default” as required by Nevada law which are the central points of Plaintiffs’ claim for
wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief.

Courts routinely granted motion to Strike when the pleading to be stricken [sic]
has no possible relation to the controversy. Please see for example, Brown &
Williamson Tobacco Corp., v. United States, 201 F.2d 819, 822 (6th Cir. 1953), and
when justice requires or by a showing of prejudice by the moving party. See Tracfone
Wireless, 642 F .Supp.2d at 1361;Mag Instrument, 595 F.Supp.2d at 1106. While the
Nevada Supreme Court has not directly addressed the standard of review for a motion to
strike, the Ninth Circuit reviews a lower court's decision regarding a motion to strike for
abuse of discretion. JG v. Douglas Sch. Diét.; 552 F.3d 786, 803 n.14 (9th Cir. 2008).

Motion to Strike is governed by Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure Rule 12(f).
“The disfavored character of Rule 12(f) is relaxed ‘somewhat in the context of
scandalous allegations and matter of this type often will be stricken from the pleadings
in order to purge the court's files and proteét the subject of the allegations.” Wright and
A. Miller, Federal Practice and Procedure (Civil) 2d § 1382, at 714 (1990).
“Scandalous” matter “improperly casts a dérogatory light on someone, most typically on
a party to the action.” Armed Forces Bank. NA. v, FSG-4, LLC, 2011 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
130636, 9-10 (D. Nev. 2011). Here, Plaintiffs contends that, the court may strike out
any irrelevant, false, or improper matter inserted in National Default Servicing
Corporé.tion’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses, because
all or any part of the pleading is not drawn or filed in conformity with the laws of the
State of Nevada. Further, the filing of fraudulent documents not previously provided to
Plaintiffs is unconscionable and said documents are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial

and impertinent and should be stricken. Defendant’s Second Supplemental Disclosure

; Ga1)
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of Documents and Witnesses is only intended to confuse the court; it is scandalous and
intended to harass the Plaintiffs and therefore, should be stricken in its entirety and
sustain Plaintiffs” Objection to Defendant’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of

Documents and Witnesses

IV. CONCLUSION

Based on thé foregoing, it is respédtﬁilly requested that this motion to strike
portions of Defendant, National Default Servicing Corporation’s Second Supplemental
Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses be granted.

Plaintiffs further respectfully request this Honorable Court to sustain Plaintiffs’
Objection to Defendant’s Second Supplemental Disclosure of Documents and Witnesses
on the grounds that all the contents therein, are unwarranted, redundant, immaterial, and
impertinent in this case in that they are only intended to confuse the court and on further
grounds that all the contents therein are impermissible chicanery which Defendant does
not reasonably believe are relevant and will not lead to admissible evidence in
Plaintiffs’ claims as to whether or not National Default Servicing Corporation provided

Plaintiffs with prOper Notice as required by Nevada.

) | Date: 9/4‘6/ 2020 ~ Date:__ 22 /2 ¥ (2020

:#’o % | S ..
Leo Kramer, Pro se 7 Audrey Krafé’jr, Pro se
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PROOF OF SERVI
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) (ﬁ‘l& UPS.5tore [ e
) S8: 1511 Sycamore Ave, Ste M u :
COUNTY OF C COSTA Hercules, CA 94547 Upa
OF CONTRA COST4) ' stof2796@theupsstore.co
storel /96, . .o

I am employed in the County of Contra Costa, State of’%alifomia. I am over the age of 18 and

not a party to the within action; my business address is:
On DEQIM! & \ A1 » I served the foregoing document entitled:

PLAINTIFFS’ OBJECTION TO DEFENDANT, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION’S’ SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS AND
WITNESSES AND NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION TO STRIKE PORTIONS OF THE
SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF DOCUMENTS AND WITNESSES;
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT THEREOF

on all parties in this action as follows:
PLEASE SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST

Mail. By placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope. I am "readily familiar" with
the firm's practice of collection and processing for mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited
with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with Second class postage thereon fully paid at Hercules,
California in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party served, service is
presumed invalid if the postal cancellation date or the postage meter is more than one day after day of
deposit for mailing in this Proof of Service.

By Telefax. I transmitted said document by telefax to the offices of the addressees at the
telefax numbers on the attached Service List.

By Personal Service. I delivered such envelope by hand to the addressee(s).

X __ By Overnight Courier. I caused the above-referenced document(s) to be delivered to an
overnight courier service for next day delivery to the addressee(s) on the attached Service List.

I declare under penaity of perjury under the laws of the State of California and under the laws
of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and corréct.

Executed “on' GL 28 QO:& ,at _ .“Q(QO\QS' , California.

Corina DiGrazia

Name of Declarant

13 @ 2)_,_D
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SERVICE LIST:

Matthew K. Schriever

John T. Steffen

Hutchison & Steffen

1008 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Attorneys for Defendants,
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC, et al.

Ace Van Paften

Kevin S. Soderstrom

Tiffany & Bosco, P.A.

10100 W. Charleston Boulevard, Ste. 220
Las Vegas, NV 89135

Attorneys for Defendant,
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION

14
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LEO KRAMER FILED

AUDREY KRAMER
2364 REDWOOD ROAD aiR -5 AN 11z 27
HERCULES, CA 94547 7020 HAR -5 AM
SRS o
PLAINTIFFS IN PRO PER O AL D RiCT
VerlouaTavanivr
IN THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF LYON

)
LEO KRAMER ) Case No.: 18-CV-00663
AUDREY KRAMER, :

) Dept. 1

)

Plaintiffs, % PLAINTIFFS, LEO KRAMER, AND
vs ) AUDREY KRAMER'’S OPPOSITION
' ) TO NATIONAL DEFAULT

g SERVICING CORPORATION’S

) MOTION FOR SUMMARY
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING ) JUDGMENT; MEMORANDUM OF
CORPORATION, BRECKENRIDGE )
PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC, and DOES 1 ) POINTS AND AUTH(_)RITIES IN
THROUGH 50 INCLUSIVE y SUPPORT THEREQF; DECLARATION

’ ) OF AUDREY KRAMER
Defendants. g

)

) Date:

% Time:

) Dept: 1

)

Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer and Audrey Kramer, (“Plaintiffs”), herein submits this their Opposition

to Defendants, NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION’S MOTION FOR

SUMMARY JUDGMENT. Plaintiffs contend that Defendant’s Motion for Summary Judgment must

" G219
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be denied because there are genuine disputed issue of material facts that needs to be litigated

precluding the entry of summary judgment.

Plaintiffs’ Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for summary judgment is based on this
Opposition, the attached Memorandum of Points and Authorities, on the complete files and records of
this action and on such other oral and/or documentary evidence as may be presented at the hearing on
the Motion for Summary Judgment.

Date: '5\"5 \20&0 Date: 3!3 /ZO 20
Leo Kramer, Pro se Audrey Kran@rﬁro'se




R = - . T D - R 7 R

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
2%4
25
26
27
28

9 )

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
1
INTRODUCTION

Nevada law requires that in conducting non-judicial foreclosure of real property, the trustee
must provide homeowner(s) with notice of default through certified mail. National Default Servicing
Corporation as the trustee in the instant case failed to give Plaintiffs notice of the default as required by
Nevada law making the Notice of Default null and void ab initio. Had Plaintiffs received notice of the
default, Plaintiffs would have challenged the validity of the loan or the revolving line of credit, which
forms the basis of the notice of default. Furthermore, Plaintiffs, Leo Kramer anc_i Audrey Kramer were
not and are not in breach of any mortgage note. Additionally, Plaintiffs, were not and are not in
breach of the Revolving line of credit, which Plaintiffs obtained from Washington Mutual Bank.
Please See, Collins v. Union Federal Sav. & Loan Ass’n, 662 P.2d 610, 623 (Nev. 1983). Plaintiffs are
not indebted to any of the Defendants or their cohorts. Furthermore, neither National Default
Servicing Corporation’s (NDSC) nor its cohorts JPMorgan Chase Bank has any secured lien or
security interest in Plaintiffs’ residential real property. Additionally, there is no evidence to
demonstrate that the original lender transferred Plaintiffs’ “Note or Mortgage” to NDSC, or to
JPMorgan Chase Bank, Washington Mutual Bank or to any of their predecessors.

' National Default Servicing Corporation’s (NDSC) Motion for Summary Judgment is meritless
because instead of properly competently addressing the issues pertaining to the failure to provide
Plaintiffs “Notice” in accordance with Nevada law, which is integral to Plaintiffs’ cause of actions for
Wrongful foreclosure and Declaratory Relief, NDSC instead submitted with their Motion For
Summary Judgment unauthenticated evidence on behalf of JPMorgan Chase Bank (“Chase™) in spite
of the fact that Chase is not a party within this lawsuit and not a party before the Court.

Additionally, NDSC is not on record as Attorney for JPMorgan Chase Bank and the alleged
evidence submitted by NDSC in their Motion For Summary Judgment is outside the scope and is not

germane to the two cause of actions for Wrongful Foreclosure and Declaratory Relief that are currently

(433

before the court.
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Moreover, Chase has falsely asserted beneficial rights to Plaintiffs’ Deed of Trust through the
FDIC and the Purchase & Assumption Agreement upon the seizure of WAMU Bank. Plaintiffs’
learned through the hiring of Private Investigator, William Paatalo, that Plaintiffs’ loan was securitized
and sold into a trust long before WAMU Bank was seizure by the FDIC, as was the case determined by
the Appeals Court of Massachusetts, Argued December 11, 2017; Decided September 11, 2018, No.

16-P-1594. Appeals Court of Massachusetts Overview:
HOLDINGS: [1)-In reviewing an order dismissing all but one claim in the
complaint against a failed bank's successor in interest solely on the basis of
FIRREA, the appellate court concluded that it need not determine what claims or
actions might be barred by FIRREA with respect to assets owned by the failed
bank on the date it was placed into receivership of the FDIC, [2]-There was a
genuine issue of fact with respect to the ownership of plaintiffs' mortgage loan in
2008; [3]-If the note and the mortgage were sold to a trust in 2006, they were no
longer assets of the failed bank on the day it went into receivership; {4]-To the
extent there existed any dispute by defendants about the ownership of the note or
the mortgage on the date the failed bank was placed into receivership, plaintiffs
were entitled to further discovery on the matter.
6 We note that the record before us contains no evidence as to JPMorgan Chase's
assumption of Washington Mutual's or the FDIC's liabilities.

Appeals Court of Massachusetts So Ordered: The corrected judgment is
reversed and the case is remanded to the Superior Court for further proceedings
consistent with this opinion.

Prior to conducting the unlawful foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ real property, NDSC failed to give
Plaintiffs notice of default and election to sell as well as the “Deed of Trust” that gives NDSC the
authority to cause the non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ residential real property. Whereas, NDSC
is aware that as citizens of the United States, Plaintiffs has constitutionally protected rights under the
Privileges and Immunities Clause of the United States Constitution and the Commerce Clause to own
residential real property in several states; notwithstanding, NDSC failed to serve Plaintiffs with
foreclosure mediation, which NDSC claimed it attended and that Plaintiffs refused to attend.
Furthermore, the document was not recorded with Lyon County Recorder’s Office until March 22,

2018, nearly (6) six months after NDSC filed the NOD on October 6, 2017, SEE EXHIBIT A
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On or about June 2, 2005, Plaintiffs, Leo F. Kramer and Audrey E. Kramer, husband and wife,
purchased real property located at 1740 Autumn Glenn Street, Fernley, Nevada, in Lyon County, (APN
# 022-052-02), hereinafter, referred to as the (Subject Property). The subject property is a modest, 3
bedroom, 2 bath, ranch-style, single level, single family residence and not a commercial property
which the owner typically do not occupy. Furthermore, there is nothing or provision in the statutes
that mandate that Plaintiffs’ right to receive notice prior to the commencement of the non-judicial
foreclosure of their real property, is contingent upon being physically present in their real property
when NDSC commenced the non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ residential real property. Plaintiffs
contend that NDSC’s Motion For Summary Judgment’s Motion for Summary Judgment is replete with
disputed fact that precludes the entry of judgment as a matter of law.

An elementary and fundamental requirement of due process in any proceeding which is to be
accorded finality is notice reasonably calculated, under all the circumstances, to apprise interested
parties of the pendency of the action and afford them an opportunity to present their objections.” See,
Mullane v. Central Hanover Bank & Trust Co., 339 U.S. 306, 314 (1950). See also Richards v.
Jefferson County, 517 U.S. 793 (1996) (res judicata may not apply where taxpayer who challenged a
county’s occupation tax was not informed of prior case and where taxpayer interests were not
adequately protected).  Here, had NDSC given Plaintiffsl proper notice, Plaintiffs would have
vehemently opposed NDSC’s actions or conduct that are alleged in Plaintiffs” Complaint and the
subsequent First Amended Complaint. 1t is irrefutable ﬂr]at NDSC failed to inform Plaintiffs of any
indebtedness prior to filing of the Notice of Default. Plai\ntiffs’ dispute any indebtedness to NDSC or
to anyone or entity associated with NDSC. Furthermore, Plaintiffs are challenging the validity of the
debt, lien, and NDSC’s status as a dully-appointed trustee. Moreover, to date, NDSC has not provided
Plaintiffs with notice of accounting of the debt that NDSC claimed is due and owing, the basis for
which NDSC commenced the non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ home.

Instead, NDSC contends that the law is clear that a foreclosure trustee need only substantially
comply with the requirements of NRS 107 when conducting a non-judicial foreclosure sale. (p.2, 1,

Lines 14-15., MSJ). Yet, NDSC provided no case law or Nevada statute to support its contention and
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failed to demonstrate how NDSC need only substantially complied under NRS 107. The law is clear,
it actually says: |

“ In addition to the grounds provided in paragraph (a) of subsection 5 of NRS
107.080, a sale made pursuant to this section must be declared void by any
court of competent jurisdiction in the county where the sale took place if the
trustee or other person authorized to make the sale does not substantially
comply with any applicable provisions set forth in NRS 107.086 and 107.087,
and the applicant otherwise complies with subsection 5 of NRS 107.080.

Neither, Deborah Taylor, Lee Ann Chaffin or Plaintiffs’ Tenant-Daniel Starling, agents of
the Plaintiffs and are not duly authorized to receive service on behalf of the Plaintiffs.

NDSC contends that “Plaintiff and Deborah Taylor, an employee of the property management
company, acknowledge that the tenant provided a copy a of the Notice of Default to the Plaintiffs.”
(p-2,9 1, Lines 22-24., MSJ). However, NDSC proffered no evidence to demonstrate that the tenant
and/or Deborah Taylor, an employee of the property management company are agents of the Plaintiffs
dully authorized to receive service of notice of default concerning Plaintiffs’ real property. Asa
matter of fact, Deborah Taylor of Chaffin Real Estaie Services, Lee Ann Chaffin-owner of Chaffin
Real Estate Services and Plaintiffs’ and Plaintiffs’ tenani-Daniel Starling, all testified under oath at
their depositions conducted on September 16, 2019, when questioned by Mr. Van Patten and Plaintiff,
Audrey Kramer, that they were not appointed or asked to accept mail or correspondence on behalf of

Plaintiffs.

Testimony of Deborah Tavlor with Chaffin Real Estate Services, 9/16/2019 Examination by Ace
Van Patten, PG 22 LINE 25 & Pg 23 line 1-2 SEE EXHIBIT: B

Q. Even outside of the scope of the declaration, did a tenant ever provide any mail?
A. Mail, no.

Testimony of Deborah Taylor with Chaffin Real Estate Services, 9/16/2019 Examination by Ms.
Kramer, Pg 36 lines 18-21 SEE EXHIBIT: B

Q. I do have a question for you. Have I ever or my husband ever asked you to be an authorized agent
on our behalf to receive mail on our behalf?
A. No.

Testimony of Lee Ann Chaffin-Owner of Chaffin Real Estate Services, 9/16/2019 Examination
by Ace Van Patten, Pg 26 Lines 23-25 & Pg 27 Lines 1-10 SEE EXHIBIT: C

e
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Q. Did you ever receive any mail for the Kramers?

A. No. It was whatever Debi said about the documents. And part of that problem, too, was, you
know, it's so windy where we live, as you can tell, we get wind. So maybe even part of the stuff that
they'd been meant to have received might be in Fallon. I'm not kidding you. I received a plastic pool
in my backyard one time.

Q. Do you know if any tenant ever provided any mail for the Kramers relating to the Autumn Glen

property?
A. No, sir.

Page 28 Lines 3-8
Q. Have the Kramers advised you that the property was in foreclosure?
A.No. We let them know of the postings. They'd never been served.

Testimony of Lee Anne Chaffin-Owner of Chaffin Real Estate Services, 9/16/2019 Examination
By Ms. Kramer, Pg 42 Lines 3-6 SEE EXHIBIT: C

Q. I just have one. Just to clarify for the record: We never contracted you to be an authorized
agent to receive mail on our behalf?
A. No, never.

Testimony of Daniel Starling, 9/16/2019 Examination by Ace Van Patten, Pg 17 Lines 1-23
SEE EXHIBIT: D

Q. Have you seen this document before?

A. Not that I recollect right ofthand.

Q. Does this document appear to be titled Notice of Default and Election to Sell Under Deed of Trust
Important Notice?

A. This is it.

Q. I'm going to call this the nofice of default going forward. Was the notice of default posted on the
property?

A. Not that [ can recollect, no.

Q. Did you receive a copy in the mail?

A. One again, not that I can recollect, no.

Q. Was there anyone who would check your mail for you while you lived in Autumn Glen?

A. My ex-fiancee.

Q. What's her name?

A. Maria.

Q. Is this Maria Mendoza?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Did she live in the Autumn Glen property?

A. Yes.

Q. From when until when?

A. The whole time I lived there.

Testimony of Daniel Starling, 9/16/2019 Examination by Ms. Kramer, Pg 22 Lines 22-25 & Pg 23
Lines 1-14 SEE EXHIBIT: D

Q. Daniel, do you have a recollection of telling me that your then partner had seen some notices on the
door, but by the time you got home from work they had blown away?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Okay.

A. Those were the ones I was talking about that were taped to the door.

Q. Okay. So you never actually got to see those documents yourself?

A. The ones that had blown away, no. Like I said, the only ones that I actually got to see -- and

these may have been them. I don't know. It's been over a year ago, you know, so I can't tell you

@%85)
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100 percent yes or no that that was them.
Q. You don't know what the documents were that were on the door, because they blew away?
A. Correct.

Further, NRS 107 does not provide that the “Notice of Default” of homeowners’ real property
should be given to a property management company or to a tenant for the very reasons as was noted in
the testimonies of the witnesses.

Inspite of the fact that NDSC and JPMorgan Chase Bank were well aware of Plaintiffs’ current
address, NDSC failed to provide Plaintiffs with the Notice of Default as required by Nevada law.
Additionally, NDSC failed to provide Plaintiffs with accounting of the purported debt, which is a
condition precedent prior to filing of NOD. Had Plaintiffs been given Notice of accounting of debts
that are alleged due and owing, Plaintiffs would have had the opportunity to cure the debt or dispute
the debt prior to the sale of Plaintiffs’ real property. SEE EXHIBIT: E

No Valid Assignment of Deed Of Trust

NDSC failed to provide Notice of any “Assignment of Deed Of Trust, or any pertinent
instrument to demonstrate that NDSC’s was a duly appointed trustee lawfully authorized to conduct
non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ retirement home. Simply put, NDSC failed to provide Plaintiffs
with any proper notice to apprise Plaintiffs of the nature of the alleged indebtedness and opportunity to
either dispute or cure the indebtedness, if any.

Furthermore, NDSC proffered no evidence to demonstrate that it is a dully- appointed trustee.
NDSC has not provided Plaintiffs Notice of the “Deed of Trust” pursuant to which NDSC was named
as a trustee or substituted as Trustee prior to the filing of the “Notice of Default” nor has NDSC
provided any evidence to this Honorable court to demonstrate the NDSC is a dully appointed trustee
authorized to conduct non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ real property in the state of Nevada.
Moreover, NDSC failed to comply with condition precedent prior to recording the Notice of Default
and the subsequent wrongful, unlawful, and willful oppressive foreclosure sale of Plaintiffs’ residential

real property. Plaintiffs contend that all of these /bid, are Constitutionally required notices along with

Gax0
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certain statutory mandated Notices that are required when attempting to deprive homeowners of their

Constitutionally protected interests in their real property.

The Reguirements of Due Process.

Nev. Const. art. 1, § 8 provides that no person shall be deprived of life, liberty, or property,
without due process of law. Although due process tolerates variances in procedure “appropriate to the
nature of the case,” Mullane v. Central Hanover Bank & Trust Co., 339 U.S. ’306, 313 (1950), it is
nonetheless possible to identify its core goals and requirements. First, “[pJrocedural due process rules
are meant to protect persons not from the deprivation, but from the mistaken or unjustified deprivation
of life, liberty, or property.” Carey v. Piphus, 435 U.8. 247, 259 (1978). “[P]rocedural due process
rules are shaped by the risk of error inherent in the truth-finding process as applied to the generality of
cases.” Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 U.S. 319, 344 (1976). Thus, the required elements of due process are
those that “minimize substantively unfair or mistaken deprivations” by enabling persons to contest the
basis upon which a state proposes to deprive them of protected interests. Fuentes v. Shevin, 407 U.S.
67, 81 (1972). At times, the Court has also stressed the dignitary importance of procedural rights, the
worth of being able to defend one’s interests even if one cannot change the result. Carey v. Piphus, 435
U.S. 247, 26667 (1978); Marshall v. Jerrico, Inc., 446 U.S. 238, 242 (1980); Nelson v. Adams, 529
U.S. 460 (2000) (amendment of judgment to impose attorney fees and costs to sole shareholder of
liable corporate structure invalid without notice or opportunity to dispute). Here, had Plaintiffs
received “Notice” including “Notice of Default”, Plaintiffs would have defended their interest in their
real property before the wrongful foreclosure by NDSC and its cohorts. Accordingly, because there is
a genuine disputed issue of material fact to be litigated that precludes the entry of summary judgment,
Plaintiffs respectfully request that NDSC’s motion for motion for summary judgment must be denied

in its entirety.

1L STATEMENT OF DISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS NECESSITATING TRIAL
WHICH PRECLUDES ENTRY OF SUMMARY JUDGMENT

1. There is disputed genuine Issue of material fact to be tried as to National Default
Servicing Corporation’s Exhibit 1
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Genuine issue exists as to any material fact pertaining to the Loan documents proffered by
National Default Servicing Corporation’s (INDSC), as such, NDSC is not entitled to judgment as a
matter of law. In its meritless Motion for Summary Judgment, (MSJ), NDSC contends that, “On or
about April 4, 2008, Leo Kramer executed an Agreement and Disclosure (the “Note™) reflecting a
home equity line of credit provided by Washington Mutual Bank (“WAMU™). (p.3,9 1, Lines 13-13,,
MSJ). Plaintiffs challenge the validity of NDSC’s Exhibit 1 in that NDSC’s Exhibit 1 is a fabricated
document. Plaintiffs have no knowledge of NDSC’s Exhibit 1 and have never seen the document
Ibid, that NDSC ciaim Plaintiffs executed home equity line of credit provided by Washington Mutual
Bank. Furthermore, NDSC Exhibit 1 does not bear Audrey Kramer’s signature. Audrey Kramer was
a party to every and all Agreement(s) between the Plaintiffs and Washington Mutual Bank, yet,
NDSC’s Exhibit 1 is devoid of Audrey Kramer’s signature. Moreover, the signature on NDSC’s
Exhibit 1 is a digital signature that purports to show that Leo Kramer signed the document. Jbid.
Plaintiffs’ contend that théy did not execute any “Home Equity Line of Credit” with Washington
Mutual Bank. i

On or aboufn June 2, 2005, Plaintiffs, Leo F. Kramer and Audrey E. Kramer, husband and wife,
purchased real property located at 1740 Autumn Glenn Street, Fernley, Nevada, in Lyon County, (APN
# (022-052-02), hereinafter, referred to as the (Subject Property). The subject property is a modest, 3
bedroom, 2 bath, ranch-style, single level, single family residence that was purchased with the sole
intent to become Plaintiffs’ retirement home. Plaintiffs are both in their mid/late 60’s with serious
health issues and consider the subject property sacrosanct, important and unique to them.

The initial purchase price of the subject property was $204,488, whereby Plaintiffs made a
down payment of approximately 20% ($40,898) towards the purchase price.

On or about June 2, 2005, Plaintiffs obtained a ‘mortgage’ loan from Paul Financial Inc. in the
amount of $163,500, to complete the purchase transaction of the subject property. A mortgage note
and a Deed of Trust was executed for this transaction.

On or a;bout April 4, 2008, Plaintiffs obtained a Revolving Line of Credit from Washington
Mutual Bank (*“WAMU™) with a maximum credit limit of $176,000. WAMU credit agreement on (Pg.
2, 3 Paragraph, Sect. 2, Lines 7-8) states:

-10-
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“Under the Credit Agreement, the grantor may borrow, repay and re-borrow
Jrom time to time, up to the maximum credit limit stated above....”

At NO time did Plaintiffs ever access the maximum credit limit of $176,000. Furthermore,
Plaintiffs were prevented from accessing any additional funds because within 6 months of entering into
the Credit Agreement with WAMU the agreement was breached when the bank was seized by the
FDIC on September 25, 2008.

Plaintiffs maintain they are and have always been the rightful owners of the subject property.
The Plaintiffs are and have at all times been the sole names noted on the ‘Deed of Trust’ filed on the
subject property. At NO time did Plaintiffs grant title, nor has title EVER been lawfully assigned to
anyone else.

On a motion for summary judgment, the burden of establishing the nonexistence of any
genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are resolved against him, and his supporting
documents, if any, are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the
Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284 (1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co.,
87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). Here, NDSC has failed to establish nonexistence of any genuine issue of fact
as to NDSC’s Exhibit 1. Plaintiffs contend that NDSC’s Exhibit 1 is a fabricated document and is

therefore disputed.

2. There is disputed genuine Issue of Material fact to be tried as to National Default
Servicing Corporation’s Exhibit 2

Genuine issue exists as to any material fact pertaining to the Loan
documents proffered by National Default Servicing Corporation’s (NDSC) Exhibit 2, as such, NDSC
is not entitled to judgment as a matter of law. The instrument in NDSC’s Exhibit 2 contains digital
signatures and does not bear Plaintiffs’ true wet signatures. In the deposition Plaintiffs disputed said

document. Ibid. The following depicts the Deposition testimony regarding NDSC’s Exhibit 2:

Testimony of Plaintiff--Audrey Kramer’s Deposition Of: 9/16/2019 SEE EXHIBIT F
Leo Kramer, Audrey Kramer vs. National Default Servicing Corp., et al.

1 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
2 Q. All right. Is this document bearing a
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3 recorder's stamp in the upper right-hand corner with
document number 4254367
A. Yes.
Q. And what is this document?
A, This is the deed of trust and credit --
revolving line of credit agreement.
Q. Turning to page 6, page 6 of 10, in the
10 upper right-hand corner.
11 A. Um-hum.
12 Q. Is that your signature on the document?
13 A.I'mnot 100 percent sure.
14 Q. Do you remember executing this document?
15 A.Idon't. I got this off line. I went
16 online and got this when -- when the foreclosure —
17 when I got notice of the foreclosure.
18 Q. And it's your testimony today, you don't
19 remember signing this document?
20 A.Idon't remember -- I don't have this
21 document in my possession. I don't remember it being
22 given to me. That's all I'm saying. And I'm saying I
23 don't have this, and I got it when all of this came
24 about. Then I went online and started downloading all
25 of the things that were recorded against Lyon County.
Page 37
That's the first time I got this in my possession.
Q. And you don't remember executing any
documents relating to this transaction?
A. Well, you didn't ask me that. You asked me
if that was my signature. And I said [ couldn't
attest to that, because everything is electronic and
it's digital. If it was a wet signature -- do you
have a wet signature I could review?
Q. We're only providing copies.
A. So if it's a digital, I can't attest that
it's my signature. If it was wet signature, I would
be able to tell. ,
Q. Does it appear to be in the form of your
signature?
A, Well, T guess what I take issue with is the
fact that with computers you can take digitally and
move a signature from one page to another. And I've
seen so many fraudulent documents since this case
began that I just can't attest to that being my
signature. Unless you can give me a wet signature in
21 blue ink, I can't attest to that.
22 Q. You mentioned that you've seen fraudulent
23 documents. What other fraudulent documents have you
24 seen?
25 A. Chase filed a fraudulent document, several.

Page 38
1 Q. Which document?
2 A. There was an assignment that Chase did on
3 April 4th, I think it was in 2018, where, you know,
4 like ten years after the seizure of Washington Mutual
5
6
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where they said -- I don't have the document in front
of me, I'm going to have to pull from memory -- where
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7 they assigned it to themselves. Which, you know, it's

8 afraudulent document.

9 I also hired, as you know, a forensic

10 specialist. He's reviewed the document and also is in

11 agreement that it's a fraudulent document. There are

12 documents specifically, I want to say two thousand ~-
13 I'm trying to remember. When the assignment of

14 trustee was given to National Default, and I think 1t

15 was in December of 2013 -- I don't know exactly,

16 because I don't have the document in front of me -~

17 where they assigned, where Chase assigned -- there was
18 an attachment to that document that was dated about

19 three or four years before that giving assignment. It

20 was never recorded. It was just simply attached. It

21 was dated three or four years before the assignment

22 was actually recorded with Lyon County giving National
23 Default assignment of trustee. And I think that was a

24 fraudulent document as well.

25 There were other documents that had gaps, in

Page 39

On a motion for summary judgment, the burden of establishing the nonexistence of any
genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are resolved against him, and his supporting
documents, if any, are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the
Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284 (1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co.,
87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). Here, NDSC has failed to establish nonexistence of any genuine issue of fact
as to NDSC’s Exhibit 1. Plaintiffs contend that NDSC’s Exhibit 2 is a fabricated document and is

therefore disputed.
3. There is disputed genuine issue of material fact to be tried as to whether there was
a valid Deed of Trust when Natienal Default Servicing Corporation recorded the
“Notice of Default”

NV Rev Stat § 107.500 (2013) provides that at least 30 calendar days before recording a notice
of default and election to sell pursuant to subsection 2 of NRS 107.080 or commencing a civil action
for a foreclosure sale pursuant to NRS 40.430 involving a failure to make a payment required by a
residential mortgage loan and at least 30 calendar days after the borrower s default, the mortgage

servicer, mortgagee or beneficiary of the deed of trust shall mail, by first-class mail, a notice addressed

13- @D
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to the borrower at the borrower s primary address as indicated in the records of the mortgage servicer,

mortgagee or beneficiary of the deed of trust, which contains:

A statement of the facts establishing the right of the mortgage servicer, mortgagee or
beneficiary of the deed of trust to cause the trustee to exercise the trustee s power of sale pursuant to
NRS 107.080 or to commence a civil action for the recovery of any debt, or for the enforcement of any
right, under a residential mortgage loan that is not barred by NRS 40.430. please see, NV Rev Stat §
107.560 (c)

In its motion for summary judgment, NDSC contends that “On October 6, 2017, a non-judicial
foreclosure of the Property was initiated by the recording of Notice of Defauit (“NOD” or “Notice of
Default”) in the Official Records of the Lyon County, Nevada Recorder. (p.6,y 15., 1, Lines 2-4.,
MSJ). According to NDSC, “ An Assignment of the “Deed of Trust” from WaMu to Chase was
recorded in the Official Records of the Lyon County Recorder on April 10, 2018. (p.7,9 23., 1, Lines
10-11., MSJ).  Plaintiffs contend that at the time of filing of the “Notice of Default” there was no
assignment of Deed of Trust as required by NV Rev Stat § 107.500 (c ) prior to the commencement of
the non-judicial foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ residential real property. Additionally, its worth noting that
WaMu who became a defunct corporation in 2008, is incapable of issuing assignment of Deed of Trust
to JPMorgan Chase Bank on Aprilt 10, 2018. (Please Plaintiffs’ EXHIBIT G, a true and correct
copy of the purported Assignment of Deed of Trust.)

Plaintiffs contend that there is a genuine disputed issue of material fact to be litigated as to the
validity of the Notice of Default and that precludes the entry of summary judgment. The issue as to
whether there was a valid Deed of Trust on or about October 6, 2017 which provided National Default
Servicing Corporation (NDSC) the right to exerc_ise the trustee s power of sale pursuant to NRS
107.080 or to commence a civil action for the recovery of any debt, or for the enforcement of any right,

under a residential mortgage loan that is not barred by NRS 40.430 remains to be litigated and decided

by the jury.

-14- @ 5q®
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On a motion for summary judgment, the burden of establishing the nonexistence of any
genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are resolved against him, and his supporting
documents, if any, are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the
Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284 (1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co.,
87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). Here, NDSC has failed to establish Valid “Assignment of Deed of Trust” when
it filed the “Notice of Default”.  As such, there remain genuine disputed issue of material fact

concerning Valid “Assignment of Deed of Trust” that precludes the entry of summary judgment.

4. There is disputed genuine issue of material fact to be tried as to whether National
Default Servicing Corporation provided Plaintiffs “Notice” of A summary of the
borrower s account” prior to recording the “Notice of Default” and the subsequent
wrongful foreclosure of Plaintiffs’ residential real property

NV Rev Stat § 107.500 (b)(1-10) provides that prior to recording of the

Notice of Default or the sale of real property trustee must provide:
A summary of the borrower s account which sets forth:

(1) The total amount of payment necessary to cure the default and reinstate the
residential mortgage loan or to bring the residential mortgage loan into current status;

(2) The amount of the principal obligation under the residential mortgage loan;

(3) The date through which the borrower s obligation under the residential mortgage
loan is paid;

(4) The date of the last payment by the borrower;

(5) The current interest rate in effect for the residential mortgage loan, if the rate is
effective for at least 30 calendar days;

(6) The date on which the interest rate for the residential mortgage loan may next reset
or adjust, unless the rate changes more frequently than once every 30 calendar days;

(7) The amount of the prepayment fee charged under the residential mortgage loan, if
any,

(8) A description of any late payment fee charged under the residential mortgage loan;
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(9) A telephone number or electronic mail address that the borrower may use to obtain
information concerning the residential mortgage loan; and

(10) The names, addresses, telephone numbers and Internet website addresses of one or
more counselmg agencies or programs approved by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development.

Plaintiffs contend that there is a genuine disputed issue of material fact to be litigated that |
precludes the entry of summary judgment pertaining to whether NDSC provided Plaintiffs with notice
of summary of the borrowers’ account to apprise Plaintiffs of the amount of any indebtedness and
opportunity for Plaintiffs to cure or dispute the claim. |

On a motion for summary judgment, the burden of establishing the nonexistence of any
genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are resolved against him, and his supporting
documents, if any, are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the
Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284 (1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co.,
87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). Here, NDSC has failed to establish that it provided Plaintiffs with “Notice” of
a summary of the borrowers’ account when it filed the “Notice of Default”.  As such, there remain
genuine disputed issue of material fact as to whether NDSC complied with NV Rev Stat § 107.500
(b)(1-10)” Ibid.

5. There is disputed genuine issue of material fact to be tried as to whether National
Default Servicing Corporation provided Plaintiffs “Notice” Mailed the Notice of
Defanlt via Certified Mail to the Plaintiff

No evidence to demonstrate that “Notice of Default” was mailed to Plaintiffs via Certified
Mail With Return Receipt Signed by Plaintiffs

Plaintiffs contends that in their zeal to commit fraud upon this Court and to deprive Plaintiffs
with all pecuniary and beneficial interests in their residential real property, National Default Servicing
Corporation callously misrepresented that “On or about October 16, 2017, the Notice of Default was
mailed via Certified Mail to the Plaintiffs at:

i. 1740 Autumn Glen St., Fernley, Nevada 89408

ii. 1229 Ballena Blvd., Alameda, California 94501

-16- @@3
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and via first class mail to Parties in Possession at 1740 Autumn Glen St., Fernley, Nevada 89408-
7204” (p.6,9., 16, Lines 5-10., MSJ). Yet, NDSC proffered no evidence or any certified mail receipt
to demonstrate that Notice of Default was mailed via Certified Mail to the Plaintiffs. Ibid.
Furthermore, this is the first time NDSC proffered such representation. If fact, on March 1, 2019
hearing NDSC made no mention of notice via Certified mail. = The following is a true and correct

excerpt of the March 1, 2019 hearing:

PARTIAL EXCERPTS TRANSCRIBED FROM MARCH 1, 2019 HEARING WITH
JUDGE SCHLEGELMILCH, ACE VAN PATTEN-NDSC & PLAINTIFF—AUDREY
KRAMER

Ace Van Patten: They would be entitled to notice, but they’re also obligated to alleged that they’re
not in default, and here they haven’t done, so there is no basis for their — for their allegation that
they’re not in default when the bankruptcy had no effect on whether or not the account was current or
default or otherwise, it only affects whether that debt is non-recourse debt or standard debt, it could be
enforced against them personally. And in terms of the notice, though, the notice that they’ve alleged
they’re entitled to get that they were not living in the property, it’s not owner-occupied property. The
statutes that they’ve cited to under the foreclosure mediation program, the Homeowners Bill of Rights,
NRS 107.090, they’re inapplicable here. The mediation requirements and the Homeowners Bill of
Rights requirements required property be owner occupied.

Judge Schlegelmilch: And I don’t disagree with that. Okay? But the allegation that they failed to
receive notice of the deed, notice of default and election to sell, and therefore they were not given the
opportunity to cure [phonetic] the property is a factual allegation. Right? They’re not entitled to
foreclosure mediation, I grant you that, okay, because they’re not primary residence in the
property. That’s not their residential property or there’s no evidence before the court that it’s their
residential property. From the evidence that I saw was that they had somebody property managing it
and were renting it out. Okay? So, from what I’ve seen in the complaint. I mean, that’s how even in
allegation Chaffin and or somebody was property managing it and renting it.

Ace Van Patten: Well, I think, Your Honor, though, even if they alleged that they didn’t receive
notice, they haven’t provided a basis for — the statute doesn’t require that the notice be sent to every
possible address, it provides for what addresses need to be provided. And that they were not living in
the property; they hadn’t filed a recorded request to receive that. The fact that they did not personally
receive notice of that doesn’t sort of negate the facts that under the statutes, they may not have
received personal notice of it.

Judge Schlegelmilch: But if the bank actually knew and they asserted, okay, and they complained
that the bank actually knew where they were located.

Judge Schlegelmilch: Okay. Very good. Anything on that, folks?

-17- @g@
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Audrey Kramer: Yes, Your Honor. So, regarding the 107.090, I’ve read that very carefully,
numerous times. And what it states is in section 3, the foreclosing ARM, in this case, National
Default, must fulfill both subsection A and B. Subsection A requirement, each person who recorded a
request for a copy of notice; and Subsection B, requiring each person with an interest who’s interest or
claimed interest is subordinate to deed of trust must be notified in writing via registered or certified US
mail, return receipt requested, and the postage prepaid a copy of the notice of default. It doesn’t say
that anybody who wants to be noticed.

Judge Schlegelmilch: You are entitled to notice. You don’t even have to argue that.
Audrey Kramer: Thank you.

Judge Schlegelmilch: Okay?

Audrey Kramer: Thank you.

Judge Schlegelmilch: All right. You're entitled to notice.

Audrey Kramer: And because how would I know to ask for if [crosstalk] [0:39:08] I didn’t know it
was being filed against us in the first place?

Judge Schlegelmilch: Okay. You're entitled o notice.

The excerpt of the March 1, 2019 hearing totally cast doubt in NDSC’S represéﬁtation that it
sent Notice of Default to Plaintiffs via certified mail to the Plaintiffs. (p.6,%., 16, Lines 5-10., MSJ).
NDSC’s misrepresentation exemplifies the extent NDSC and its Attorney are willing to go to
perpetrate fraud upon the Court in their zeal to deprive Plaintiffs of all their pecuniary and beneficial
interest in their residential real property.

| Summary Judgment is appropriate only when moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter
of law, and no genuine issue remains for trial. Shepard v. Harrison. 100 Nev. 178, 678 P.2d 670
(1984); Pacific Pools Constr. Co. v. McClain's_Concrete, Inc.. 101 Nev, 557, 706 P.2d 849 (1985).
Here, NDSC has failed to proffer any evidence to demonstrate that it sent the notice of default to
Plaintiffs via Certified mail as required by the statute. As such, there is disputed genuine issue of
material fact to be tried as to whether National Default Servicing Corporation mailed Plaintiffs the
“Notice of Default” to Plaintiffs via certified mail or via any mail at all.. Accordingly, NDSC’s motion

for summary judgment must be denied in its entirety.

6. There is disputed genuine issue of material fact fo be tried as to NDSC contentions
on fact that are not pertinent to Plaintiffs claim for wrongful foreclosure and

P .
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Declaratory Relief in the instant case

FDIC’s receivership of WaMu
Plaintiffs contend that NDSC’s reference to FDIC’s receivership of WaMu
(p.4,9 9 5-8, Lines 1-14., MSJ) is not pertinent in the instant case as it fails to demonstrate the genuine

disputed issue of material fact as to whether NDSC provided Plaintiffs with “Notice™ as outlined Ibid.

Reference to Leo Kramer’s Bankruptcy
Plaintiffs contend that NDSC’s reference to Leo Kramer’s Bankruptcy
(p.4,9 9 10, Lines 20-22., MSJ) and (p.5,9 9 11-14, Lines 1-16., MSJ) is not pertinent in the instant
case because it fails to demonstrate the genuine disputed issue of material fact as to whether NDSC
provided Plaintiffs with “Notice” as outlined /bid. Further, Plaintiff, Audrey Kramer, did not file and
was not party to any Bankruptcy.

I
ARGUMENT

A, THE COURT MUST DENY NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING
CORPORATION’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT BECAUSE THERE IS

GENUINE ISSUE AS TO MATERIAL FACT TO BE LITIGATED WHICH
PRECLUDES THE ENTRY OF JUDGMENT AS A MATTER OF LAW

Standard of Review for Summary Judgment.
When reviewing a motion for summary judgment, the evidence and all reasonable inferences
drawn from the evidence, must be viewed in a light most favorable to the non-moving party." Richards

v. Republic Silver State Disposal, Inc., 122 Nev. 1213, 148 P.3d 684, 686 (2006). The nonmoving

party is entitled to have the evidence and all reasonable inferences accepted as true. Doud v. Las Vegas

Hilton Corp., 109 Nev. 1096, 1100, 864 P.2d 796 {1993). ™A factual dispute is genuine when the

evidence is such that a rational trier of fact could return a verdict for the nonmoving party." Turner v.

Mandalay Sports Entertainment, Inc., 124 Nev. , , 180 P.3d 1172, 1174-1175 (2008).quoting Wood v.
Safeway. Inc. 121 Nev. 724, 729, 121 P.3d 1026, 1029 (2005). If the party opposing summary

ay),
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judgment would be entitled to prevail under any reasonable construction of the evidence, summary

judgment against that nonmoving party cannot be sustained. Harris v. Itzhaki, 183 F.3d 1043, 1051

(9th Cir. 1999). All doubts must be resolved against the moving party (Addisu v. Fred Mever, Inc., 198

F.3d 1130, 1134 (9th Cir. 2000)), and its supporting affidavits and depositions, if any, must be

carefully scrutinized by the court even with respect to inferences. Hoffmeister Cabinets of Nev.. Inc. v

Bivins, 87 Nev. 282, 284, 486 P.2d 57 (1971).

Summary Judgment is appropriate only when moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter

of law, and no genuine issue remains for trial. Shepard v. Harrison, 100 Nev. 178, 678 P.2d 670

(1984); Pacific Pools Constr. Co. v. McClain's Concrete, Inc.. 101 Nev. 557, 706 P.2d 849 (1985).

The rule authorizes summary judgment only where the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter

of law, where it is quite clear what the truth is and that no genuine issue remains for trial. Short v.
Hotel Riviera, Inc., 79 Nev. 94, 378 P.2d 979 (1963); Olson v. Iacometti, 91 Nev. 241, 533 P.2d 1360
(1975); Lipshie v. Tracy Inv. Co.. 93 Nev. 370, 566 P.2d 819 (1977); Intermountain Veterinary
Medical Ass'n v. Kiesling-Hess Finishing Co., 101 Nev. 107, 706 P.2d 137 (1985); Van Cleave v.
Gamboni Constr. Co., 101 Nev. 524, 706 P.2d 845 (1985); Palevac v. Mid Century Non Auto, 101
Nev. 835, 710 P.2d 1389 (1985).

Summary judgment may be granted only if the pleadings and affidavits show that there is no
genuine issue as to any material fact and that the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of
law, McDermond v. Siemens, 96 Nev. 226, 607 P.2d 108 (1980); Hicks v. BHY Trucking. Inc.. 99
Nev. 519, 665 P.2d 253 (1983), cert. denied, 479 U.S. 994, 107 S. Ct. 597. 93 L. Ed. 2d 597 (1986);
Hampton v. Washoe County, 99 Nev. 819, 672 P.2d 640 (1983); Copeland v. Desert Inn Hotel, 99
Nev. 823. 673 P.2d 490 (1983); Hay v. Hay, 100 Nev. 196, 678 P.2d 672 (1984); Butler v.

Bogdanovich, 101 Nev. 449, 705 P.2d 662 (1985); Busch v. Flangas, 108 Nev. 821, 837 P.2d 438
(1992). Here, NDSC failed to meet its burden of establishing the nonexistence of any genuine issue of

fact. Plaintiffs contend that all doubts should be resolved against NDSC, and their supporting
documents, if any, should be stricken from the record.
Summary judgment is proper when the moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law,

and no genuine issue remains for trial. A party opposing such a motion for summary judgment must set

D
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forth specific facts showing that there is a genuine issue for trial and the opponent must show he can
produce evidence at the trial to support his claim. Van Cleave v. Kietz-Mill Minit Mart, 97 Nev. 414,
633 P.2d 1220 (1981). Here, Plaintiffs have met their burden by setting forth specific facts in their

statement of disputed material facts to demonstrate that there is a genuine issue of material fact, which
precludes the entry of summary judgment. On a motion for summary judgment, the burden of
establishing the nonexistence of any genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are
resolved against him, and his supporting documents, if any, are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See
Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284
(1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co., 87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). Further, summary judgment may be
granted only if the pleadings, admissions, depositions, answers to interrogatories and affidavits
establish that no genuine issue exists as to any material fact and the moving party is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law. Montgomery v. Ponderosa Constr., Inc., 101 Nev. 416, 705 P.2d 652
(1985). The party opposing summary judgment is entitled to have the evidence and all inferences
therefrom accepted as true. Jones v. First Mortgage Co. of Nevada, 112 Nev. 531, 915 P.2d 883
(1996); Johnson v. Steel, 100 Nev. 181, 182-183 (1984).

In Wood v. Safeway, 121 Nev. 724, 121 P.3d 1026 (2005), the Nevada Supreme Court clarified
the “slightest doubt” standard, holding that: A .factual dispute is genuine when the evidence is such that
a rational trier of fact could return a verdict for the nonmoving party. Id. at 724, 1026.  As shown
herein, taking into consideration the Wood standard, Defendant’s Motion must fail because Plaintiffs
have clearly demonstrated that there are material issues of fact that, depending on what more is learned

during discovery, could allow a jury to return a verdict in its favor for all claims at issue.

Notice of Notice of Default was not sent to Plaintiffs in accordance with Nevada State Law

prior to the non-judicial foreclosure and Election to Sell.

Summary judgment can only be granted when there are no genuine issues of material fact and
one party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law; hence, summary judgment is necessarily

foreclosed if there is the slightest doubt as to the operative facts. Sawyer v. Sugarless Shops, Inc., 106

Gaaq)
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Nev. 265, 792 P.2d 14 (1990). Here, it is irrefutable that there remains genuine issues of material fact

in this case because NDSC failed to provide Plaintiffs with Notice of Default and Election to Sell
before the sale of Plaintiffs’ residential real property.

The foreclosure is commenced by recording and mailing of a Notice of Default and Election to
Sell under NRS 107.080. This document identifies the property involved, the relevant deed of trust,
and the default or defaults that have occurred under the secured obligations. This document is recorded
in the real property records and also must be mailed by registered or certified mail to (1) the original
grantor of the deed of trust; (2) the current owner of the property; (3) the holders of any subordinate
encumbrances on the real property; (4) any person who has recorded a request for notice (and (5) any
guarantors of the secured obligations. Notices must be sent to the trustor and guarantors at their last
known addresses. Here, NDSC and JPMorgan Chase Bank were aware of Plaintiffs’ address yet
failed to send notice to Plaintiffs at their current or last known address via mail as required by the
Nevada Statute, even though Chase, who falsely purports to be beneficiary of Plaintiffs note, regularly
mailed statements to Plaintiffs’.

Because on a motion for summary judgment, the burden of establishing the nonexistence of any
genuine issue of fact is upon the moving party, all doubts are resolved against him, and his supporting
documents, if any; are carefully scrutinized by the Court. See Ottenheimer v. Real Estate Div. of the
Nevada Dept. of Commerce, 91 Nev. 338, 535 P.2d 1284 (1975); Daugherty v. Wabash Life Ins. Co.,
87 Nev. 32, 38 (1971). NDSC has undoubtedly failed to meet its burden of establishing the
nonexistence of any genuine issue of fact regarding “Notice of Default”.  Accordingly, NDSC’s

Motion for Summary Judgment must be denied in its entirety.
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CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reason, Plaintiffs respectfully request that the Court deny National Default
Servicing Corporation’s (NDSC) Motion For Summary Judgment’s Motion for Summary Judgment in

its entirety.

Dated: 5‘ g '20 20 Dated: 5 / 3/ 2.020

ool s Wi Wﬂdﬂﬂm

Leo Kramer, Pro per Audrey Kramer@’o per-
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PROCYF OF SERVICE The UPS Store
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) ' 1511 Sycamore Ave, Ste M
) SS: Hercules, CA 94547

COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA ) : store2796@theupsstore.com @

I am employed in the County of Alameda, State of California. I am over the age of 18 and not a

party to the withip action; my business address is: ‘
On O , I served the foregoing document entitled:

PLAINTIFFS, LEO KRAMER, AND AUDREY KRAMER’S OPPOSITION TO NATIONAL
DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION’S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT;
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT THEREOF; DECLARATION
OF AUDREY KRAMER

on all parties in this action as follows:
PLEASE SEE ATTACHED SERVICE LIST

Mail. By placing a true copy thereof enclosed in a sealed envelope. I am "readily familiar" with
the firm's practice of collection and processing for mailing. Under that practice it would be deposited
with the U.S. Postal Service on that same day with first class postage thereon fully paid at Hercules,
California in the ordinary course of business. I am aware that on motion of the party served, service is
presumed invalid if the postal cancellation date or the postage meter is more than one day after day of
deposit for mailing in this Proof of Service.

By Telefax. I transmitted said document by telefax to the offices of the addressees at the
telefax numbers on the attached Service List.

By Personal Service. I delivered such envelope by hand to the addressee(s).

X By Overnight Courier. I caused the above-referenced document(s) to be delivered to an
overnight courier service for next day delivery to the addressee(s) on the attached Service List.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California and under the laws
of the State of Nevada that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on MQTQ\'\ 73 ,ra(mat \:’\Q@\Q% , California.

- Corina DiGrazia % % =,

Name of Declarant , Signature of Declarant

@God)
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SERVICE LIST:

Matthew K. Schriever

John T. Steffen

Hutchison & Steffen

1008 West Alta Drive, Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89145

Attorneys for Defendants,
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND 2016 LLC, et al.

Ace Van Patten

Kevin S. Soderstrom

Tiffany & Bosco, P.A.

10100 W. Charleston Boulevard, Ste. 220
Las Vegas, NV 89135

Attorneys for Defendant,
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING CORPORATION

25-
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LIST OF EXHIBITS:

A. STATE OF NEVADA FORECLOSURE MEDIATION PROGRAM

B. TRANSCRIPT OF DEPOSITION OF DEBORAH TAYLOR

C. TRANSCRIPT OF DEPOSTION OF LEE ANN CHAFFIN

D. TRANSCRIPT OF DEPOSITION OF DANIEL STARLING

E. CHASE MONTHLY STATEMENTS/ENVELOPES

F, TRANSCRIPT OF DEPOSITION OF AUDREY KRAMER

G. CHASE BANK ROBO-SELF-SIGNED, SELF-ASSIGNED DEED OF
TRUST
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STATE OF NEVADA FORECLOSURE MEDIATION PROGRAM
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Doc #: 578119

03/22/2018 03:13 PM Page: 10f2
OFFICIAL RECORD
Requested By: SERVIGELINK TITLE AGENCY INC

Lyon County, NV :
Dawna L. Warr, Recorder

When recorded, return to; Fee: $38.00 RPTT: $0.00
Recorded By: lharrington

‘National Default Servicing Corporation '
7720 N. 16" Street, Suite 300
Phoenix, AZ. 85020
- @

12-31926-JP-NV
022-052-02

STATE OF NEVADA FORECLOSURE } IATION PROGRAM
CERTIFICATE

| Do Not Remove Co heet

gment
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JL TR o 5781-19 03!22.!;18 Page 2 of 2

HOME MEANS NEVADA, INC, Board of Directors
A Non-Profit Entity Established by the

, : . President — Shannon Chambers

State of Nevada, Department of Business and Industry ¥P.- Perry Faigin

Member at-largé™: Robin Sweet

Member at-large — ise Campbell

Member at-large ~Jopnifer Yim

STATE OF NEVADA FORECLOSURE MEDIATION PROG
CERTIFICATE
APN: 022-052-02 . m
Recording requested by; D Mediation Waiver: The B M forecfosue process.
National Default Servicing Corporation . e
[C]No Agreement: A Forg erence was held on . The parties
7720 North 16th Street, Suite 300 were unable to agree to a rese . The Beneficiary may proceed

with foreclosure process.

Phoenix AZ 85020

Wh ded. mail to: Relinquish 4 brecigsue Mediation Conference was held on .
en recorced, matlio: . The parties ho mer would voluntarily relinquish the property. The mediation

National Default Servicing Corporation required by law had-hedn completed in this matter. The Beneficiary may proceed

7720 Notth 16th Street, Suite 300 with the foreclosure proocs

Phoenix AZ 85020 The Grantor or person who holds the title of record

ure Mediation Conference, failed to produce the

orectosurs gy

\.

O Court ered: The Beneficiary may proceed with the foreclosure process.
Q ate: 10/06/2017  Proof of Service Date: 10/16/2017
\ w :
Propeftjf fl)w_n_gr(s'):' _ _ Property Address:
auiiey B Komer 1740 Auturnn Glen St.
=L : Fernlev, NV 89408

Trustee: Instrament Number:425436

Deed of Trust Document Numb ei':

Book = Page - .
Foreclosure on Program Certificate Number: 2018.01-27-0001 Issue Date: 01/27/2018

ay,
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Deborah Taylor - 9/16/2019
Leo Kramer, .lldrey Kramer vs. National Default Se.

leg Corp., et al.

THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA
--0oQo--
LEO KRAMER, ) Case No.: 18-CV-00663
AUDREY KXR2AMER, )
) Dept. No I
Plaintiffs, )
vs. )
)
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING )
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MC )]
DERMOTT, WEDGWQOD, INC., )
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND )
2016 LLC, and DOES 1 THROUGH )
50 INCLUSIVE, )
)
Defendants. )
)
DEPOSTITION OF DEBORAH TAYLOR
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019
Reno, Nevada
Reported by: EVELYN J. STURBS, CCR #356

(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com
Depo International, LL.C



(‘! Deborah Taylor - 9/16/2019
Leo Kramery, .<udrey Kramer vs. National Default Se.-«iCing Corp., et al.

1 APPEARANCES: 1 PURSUANT TO NOTICE, and on Monday, the 16th
2 2 day of September, 2019, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. of
3 LESOIQ ltR'}EM Pé?_\;ntﬁfds AUDREY KRAMER 3 said day, at the Courtyard by Marriott, 1 Ballpark
4 Arggg?%negl}_s gna 4 Lane, Reno, Nevada, before me, Evelyn J. Stubbs,
5 5 personally appeared DEBORAH TAYLOR,
§  Forthe De(f:endant National Default Servicing 6
7 TIFFArE;fy& BOSS.‘.VO P.A. 7 DEBORAH TAYLOR,
B 1016 UY V\ﬁs’: Cha\n(!aers‘t'gn Boulgvgrd Suite 220 8  called as a witness by the defendants herein,
- as( e ass Nev 9135 9 being first duly sworn,
10 avp tbl aw com 10 was examined and testifled as follows:
i: For the Deferbdant Br%%enns 'lgl? ProR‘any Fund 2016 LLC: i: EXAMINATION
13 B A"°rr1"?3’?<a§'a?u‘r'fever Esg, 13 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
T80 Wast Aia Brve Suite S50
14 as Vegas, Nevada 89145 14 Q. Justto start. Can you please state your
15 msc‘mrlever@sh%?chtegal com 15 name and spell it for the record.
16 ALSO PRESENT: 16 A. Deborah Tay.lor, D-E-B-0-R-A-H T-A-Y-L-O-R.
17 Lee Anne Chaffin 17 Q. So my name is Ace Van Patten. I'm the
18 18 attorney for National Default Servicing Corporation.
19 19 We're here today to discuss property at 1740
20 20 Autumn Glen Streetin Femley. And we're here for
21 21 your deposition today.
122 22 Just initially, for the sake of brevity, as
23 23 we get into It, If | refer to NDSC, I'm referring to
22 24 National Default Servicing Corporation. If | refer to
25 Page 2 25 the property or the subject property or Autumn Glen, age 4
1 INDEX 1 what I'm referring to is the 1740 Autumn Glen
2 THE WITNESS: DEBORAH TAYLOR 2 Property.
3 EXAMINATION PAGE 3 A Okay.
4 By Mr. Van Patien 4 4 Q. Have you ever been deposed before?
s By Mr. Schriever 33, 37 s A No.
& By Ms. Kramer 36 8 Q. Do you understand that you're under oath and
7 7 that your deposition testimony is just as significant
8 . s a & as if you were testifying in court?
9 9 A. Yes.
10 INDEX OF EXHIBITS 10 Q. Soas we getinto it, if you don't
11 NUMBER: MARKED: - i1 understand a question, please et me know, and Il
12 1. 8 12 repeat orfry to clarify. If you answer it, though,
13 f%g o 3“ OPBe%oré;Ealflaqu 13 wae're going to assume that you understood it and that
1t 2. Qeclarat;on of Deborah Taylor 20 14 youanswered it appropriately.
15 is A. Um-hum.
16 3- I&%@e{}&ﬁ %@ %‘Ele fon 24 i6 Q. And because this is being recorded, can't
17 17 have non-verbal answers like head shaking. Also can't
18 ‘ é':éﬁ?a[" ﬁ-l%r, cfgﬁ&"fé‘,"&?ﬁ"? 26 18 have like uh-huh, nuh-uh; need yes or no just for the
s 1 pag.eay 19 record. Do you understand that?
20 9° #’;ﬁ?ﬁ;‘? M OWBE® T |x A ves.
21 : , 21 Q. Also just to make it easier on her, and this
22 6- M&&%ﬁ&gﬁﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁé@dﬁou 28 22 s something we'll both have to work together on,
23 7. ! 30 23 because it is being recorded and transcribed, we can't
24 J{S‘@éﬁ%ﬁ&qﬁﬁb@&%@@dﬁs 24 talk over each other. So I'll ask a question, if
25 25 you'l allow me to complete the question before you
Page 3 Page 5

(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com
Depo International, LLC

Page 2 (2 h
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Deborah Taylor - 9/16/2019
Leo Kramer, .’rey Kramer vs. National Default Ser‘g Corp,, etal.

1 answer, in turn, 'l wait for you to complete your 1 from giving accurate and truthful testimony today?
2 answer before | ask a new question. 2 A. No.

3 A. Okay. 3 Q. 1'm going to mark this as Exhibit 1.

4 Q. Do you understand the difference between an 4 (Exhibit 1 was marked for identification.)

5 estimate and a guess? So let me provide an example. 5 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:

¢ if | asked you to estimate how big this table is, you 8 Q. Have you seen this document before?

7 could, because you're here, you can of see it; you can 7 A. Yes.

8 make a pretty informed estimation of how big it is. 8 Q. Is this the Amended Notice of Taking

9 Butif | asked you how big the table in my office was, 5 Deposition of Deborah Taylor?

1¢ you'd have to guess, because you haven't seen it. 10 A. Yes.

11 A. Correct. 11 Q. Did you review this notice?

12 Q. ButI'm not going to ask you to guess. if 12 A. Yes.

13 you estimate, that's fine, just let me know that 13 Q. And when was that?

14 you're estimating or approximating dates, amounts, 14 A. The day | received it.

15 that type of things. 15 Q. Do you remember when you received it?

16 A, Okay. 1g A. No.

X7 Q. Someone may object to some of my questions 17 Q. Did you review the areas of inquiry on pages

18 asyou getinto it. That's fine. You ¢an go ahead 18 two and three?

18 and answer those, unless you're specifically directed 1e A. Yes.

20 not to answer that. And then If that comes up, we'll 20 Q. Are you here today to testify on all those

21 just address it at that point. 21 areas?

22 A, Okay. 22 A. Yes.

23 Q. You'll have an opportunity to review the 23 Q. How did you prepare for the deposition

22 transcript of the deposition. You can make any 24 today?

25 corrections you feel are necessary if you belleve page & 25 A. ldidn't actually prepare for the page &
1 something was inaccurately recorded. | will say 1 deposition. 1got all the documents together and sent
z though, if you to do that, | can at trial, if it comes 2 them to you that | felt were on the list.

3 fothat, point out the discrepancy and ask you 3 Q. When you were reviewing those documents to
4 questions about that. 4 pull them together, did you actually review the

5 A. Okay. s documents?

3 Q. So just generally, if you need a break, we & A. Yes.

7 cantake a break. The only thing is we can't take a 7 Q. Were those documents the entirety of your

& break in the middle of a question. Il have to have 8 file -

5 you finish the question before we take a break. s A. Yes.

10 " But other than that, any questions so far? 10 Q. - forthis property?

11 A. No. 11 A. Yes.

12 Q. So next question we have to ask af every 12 Q. Are there physical files?

13 depasition, so don't take it personally, but are you 13 A. All of our files are online, so | had to

1z presently taking or are you under the influence of any 14 print them.

15 prescription medications, alcohol, non-prescription 15 Q. Okay. Did you speak with an aftorney about

16 medications? 16 this deposition?

17 A. I|take prescription medications, but they're 17 A. No.

18 not narcotic. 18 Q. Did you speak with anyone about this

13 Q. Okay. Do any of those medications cause 15 dsposition?

20 forgetfulness, loss of mental acuity? 20 A, Justmy boss, Lee Anne.

21 A. No. 21 Q. And as we getinto it, if | say "spsak,”

22 Q. Do you feetl like you're suffering from any 22 what I'm really meaning is communication In all forms.

23 side effects right now? 23 So that would include text messages, e-mails, regular

24 A. No. 24 mail, fax, basically any method of communication.

25 Q. ls there anything that would prevent you 25 A. 1did communicate a little bit with Audrey

. . Page 7 Page §
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also.

Q. Okay. When was that?

A. Thursday. No - Thursday.

Q. And just to canfirm for the sake of the
record, | just need to have your testimeny on if.

Ms. Chaffin will have an opportunity at a later polnt.

A. Sure,

Q. What was the topic of that conversation?

A. The e-mail that you sent asking for a
missing document,

Q. And what did you guys discuss?

A. She was just telling me there was only
certain documents you could ask for. And | told her
you were just asking for a missing e-mail.

Q. What documents did she say | could ask for?

A. DPocuments pertaining to specifically what
the case is about.

Q. Were there other documents pertaining to the

1
2
3
4
5

Deborah Ann Taylor, Deborah Ann Baker.
Q. Any others?
A. 1don't think so, no.
Q. Can you tell me about your educational
history starting with high school?
A. What do you mean by "history"?
Q. Did you graduate from high school?
A. |did not. | have a GED.
Q. Okay. What was the highest grade you
completed?
Almost all of 12th grade.
Okay. When did you get your GED?
'95, "96.
Any college classes?
No.
Any trade school?
Real estate.
And what did you do relating to real estate

OPrOoPOLPOP

15 Autumn Glen property that you did not provide? 19 in terms of education?
20 A. ldon't believe | provided a management 20 A. You have to do 90 hours, | believe, of
21 agreement or a lease agreement from a prior tenant. |21 class. Sol did that at home. Self-study type,
22 Q. Those were the only documents you did not 22 that's how | did that. And then there's continual
23 provide? 23 education after that.
24 A. 1believe so. 22 Q. And did you get a license?
25 Q. 1believe you sgid earlier that you also Page 10 25 A. Yes. Page 12
1 spoke with Ms. Chaffin; is that correct? 1 Q. When was that?
2 A. Yes. 2 A, 2010. [ also have a property management
3 Q. What did you guys speak about? 3 certificate/license,
4 A, le-mailed her and asked her to look at the 4 Q. And when did you get that?
5 e-mail and answer it, because | didn't understand it 5 A. Same time, 2010.
§ Q. Whatdid she say? § Q. Okay. What's vour current occupation?
7 A. She responded to your e-mail. And we 7 A. Real estate agent, property manager.
8 discussed documents prior to that. She Instructed me 8 Q. And where are you currently working?
9 to get all the documents together. 9 A, Chaffin Real Estate Services.
10 Q. Other than Ms. Chaffin and Ms. Kramer, did 10 Q. As we getinto it, if you hear me refer to
11 you discuss this deposition with anybody else? 11 Chaffin or Chaffin Real Estate, what I'm referring to
12 A. My husband. 12 js Chaffin Real Estate Services.
13 Q. What was the general topic of that 13 And how iong have you been at Chaffin?
14 discussion? 14 A. Since 2010.
15 A. Justthat ] had to give a deposition, and 15 Q. Prior to that where were you working?
16 I've never given one before, 16 A, Lyon County School District.
17 Q. So before we get Into questions about the 17 Q. What were you doing for Lyon County?
18 Autumn Glen property, I'm going to ask you some 18 A. Special e&ucation aid.
1s general background questions. 1# Q. Andwhat's your current address?
20 A, OKay. 20 A. 1548 Maria Court, Fernley, Nevada, 89408.
21 Q. So have you been known by any other name or 21 Q. How long have you lived there?
22 pames? 22 A. Since 2009, 10 years.
23 A. Yes. 23 Q. Where did you live before that?
24 Q. And what are those? 24 A. Canary Circle, Fernley, Nevada, 89408,
25 A. Deborah Dieterich, Deborah Ann Dieterich. 25 Q. Do you rent or own?
Page 11 Page 13
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1 A. lown, at least the part the bank doesn't. 1 A, Yes.
2 Q. And Canary Circle, did you rent or own that? 2 Q. And was the tenant you're referring 1o
3 A. Rent. 3 Daniel Starling?
4 Q. Have you owned any other real property in 4 A. Yes.
5 the last ten years? 5 Q. Were there any other partiés living in the
6 A. No. € Autumn Glen property with Mr. Starling?
7 Q. Have you ever had a property foreclosed 7 A. His girlfriend Maria.
8 upon? 8 Q. And is that Maria Mendoza?
9 A. Yes, but | don't know for sure if it was 9 A. Yes.
10 fully in my name. 10 Q. Previously you sald that Chaffin had
11 Q. When was that? 11 acquired the property.
1z A. 1989, 1990 maybe. |left. | don't know 12 A. Yeah, in 2014, Chaffin Real Estate purchased
13 what happened to the property. My mother-in-law was |13 another property management agency, and that came with
14 involved, so I'm not sure of the detalls, 14 that. That property came with that contract.
is Q. Do you remember who the lender was? 15 Q. So Chaffin had no interest in the property,
1s A. No. 16 only in the property management componant of it?
17 Q. Have you ever been a party to any lawsuit as 17 A, Correct.
18 eilther a plaintiff or defendant? 18 Q. Who was the last tenant that you dealt with
19 A. No. 19 in regard to the Autumn Glen property?
20 Q. Other than fraffic offenses, have you ever 20 A, Daniel Starling.
21 been convicted of any criminal offensa? 21 Q. And when was Mr. Starling in the property?
22 A. No. 22 A. |believe until 2018.
23 Q. As part of your duties with Chaffin, did you 23 Q. When did he first mova In?
24 have any involvement with the Autumn Glen property? 24 A, When did he first move in, March of 2017.
25 A. Yes. ’ 25 Q. And the document you just referred to was
Page 14 Page 16
1 Q. What were your duties? 1 the lease agreement that had previously been provided
2 A. When we acquired the property, it was 2 inresponse fo the subpoena?
3 occupied. So on a regular basis we would do 3 A, Yes.
4 maintenance, | would schedule maintenance, collect 4 Q. In your duties at Chaffin with regard to the
5 rent. And then it became vacant, and 1 would do walk- 5§ Autumn Glen property, have the Kramers always been the
6 through, prepare for the next tenant, advertise, do 6 owners?
-7 background check on the tenant, do the -- we have a 7 A, Yes,
8 rental program that we have to enter all of this in, 8 Q. And when did you first meet the Kramers?
5 make a new lease, get the tenant moved In, and 9 A. Facetoface or —
10 continue collecting rent, and maintenance on that 10 Q. Let's start with face to face.
11 property. 11 A. Sometime in 2018, when we went to court.
12 Q. When did you first start being involved with 12 Q. Did you have any other contact with them in
13 the Autumn Glen property? 13 any other context?
14 A. 2014, mid year, | can't give you an exact 14 A. Only in e-mails, yes, beginning in 2014,
15 date. 15 Q. How would you characterize your relationship
16 Q. Are you still involved with the Autumn Glen 16 with the Kramers?
17 property? 17 A. Professional.
18 A. ‘Only as relating to this lawsuit. 18 Q. Other than normal pleasantries, have you had
19 -Q. When, in the context of your duties at 19 any personal discussions with the Kramers about
20 Chaffin, did you stop having involvement with Autumn 20 anything other than the Autumn Glen property?
22 Glen? 21 = A, No.
22 A. 2018, springtime. I'm sorry. 1t was when 22 Q. Would you call them friends?
23 the tenant moved out. 23 A. No.
24 Q. And you said you thought that was the spring 2¢ Q. Did you have any contact with Danie!
25 of 20187 25 Staring before he moved into the Autumn Glen property?

Page 15

Page 17
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" A. Justin the weeks preceding as we produced

his application and we completed his lease.

Q. Do you have an e-mail address at Chaffin?

A. Yes, ldo.

Q. And what's that e-malil address?

A. It's Debi, D-E-B-l, @chaffinrealestate.com.

Q. You provided in respoense to our subpoena
several documents, which included some e-mails; is
that correct?

A. Yes,

Q. And of those e-mails provided none of them
were hefore approximately May 2018; is that carrect?

1
2
3
4
5
&
7
8
9

A. Say that again.

Q. Do you beliave that e-mails involving the
Autumn Glen property were deleted in the batch of
a-malls deleted?

A. Yes. .

Q. Dcoes Chaffin have a policy regarding the
deletion of e-mails?

A. No. '

MR. VAN PATTEN: Mark this as Exhibit 2.

(Exhibit 2 was marked for identification.)

BY MR. VAN PATTEN;
) Q. Have you seen this document before?

13 A. That’s corract. 13 A. Yes.

14 Q. Whyis that? 14 Q. Is this the — Is this document, it has a

1s A. 1don't have them. 15 fitle down at the bottom Declaration of Deborah

g Q. And why do you not have them? 16 Taylor?

17 A. |would have deleted them, 17 A. Yes.

is Q. When was It discovered that those e-mails 18 Q. When was the first time you saw this

19 had been deleted? 19 document?

20 A. When you -in the e-mail that asked for a 20 A. Like this, when it was sent as part of -

21 missing e-maii, and | just went to look. Sent you 21 you know, | can't remember.

22 what | thought was missing, and you specifically 22 Q. Interms of, with the exception of the first

23 ouilined what e-mail you were asking for, and | went {23 cover page, do you recognize what is effectively pages

24 to look for and didn't have it, and found that my 24 {wo and three of the document?

25 e-mails in regards to this property went back top gggy.la 25 A Yes, page 20
1 Q. When were those e-mails deleted? i Q. When did you first see pages two and three?
2 A. |don't know. 2 A. Well, | wrote them In my own words, so...
3 Q. Who deleted the e-malls? E] Q. You prepared this document?

4 A. |would have. Can ! give you an estimate of 4 A. 1didr’t prepare the document as here, but |

s when | think they were deleted? 5 wrote this out. '

€ Q. Yes. 6 Q. Who prepared the documeni?

7 A. Probably October/November of 2018. 7 A. 1believe Audrey did. | honestly don't

8 Q. Do yoh know what range of dates the deleted 8 remembar. She asked me to do an affidavit including
$ e-mails fall inta? 9 all this information, and so | wrote it up.

10 A. |think just |n that time frame. ] 10 Q. When did they ask that?

11 Q. And when you say in that time frame, you 11 A. October, as it's dated October of 2018,

1z mean hefore October 20187 ‘ 12 Q. Did they provide any other documents to you

13 A. From around October/November of 2018. 13 in support of the affidavit?

14 Q. Wasit every e-mail during that period which 14 A. No.

15 had been deleted ar only relating to Autumn Glen? 1s Q. When you sald they contacted you, how did

15 A, ldon'tknow. 15 they contact you about the affidavit?

17 Q. Were any attempts made at recovering those 17 A. [believe she called me on the phone,

18 e-mails? 18 Q. What did she ask you to do?

18 A. No. 19 A. Just write up the information pertaining to

20 Q. Was it only your e-mails which were deleted? 20 the proparty.

21 A. Yes. | only have access to my e-mail 21 Q. Did they tell you what it was for?

22 account. 22 A. Well, yeah, | knew it was a lawsuit.

23 Q. And you believe e-mails involving the Autumn 23 Q. s that your signature at the bottom of page

24 Glen property wers included in those e-mails which 21 37

25 were deleted? ' 25 A. Yes,itis.

. Page 19 Page 21
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Before signing, did you review the document?

A. Not off the top of my head.
R Page 23

1 Q. 1 Q. Would it have been 2017, 20187
2 A. Yes, 2 A, Starting in October of 2017,
3 Q. Was it accurate? 3 Q. Did it continue into 20187
4 A. Yes. 4 A. Yes.
5 Q. Did you ask for any revisions to the 5 Q. When you roceived those documents from
6 document? 6 Mr. Starling, what did you do with them?
7 A. No. 7 A. [notified Lee Anne and | notified Audrey.
8 Q. In conducting your review of this 8 Q. 1l mark this as Exhibit 3.
9 declaration, did you review any documents? 9 (Exhibit 3 was marked for Identification.)
10 A. Are you referring to recently or when | 10 BY MR, VAN PATTEN:
11 first saw this? 11 Q. lsthis a document entitied Notice of
12 Q. When you first executed this? 12 Default and Election to Sell under Deed of Trust
13 A, [looked for documents to support this at 13 |mportant Notice bearing a recording stamp In the
14 the time that I wrote this, yes. 14 upper right-hand corner with a document number 574145?
15 Q. Did you receive anything In exchange for 15 A Yes. '
16 executing the document? 16 Q. Allright. I'm going to call this document
117 A. No. 17 the notice of default going forward.
18 Q. Were you promised anything in exchange for 18 A. Okay,
19 executing the document? 19 Q. Havae you seen this document befora?
20 A. No. 20 A, Yes,
21 Q. 'Did any tenant ever provide any mall for the 21 Q. When?
22 Kramers relating to the Autumn Glen property? 22 A. October of 2017,
23 A. There was notices posted on the house, not 23 Q. Is this the document provided by
24 mail. 24 Mr. Starling?
25 Q. Even outslde of the scops of the 25 A, Yes,
i Page 22 Page 24
1 declaration, did a tenant ever provide any mail? i Q. Did you provide a copy of the notice of
2 A. Mail, no. 2 default to anybody?
3 Q. Butyou said a tenant did provide documents 3 A, To Audrey and possibly Lee Anne,
4 which had been posted on the door of — 4 Q. When did you provide that copy?
5 A. Correct. 5 A. The day | received it, October 2017,
6 Q. And when was that? 6 Q. How did you pravide it?
7 A. Beginning in October of 2017. 7 A. By e-mail.
8 Q. Andwho provided that? 8 Q. With the exception of e-mail, did you have
8 A, The tenant notified me. 9 any other form of communication about the hotice of
10 Q. Wasthat Mr. Stariing? 1¢ default with the Kramers?
11 A. Yes, I'm sorry. 11 A. By phone.
12 Q. And how did Mr. Starling notify you of that 12 Q. And when was that?
13 document? ‘ 13 A. The same time frame, October 2017.
14 A. Hae initially sent me an e-mail stating they 14 Q. And what did you discuss?
15 had received documaents on the door, and he sent me 15 A. Just to confirm that she had recelved it and
16 coples. And he continued bringing me coples of these |16 her explaining that it wasn't real, because the
17 documents, bacause they were posted several times. 17 tenants were freaking out. They were concerned they
18 Q. And he brought those in person? 18 would have to move.
19 A. Yes. ’ 139 Q. When you discussed the notice of default
20 Q. How many times would you say he brought 20 with the tenants, what did you tell them?
21 those in person? 21 A. |told them that | would forward all the
22 A. Two orthree. 22 jnformation to the owner and et them know what the
23 Q. Do you remember the dates those documents 23 owner had to say, and then told them that the owner
24 would have been provided in person? 24 said that the home was not in foreclosure, they had
25 25

not recelved any notices. So thay were not to be
Page 25
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1 concerned. 1 Q. Have you seen this document before?
2 Q. Did the Kramers give you any directions 2 A. Yes,
3 about how to handle the notice of default? 3 Q. When?
4 A. Nothing further, no. 4 A. The day it was sent, Qctober 24th, 2017.
5 Q. When you spoke with Ms. Chaffin about the 5 Q. Do you remember this e-mail?
& notice of default, what did you have guys discuss? 8 A. Yes,
7 A. ljust let her know that we had received 7 Q. Mark this as Exhibit 6.
8 this from the tenant and that [ would be forwarding it | 8 (Exhibit 6 was marked for identification.)
9 to the owner. 2 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
10 Q. And what did she say? 10 Q. s this a document entitled Notice of
11 A. That that was fine. We didn't really 11 Trustee's Sale with a recording stamp with document
1z discuss it. 12 number 479380 [sic) in the upper right-hand corner?
13 Q. Did you advise the Kramers to take any 13 A. 5793807
14 action? 14 Q. Yes.
15 A, No. 15 A. Okay, yes.
18 Q. Did you advise the tenant to take any action? 16 Q. I'm going to call this the notice of sale
17 A. No, except to not worry about it. 17 going forward.
18 Q. We will mark this as Exhibit 4. 18 A, Okay.
1 (Exhibit 4 was marked for identification.) 139 Q. Have you seen this document before?
20 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 20 A. Yes.
21 Q. This document appears to be an e-mail chain. 22 Q. When?
22 The top e-mail is from Audrey Kramer with a date 22 A. This would have been posted on the house on
23 Qctober 16, 2017, at 2;01 and 49 seconds. Is this 23 the date when the tenant brought it to me. So shortly
24 what you're looking at? 24 thereafter the day it was posted.
25 A. Yes. 25 Q. And which tenant would have brought this?
Page 26 Page 28
1 Q. Have you seen this document before? 1 A. This is Danije! Starling.
2 A. Well, yes, because ] wrote part of it. 2 Q. Did Mr. Starling say where he found the
3 Q. Andwhen did you see that? 3 notice?
4 A. October 16th, 2017, 4 A. That it was posted on the house,
5 Q. What does this document appear to be? 5 Q. When you received the notice of sale what
8 A, It was when | notified her of the notice of 6 did you do?
7 default on the home, and the documents were attached. | 7 A. lwould have contacted Audrey Kramer.
8 Q. The documents that are attached, which 8 Q. When would you have done that?
8 documents are you referring? s A. Immediately upon receiving the document.
1w A. The Notice of Default, this one that you -- 10 Q. How wouid you have contacted her?
11 Exhiblt 3. 11 A, Bye-mall
12 Q. Okay. Do you have any reason to believe you 12 Q. Would you have communicated with Ms, Kramer
13 did not send the October 16th, 2017 e-mail? 13 about the notice of sale via any other method beyond
14 A. No. 14 e-mail?
1s Q. Do you have any reason to believe you did 15 A. Phone call.
16 not receive the response from Ms. Kramer that same 16 Q. And when did you make a phone cali?
17 day? 17 A. ldon't know. Around that same time.
18 A, No, 18 Q. But you did make a phone call?
18 - Q. This as Exhibit 5. 19 A. ldon't know. [f there was any other
20 (Exhibit 5 was marked for identification.) 20 communication, it would have been a phone call.
21 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 21 Q. As part of your e-mail, would you have
22 Q. Is this a document appearing to be an e-mail 22 provided a copy of the notice of sale?
23 from Audrey Kramer with the date October 24th, 2017, 23 A. Yes.
24 and a time stamp of 2:14 and 18 seconds? 24 Q. Did you communicate with anyone besides the
25 A. Yes. 25 Kramers about the notice of sale?
Page 27 Page 29
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1 A. Just Lee Anne. 1 A. Again, that it wasn't a legal sale.
2 Q. And what did you guys discuss? 2 Q. When you spoke to Ms. Chaffin about it, what
3 A. Just the same as before; that we received 3 did you guys discuss?
4 this and that | was sending it to the owner. 4 A. [told her that we had received it and that
5 Q. Did the Kramers ever discuss the notice of 5 |would send it {o Audrey, and at that time we had to
& sale with you? 6 consider that this was legal and the tenant was going
7 A. Only that it wasn't a legal sale, that the 7 to have to move.
8 house was not legally foreclosed on. 8 . Whatdid you advise the tenants with regard
9 Q. Did they advise you to take any action in 95 to the trustee's deed?
10 response to the notice of sale? 10 A. That it appeared to be legal and that we
11 A. No. 11 could no longer be a party to it, as we would no
12 Q. Did you advise the Kramers to take any 12 jonger be managing it, so that we would release them
13 gction? 13 from their lease and release their deposit.
14 A. No. 14 Q. And what did the tenants do in response?
15 Q. Did you advise the tenants to take any 15 A. Moved.
186 action? 16 Q. Did the Kramers provide any direction to you
17 A. No. 17 with regard to the trustee's deed?
18 Q. Mark this as Exhibit 7. 18 A. No, notthat | remember.
1g (Exhibit 7 was marked for identification.) 19 Q. Did you provide any recommendation to the
20 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 20 Kramers regarding the trustee's deed?
21 Q. Isthis a document with a title Trustee's 21 A, No.
22 Deed Upon Sale, in the upper right-hand corner a 22 Q. Have you ever communicated with regard to
23 recording mark of document number 5816257 23 the Autumn Glen property with NDSG?
24 A. Yes. 24 A. Well, | don't know. | have communicated
25 Q. 'I'm going to call this the trustee's deed 25 with several people claiming they were the new owners
Fage 30 Page 32
1 going forward. Have you seen the trustee's deed 1 but | don't believe any of them were specifically with
2 before? 2 that company.
3 A. Yes. 3 Q. And again, NDSC is the National Default
4 Q. When? 4 Servicing Corporation.
5 A. June of 2018, 5 A. Right.
6 Q. Were you provided a copy of the document? 3 Q. They were the foreclosure trustee on behalf
7 A. lwas provided a copy of it from 7 of the beneficiary.
8 Breckenridge when they called and said the property 8 A. Okay. So, no, | don't belleve so.
¢ had been sold. 5 Q. Is your testimony this morning complete and
io0 Q. Did you receive a copy from any tenant? 10 accurate?
31 A. No. | don't believe so. 11 A. Yes.
12 Q. When you received the trustee's deed, what 1z Q. Is there anything else with regard to my -
13 did you do? 13 questioning that you would fike to add?
14 A. Again i contacted Audrey and Lee Anne and 1s A. No.
15 sent them copies. 15 MR, VAN PATTEN: Does anyone else have any
16 Q. And when would you have done that? 16 questions?
17 A. The same time, June of 2018 right after | 17 MR. SCHRIEVER: Yeah, | have a couple.
18 raceived it. kK EXAMINATION
19 Q. Would you have communicated with the Kramers 15 BY MR. SCHRIEVER:
20 via'any other method besides e-mail? 20 Q. My name is Matt Schriever. | represent
21 A. Possibly by phone. | don't believe so. 21 Breckenridge Property Fund in this matter.
22 Q. What did you discuss with the Kramers about 22 When Danlel Starling lived at the property,
23 the frustee's deed? 23 you say he lived there with a fiancee, Maria; is that
24 A. Just that we had received this. 24 correct?
25 Q. And what did they say? 25 A. Yes.
. . Page 31 Page 313
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of 2018. And they're in the packet of all the e-mails
Page 35

1 Q. Were there any other children that lived 1 that went back and forth.
2 there that you're aware of? 2 Q. And those were provided in response to the
3 A. No. 3 document request?
4 Q. Na children at all? 4 A. Yes. )
5 A. No children. 5 Q. And [ haven't seen those yet, so I'll look
é Q. Even part time, perhaps on the weekend or ¢ atthose later, But those e-mails reference the
7 anything like that? 7 notice of sale corespondence that you provided to
8 A. That!wouldn't know. 8 Ms. Kramer; is that correct?
5 Q. And then as far as the e-mails that deleted, ] A. 1believe they do.
1o did you go in and manually delete those or do those 10 Q. Okay. Did you do any sort of investigation
11 automatically delete after a certain period of ime? 11 orlook into the validity of the foreclosure prior to
12 A. |would have deleted them. 12 actually receiving the Trustee's Deed Upon Sale?
13 Q. Soyou wentin on your own and deleted them? 13 A, No.
14 A. Yes. 14 MR. SCHRIEVER: Okay. | don't have anything
15 Q. Okay. Does Chaffin Real Estate, do they 15 else.
16 have any sort of policy to instruct an owner of a 16 EXAMINATION
17 property to contact the post office and have their 17 BY MS. KRAMER:
18 mail forwarded to a coect address? 18 Q. |do have a question for you. Have | ever
ig A. No. We don't have a pollcy of that, no. 195 or my husband ever asked you to be an authorized agent
20 Q. Do you recommend that to homeowners? 20 on our behalf to recelve mail on our behalf?
21 A. No. 21 A. No.
22 Q. Landlords?’ 22 Q. You willingly agreed to sign the declaration
23 - A. No. 23 and you stated to me and also in the declaration that
24 Q. So you would not have recommended or advised 24 there wers numerous people that contacted your
25 the Kramers ta do that in this instance? 25 office —
Page 34 Page 36
1 A. No, because there were a tenant in the home 1 A. Yes,
2 when we acquired it. it wasn't a new property to us. 2 Q. - dectaring that they were the new owners
3 Q. Ifit was a new property would you have 3 that purchased the praperty. And in particular, when
4 adviseda homeowner to do that? 4 Ms. McDermott called, did she ever identify herself as
& A. No, not necessarily. 5 an agent or an employee to you?
6 Q. Okay. These notices that the tenant § A. |believe she said she was the owner, the
7 provided to you, the notice of default, the notice of 7 new owner.
8 sale, did he physically hand you a copy? Did he a Q. Andinregard to Ms. Aguilera, did she also
9 e-mail you a copy? How did he provide those to you? 9 declare herself initially as the new owner of the
10 A. Both. Some were brought to the office hand |10 property?
11 delivered and some he had e-mailed. 1 A, She initially said she had just purchased
1z Q. Do you recall which was which way? 12 the property, that she was the new owner, but later
13 A. No. 13 she said she was an asset manager for Wedgewood.
14 Q. You said something about the notice of 14 Q. Okay.
15 default, the document wasn't real. That wasn't your 15 MS. KRAMER: That's all | have. Thank you.
15 “words, those were the words of Ms. Kramer — 16 MR. VAN PATTEN: Do you have any follow-up
17 A. Correct. That it was an error, that it 17 gquestions?
18 wasn't a ~ it wasn't real. 18 MR. SCHRIEVER: Yeah, really quick.
13 Q. And you provided e-mails -- or we have 19 FURTHER EXAMINATION
20 e-mails regarding the notice of default in October of 20 BY MR. SCHRIEVER:
21 2017, but your e-mail correspendence regarding the 21 Q. Your correspondence with Alyssa McDermott,
22 notice of sale, that would have been part of those 22 those were only by phone; is that correct?
23 e-mails that were deleted? 23 A. Correct.
24 A. No, there's ~ | have e-mails from about May 24 Q. And your conversations with Carmen Aguilera,
25 25

- ?
were those also only by phone; is that correct? page 37

(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com
Depo Intexrnational, LLC

Page 10 (34 @
4]




Deborah Taylor - 9/16/2019

Y

Leo Krame:-,..‘,rey Kramer vs. National Default Se.,,lg Corp., et al.

w oW 9 R s W N

i0
11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

A. Yes. One of them was -~ where is my paper?
One of them | asked them to send an e-mail with
document of the deed.

Q. Ckay.

A. W'sinthere. [ can't find the right page.

Q. And when they said that they bought the
property or they owned the property, | mean did they
say that personally, were they on behalf of the
husiness they worked at or was it kind of unclear as
fo how that —

A. Both times they said they had purchased the
property and they were the new owner. Specific words.

Q. Okay.

MR. SCHRIEVER; 1don't have anything else.

MR. VAN PATTEN: Ms. Kramer, any further
questions?

MS. KRAMER: No, thank you,

MR. VAN PATTEN: 1 have no further questions
as well. So we can conclude the deposition. Again,
you'll have a chance to review and sign the deposition
franscript once it's prepared.

Again, | thank you for your time.

{Whereupon the deposition concluded at 10:51 a.m.)
-o0o-—-
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CERTIFICATE OF WITNESS

| hereby certify under penalty of perjury,
that | have read the foregoing deposition, made the
changes and corrections that | deem necessary, and
approve the same as now true and correct.

DATED: At ,
(Cityl — (Statey
This day of , 2019.
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STATE COF NEvADA )
} ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, EVELYN J. STUBBS, a Certified Court
Reporter in and for the County of Washoe, State of
Nevada, do hereby certify: |

That on Monday, the 1lé6th day of September,
2019, at the hour of 10:00 a.m. of said day, at the
Courtyard by Marriott, 1 Ballpark Lane, Reno, Nevada,
personally appeared DEBORAH TAYLOR, who was duly sworn
by me, and thereupon was deposed in the matter
entitled herein;

That said deposition was taken in stenotype
notes by me, a Certified Court Reporter, and
thereafter transcribed into typewriting as herein
appears;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of
pages 1 through 38, is a full, true and correct
transcript of my stenotype notes of said deposition to
the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this 1lst day of

October, 20185.

EVELYN J. STUBBS, CCR #356
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THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

~~000--

LEQO XRAMER, Case No.: 18-CV-00663
AUDREY KRAMER,

Dept. No.: I
Plaintiffs,

vs.

)

)

)

)

)

)
NATIONAL DEFAULT SERVICING )
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MC )
DERMOTT, WEDGWOOD, INC., )
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND )
2016 LLC, and DOES 1 THROUGH )
50 INCLUSIVE, )
)

)

)

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF PERSON MOST KNOWLEDGEABLE FOR CHAFFIN
REAL ESTATE SERVICES
BY AND THROUGH LEE ANN CHAFFIN
Monday, September 16, 2019

Reno, Nevada

Reported by: EVELYN J. STUBBS, CCR #356
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Leo Kramen, .#®rey Kramer vs. National Default Se¢.- g Corp., et al

1 AFPPEARANCES: 1 PURSUANT TO NOTICE, and on Monday, the 16th
2 2 day of Septamber, 2019, at the hour of 11:00 a.m. of
3 LEEOT lt{}eMPéﬂnat}flfg AUDREY KRAMER 3 said day, at the Courtyard by Marrioit, 1 Ballpark
¢ Appearing tn 4 Lane, Reno, Nevada, before me, Evelyn J. Stubbs,
Proper Persona
5 § personally appeared LEE ANNE CHAFFIN.
&  Forthe DeéendglgathNoatlonal Default Servicing 6
7 TIFFANY & BOSCO, P.A. 7 LEE ANNE CHAFFIN,
8 Attorney\slaag ‘Patt Esq. 8  called as a witness by the defendants herein
101 ooy ‘est Charleston Boulevard Suite 220 . . '
] Las Ve als5 evada 89135 9 Being first duly sworn,
10 avp th! aw com 10 Was examined and testified as follows:
11 11 EXAMINATION
12 Far the Def?-lwae:l;lzé c@el_ réd 123 Pmﬁerty Fund 2016 LLC: 12 BY MR. VAN PATTEN;
13 Bgoshéla‘l,t\}ggtw‘\lt Sc \';Igvg[flt%SZ 0 13 Q. Can you please state your name and spell it
14 Las Vegas, Nay 9145 14 for the record.
15 msc%rlever@hutchlegal com 15 A. Lee Anne Chaffin. And Lee is my first name,
16 ALSO PRESENT: 16 L-E-E, A-N-N-E is my mlddle name, and Chaffin Is
17 Deborah Taylor 17 C-H-A-F-F-I-N.
148 18 Q. 8o I'm Ace Van Patten. I'm the atforney on
19 15 behalf of Nationa! Default Servicing Corporation.
20 20 We're here today to discuss the property located at
21 21 1740 Autumn Gien Street In Fernley.
22 22 | know you heard hefore, but 'm going to
23 23 mazke the same clarification here. When | refer to
24 24 NDSC, I'm referring o National Default Servicing
25 Page 2 25 Corporation. When | say the property or subject Page 4
i INDEX 1 property or Autumn Glen, what I'm referring to is the
2 THE WITNESS: LEE ANNE CHAFFIN 2 1740 Autumn Glen Sireef, Fernley, Nevada property.
2 EXAMINATION PAGE 3 Have you been deposed before?
4+ By Mr. Van Patten 4 4 A, No.
5 By Mr. Schriever 37 5 Q. Do you understand that you're under oath and
§ By Ms. Kramer 42 & that your deposition testimony Is just as significant
7 7 as if you were making it in a court of law?
8 . % 8 A. Yes,
g s Q. If you don't understand a question, please
10 INDEX OF EXHIBITS 10 let me know, and I'll repeat it or iry to clarify. If
11 NUMBER: MARKED: 11 you do answer, we're going to assume you understood
12 1. memiled N? ce Tak!(g 12 the question, that you answered it had appropriately.
13 g ?fﬂ 2 ?ﬁ r39n 13 A. Okay.
14 "]%ea emces 14 Q. Because this is being recorded, we can't
15 claratl Lee ne Chaffin 24 15 have any nonverbal answers like shaking your head,
16 e&n Qy Etod 2016 ie ¢an't have huh-huh, uh-huh types of answers. We need
17 17 yes or no answers for the sake of the clarity of the
18 ti ult lection 28 18 record. Do you understand that?
15 I&I%@e&&l%) 2%6@ %f 19 A. Yes.
-': z EFéB?alﬂ fr% m 6{&1 Jggrlﬁrg'né%q tP 29 20 Q. And we'l.l have to work together on .this,lbut
1 paggy 21 because it is being recorded and a transcript will be
22 5. i step' 31 22 put togsther, we will have to work together to make
23 hﬂ?&&%ﬁ?ﬁgﬁﬁ-f\?ﬁ&?@dﬁou 23 sure we don't talk over each other. Sol'll ask a
24 8- [\T 6%%%%%&%%& Hg&%&?&gs 32 24 question, wait for your complete answer befora | ask
25 : 25 another one, and in furn | would ask that you let me
Page 3 age 5
(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com Page 2 (2 - 5)
Depo International, LL.C
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Lee Ann Chaffin - 9/16/2019 —

Leo Kramer, 4M¥rey Kramer vs. National Default Sc. g Corp., et al.
1 complete my question before you start your answer. 1 A. Yes,
2 A Okay. 2 Q. Have you seen this document before?
3 Q. And 1 know you sat through it a second ago, 3 A. Yes.
4 but do you remember when | talked about the difference 4 Q. When?
5 between an estimate and a guess? 5 A. lwasn't there when it was delivered. | saw
3 A. Yes. 6 the one that was incorrect. So [ believe when |
7 Q. You can estimate the size of this table, 7 picked it up at the office, probably the next day.
e you'd have to guess at what the size of my table was. 8 Not sure.
2 So as we getinto it, Iif you have to make an estimate, 9 Q. if you turn to pages two, and three, there's
10 that's okay. Justlet us know you're making an 10 g list of examination areas and scope of inquiries.
11 estimate. We don't want you to guess. 11 A. Um-hum. '
1z Again, someone may object to one of my 12 Q. Do you have a chance to review those?
13 questions. That's fine, unless you're instructed not 13 A. To the best of my understanding.
14 to answer, at which point we'll just address it then. 14 Q. Okay. Are you here today to testify in
15 And then at the end you'll have the 15 those areas?
16 opportunity to review the transcript, make any 16 A. Yes.
17 gorrections you feel are necessary, if you believe 17 Q. How did you prepare for this deposition
18 something was inaccurately recorded. | will again 18 today?
15 remind you that if you do make those comections, | 19 A. Looked over e-mails and what had been
20 could raise that if a trial becomes necessary. 20 provided by others.
21 Do you understand that? 21 Q. What e-mails did you look at?
22 A. Yes. 22 A. Just the cnhes that we provided to you, which
23 Q. Again, if you need a break in the middle, 23 was what you requested.
24 let me know. As long as we're not in the middle of a 2¢ Q. So the e-mails provided in response to the
28 question, 'l certainly accommodate that. If you are age 25 subpoena? page 8
1 in the middle of a question, 'l need you to finish 1 A. True.
2 it before we fake a break. 2 Q. Approximately how much time did you spend
3 Any questions before we start? 3 preparing?
4 A. No. 4 A. An hour or two, kind of going overit. And
s Q. Soagain, | ask this question in all of my 5 some this morning.
6 depositions, so please don't take offense. Are you 6 Q. Did you review any other documents that were
7 preserﬁly taking or under the influence of any 7 not provided as part of the subpoena?
8 prescription medications, alcoholic beverages or 8 A. No.
r non-prescription medication? 5 Q. Did you speak with an attorney about the
10 A. 1take non-prescription and prescription, 1¢ deposition?
11- Q. Do any of those medications cause side 11 A. No.,
12 effects, affecting memory? 12 Q. Who did you speak to about the deposition?
13 A. No. 13 A. Debi and Mrs. Kramer and you and my husband.
14 Q. Do you feel like you're suffering any side 14 Q. And your conversations with Debi -- just to
15 effects now? 1s confirm, Debi is Deberah Taylor, correct?
16 A. No. 16 A. Yes.
17 Q. Is there anything slse that would prevent 17 Q. In your conversations with Debi, what did
1¢ you from giving accurate and fruthful testimony today? 18 you guys discuss about the deposition?
19 A. No. 19 A. Just getting together all that was requested
20 Q. I'm going to mark this as Exhibit 1. 20 and making sure we both had availability. We needed
21 {Exhibit 1 was marked for idenfification.) 21 the office covered during that time, so we had the
22 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 22 other assistant that | have.
23 Q. Is this a document fitled Amended Notice of 23 Q. When you spoke to Ms. Kramer about it, what
24 Taking Deposition of Person Most Knowledgeable for 24 did you guys discuss?
25 Chaffin Real Estate Services? 25 A. Well, she hadn't received the -- what do you
Page 7 Page 3
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Leo Kramer, .
1 call this, I'm sorry. The depesition notice yet. 1 Realty. 1995 | was with All Star Realty. "96 | was
2 So--and also the one | had recelved in the beginning 2 with Foley Realty In Ferntey. So | had moved from
3 was incorrect, because it said attorney for the 3 Reno to Fernley.
4 plaintiff. So that's why | had called you, thinking 4 And then | went with Failon Realty for quite
5 that you were her attorney. | was confused. Sol 5 along time, And then 2004 | was with Realty House,
¢ called you. ¢ and they highly recommended 1 get my broker's license,
7 And then she hadn't raceived it yet. So 7 and so | jumped into that. And | had my property
8 there was kind of a mixup. She was concernad that she | 8 management license at that too, in 2004, And then
% hadn't gotten it yet. And that was pretty much it. s 20051 opened Chaffin Real Estate Services and been
10 Q. Did you speak to her about the amended 1¢ open since then.
11 notice? 11 These are approximate, because L can't - |
12 A. Not - don't recall dolng that. 12 didn't bring my licenses with me or anything.
13 Q. And just going forward, when | say speak or 13 Q. And so you currently are working at Chaffin.
14 spoke - 14 And when | say Chaffin, [ mean Chaffin Real Estate
15 A. | understand. 15 Services.
16« Q. Imreferring to — 16 A. Yaes, it's Chaffin (pronouncing).
17 A. No, lunderstand. 17 Q, What capacity are you at Chaffin?
18 Q. - communications, e-mail and fax — 18 A. i'm a broker, | own it, and I'm a property
19 A. lunderstand. There was probably a quick 15 manager.
20 conversation or an e-mall. | can’t remember. But it 20 Q. And what is your current address?
21 wasn't - [ think it was more of trying to get - 21 A, 200 -- you mean at the office?
22 everyhody on the same schedule, so we could all try to |22 Q. Lef's start with the office.
23 be here together. 23 A. 200 East Main Street, Suite No. 102, in
24 Q. Before we get info discussing the Autumn 24 Fernley.
25 Glen property, | just want a little background on you 25 Q. And your home address?
Page 10 Page 12
1 specifically. Have you ever been known by any other 1 A. 1600 Corleone Drive, Sparks, Nevada, 89434,
2 names? 2 if you need the ZIP Code,
3 A. (Nods head.) 3 Q. And do you rent or own your home?
4 Q. And what names are those? 4 A. Own.
5 A, Lee Anne Miley, that's my maiden name. !} 5 Q. And how Jong have you lived there?
6 was married for a short time when | was very young. 6 A, InJune, it was three years.
7 Lee Anne Estes. Then remarried for quite a long 7 Q. Where did you live prior to that?
8 period of time, Lee Anne Lalji. And then Lee Anne & A, 794 Canary Circle, Fernley, Nevada. That
9 Chaffin. I've been married for the last 23 years. 5 was maybe seven to ten years, roughly.
10 Q. Congratulations, 10 Q. Woere you Ms. Taylor's neighbor at that time?
11 A. Thank you. 1l A. Yeah, We went to church together. And then
12 Q. Can you please tell me what your educational 12 ] had breast cancer, and she was kind enough to walk
13 nhistory is, just starling with high school. ' 13 me slowly around the loop, so | could get some
14 A, High school graduate, then | went to U,C. 14 exercise during the chemo and radiation treatment.
15 Long Beach for a short period of time. And | just 15 Q. And did you own the Canary Circle property?
16 knew | wasn't college material, so | decided to start 16 A. Yes,
17 afamily, and just kind of ~ couldn't figure out 17 Q. Did you own any other real property during
18 really what | wanted to do. I'm a singer by talent. 18 the last ten years?
19 |don't want to say trade, because there's no money in 19 A. Yes.
20 it. ' 20 Q. What properties?
21 | just raised my kids, and then it was 21 ‘A. You want a list.
22 recommended to me by my mom that | sell real estate. 22 Q. How many are there?
23 And | started in 1987 with Century 21 and Markefplace 23 A. Well, | have eight rental properties.
24 in Long Beach, California. Moved to Nevada and got my |24 Q. Are they all in Nevada?
25 25 A

real estate licénse here in 1994, | started with Reno
. Page 11

Yes. But we've bought and sold some thin%s
Page 13
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¥ too, 1 Q. Aside from traffic offenses, have you ever

2 Q. Have any of the properiies that you owned, 2 been convicted of any criminal offense?

3 with regards to those properties, have you experienced 3 A. Nope.

4 foreclosure? 4 Q. So |l believe you said Chaffin was started in

5 A. No. 5 2005; is that correct?

6 Q. Have you ever been a party to any lawsuit 6 A. Roughly, yeah,

7 either as a plaintiff or defendant? 7 Q. How many employees do you currently have?

8 A. Yes. 8 A. | have two employees, two independent

Q. What kind of case? 9 contractors, and several vendors that are independent
1¢ A, - First one was between to sisters that wera 10 contractors. They're not really considered eamployees.
11 mad at each other. And It was regarding their 11 But we do maintenance work and inspections. So those
12 lease-option with each other. 12 inspectors have been independent contractors, and the
13 . Q. And when was that? 13 people who are maintenance people are Independent
14 A. 1997, 14 contractors,
15 Q. And what was your involvement? 15 Sol've gotalist. 1 mean | could ~it's
16 A. 1was the real estate broker and agent and 16 probably 50 independent contractors that we deal with
17 friend of both of them, which is stupid. Just letting 17 on a yearly basis.
18 you know. 18 Q. Besides yourself and Ms. Taylor, did any
is Q. Did you end up testifying? 13 other employees, confractors or vendors otherwise work
20 A. Yes. 20 with regard to the Autumn Gien property?
21 Q. Were you Just a witness or were you a 21 A. I'm sure there were vendors, because we had
22 named - 22 maintenance requests. 1 could pull it up on my phone
23 A. lwas named, but | won. 23 and find, you know, exactly where, In the list of
24 Q. Asadefendant? 24 things we provided you, there was repair things listed
25 A. lguess so, yeah. Yes. 25 there. So it didn't state exactly the vendor on
bage 14 Page 16

1 1 would have prepared for that if | would 1 there, unless the check was made out.

2 have known you were going to ask that. 2 Q. So if we take out vendors, were there any

3 Q. Just general information is fine. 3 cther employees?

4 You said that was the first one. Were there 4 A. No. Jenna wasn't hired by that time. And

5 others? 5 Jennais just a wonderful non-lfcensed assistant that

6 A. Yeah. There was a couple of owners that 6 kind of does go-to things for us that she's able to do

7 were upset that their tenants trashed their house, 7 being non-licensed.

8 two, different ones. Susie Cooper -- and who was the 8 Q. And what's Jenna's last name?

9 other one. |feel like there was another one, but | 9 . A. Wilson. Butshe never was involved with the
10 don't remember their name. 10 Autumn Glen property. She was hired two years ago
11 Q. Did you end up testifying in those? 11 last Wednesday.
12 A. Yes. 12 Q. What was your invelvement with the Autumn
13 Q. Inboth? 13 Glen property?
14 A. Yes. And won both. 14 A. 1had purchased Larson Properties, and we
15 Q. Any others? 15 acquired this property. And the owners couldn’t
16 A. \think there was one whaere | testifled 16 decide to stay with their same coniract or not. And
17 against an owner, like the girl didn't get her deposit 17 they decided to stay with our company. We would, you
18 back. So she named Chaffin Real Estate and the owner, |18 know, manage the property. Qur goal was to make sure
19 And | just delivered the information and spoke to the 15 itwas inspected and the property was being cared for,
20 carpet and things like that. And the judge ruled 2¢ rents were being coilected, and then the money was
21 partially in her favor, due to the fact that the 21 being sent to the owner.
22 carpet was older. So it was Kkind of a security 22 So that's the main thing that we did. We
23 deposit disposition. 23 were happy to have them.
24 Q. Any others? 24 Q. When did you first meet the Kramers?
25 A. Not that | know of. Not that | can recall. 25 A, Today.

Page 15 Page 17
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1 Q. Face-to-face? 1 Q. Do you have an e-mail address at Chaffin?
2 A. Face-to-face, yes. 2 A. lhave a couple | use.
3 Q. Previously? 3 Q. What are those e-mail addresses?
4 A. |chatted with her on the phone. 4 A, Chaffinleeanne@yahoo.com or leeanne@
s Q. Do you remember when you first spoke with s chaffinrealestate.com. And | do have cne at
6 her in any capacity? ¢ chaffinres@gmail.com l try to use as my junk or spam.
7 A. Well, my memory is — | dan't recall like 7 Q. So Chaffin in response to our subpoena
8 just picking up the phone. It might have been to 8 provided a list of documents which included some
¢ introduce myself at the beginning of our --but 1 9 e-mails; is that correct?
10 don't recall that honestly. I'm not going to swear to 10 A. Um-hum,
11 that. Butl know that when we received the notice of 11 Q. And of those documents, none of them were
12 default and getting into where the company had said 12 before May of 2018, is that correct?
13 they owned the property, we were having conversations |13 A. 1don't exactly know what the dates are, but
14 about what to do. And then eventually we had to let 14 if that's what we provided. The ones that were
15 them know that we couldn't manage something that she [15 deleted, were not ones that | have.
16 didn't officially -- that we could see, officlally own 16 Q. How many e-mails approximately were deleted?
17 on paper. 17 A. ldon't know. Debi mistakenly deleted
18 Before that it was -- you know, these 18 e-mails before that time. And we had a discussion, |
1s decuments, they were delivered to the tenant, and we {19 don't remember exactly when, but now we don't delete
20 received. She had no notice of it, so she said it's 20 e-mails. We try not to. Ifit's a mistake, it's a
21 not a legal foreclosure. So we're just plodding along 21 mistake.
22 trying to make sure that we're doing everything legal. 22 Q. Sois there now an official policy?
23 Q. And when did you, | guess, terminate thai 23 A. Yes, now, but then there was not.
24 relationship? ’ 24 Q. When was that instituted?
25 A. |don't have that date In front of me, 25 A. [can't recall exactly. It's not written
Page 18 Page 20
1 honestly. We didn’t really terminate the 1 in--we're a small, small office. So it's just
2 relationship. We just had to tell the tenant that he 2 between me and her. And again if she deleted them,
3 could no longer be in the house, because according to 3 I'm sure it was just a mistake.
¢ the documents that were recorded on the Lyon County 4 I'm thinking It -- well, how | see Debi's
5 website they were not the owners anymore, and we 5 performance, is if it was deleted, it was probably
6 couldn't collect money for them anymore., ¢ bhecause she thought it was n another e~-malil string.
7 Q. Was that in 20187 7 You know what | mean? Like it was a duplicate string,
8 A. |believe ihose were the dates, but | don't 8 because | was cc'd or something.
3 have the dates in front of me. 9 That's the only thing | can think of in this
0 Q Okay. And when we're talking about the 10 case, because | remember asking her not to delete
11 renters, the tenants, was that Danie! Starling? 1n e-mails, you know, four years ago. So this is longer
t2 A. Yes. ) 12 than four years ago. So | don't see her being
13 Q. Did you have any communications with Daniel 13 maliclous or at all dishonest. She's just not that
14 Starling with regard to the - 14 way.
15 - A, No. ' 15 Q. Was that policy put in place bacause of this
16 - Q. Did you have any communications with Maria 16 case?
17 Mendoza with regard to the Autumn Glen properly? 17 A. No. But it was more of a conversation than
18 -A. Ithink she called me once, and | told her 18 a policy; like, hey, don't do that.
15 to just send it in an e-mall. And she sent me an 13 Q. And only Debi's e-maiis were deleted?
20 e-mail stating théy were the owner. That's what was 20 A. Asfarasknow. | don't delete e-malls
21 weird, hecause we couldn't figure out who the owner 21 unless they're from Macy's.
22 was. But at that point, you know, if it's not - if 22 Q. As part of the subpoena request, did you
23 it's transferred ownership according to the Lyon 23 also look through your own e-nails?
24 County records, we had to -—- we couldn't be the 24 A. Yes.
25 managers anymore. 25

Page 13
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1 had been deleted? 1 A, |ldon't know.
2 A. |guess it was when we -« you had sent the 2 Q. Do you know how documents were provided to
3 e-mail on Thursday, and | asked her to try to find the 3 the Kramers?
4 e-mail that was regarding a statement she had made In 4 A. I'm assuming it was, you know, through the
5 her affidavit. She said she couldn't find it. Soif 5 e-mail, but | don't know. [ really don't know. Like
§ she can't find 1t, it got deleted, because she clearly ¢ |said, some people are more tech savvy than others.
7 remembers those situations. At least that's what 7 Q. Is Chaffin assisting the Kramers with any
3 she's saying, so | believe her. & other properties?
9 Q. Does Chafiin keep physical files for 9 A. No.
10 properties? 10 Q. Mark this as Exhibit 2.
11 A. Not anymore. We've gone completely in the 11 (Exhibit 2 was marked for identification.)
12 cloud, which Reno-Sparks Association of Realtorsand [12 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: '
13 the --1 can't even falk this morning -- the Nevada 13 Q. Have you seen this document before?
14 State allows us to do that. 14 A. Yes.
15 Q. And where is it stored on the cloud? 15 Q. What is this document?
16 A. We have —it's called Instanet with Reno- 16 A. It's a declaration.
17 Sparks Association of Realtors. And then as far as 17 MS. KRAMER: it's called Affidavit.
18 e-mails, they're on our-e-mail server, But with -- 18 THE WITNESS: Yes.
19 AppFolio is our -- it's a system that we use for 13 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
20 property management. So it's all in the cloud, 20 Q. And this is a — just to confirm that we're
21 - 1 don't know where the cloud is, but 21 |ooking at the same document, does at the bottom of
22 somewhere out there. Stave Jobs might know. 22 page 1 say Declaration of Lee Anne Chaffin?
23 Q. All the documents that are stored 23 A. Yes.
24 electronically were includéd in that — the documents 24 Q. Did you prepare this document?
25 vyou provided as part of the subpoena request? Page 22 25 A. No. page 24
1 A. Asfaraslknow, Tothe bestof our - 1 Q. Who prepared it?
2 according to our e-mail server. 2 A. Audrey Kramer. | provided them all the
3 Q. What type of documents besides e-mails are 3 information, but — as far as to my statements, but |
& kept on the Instanet? 4 did not prepare the document.
5 A. Well, the e-malls are not, just so you know 5 Q. How was the document provided to you?
s that, Butit's iike rental agreements, lease 6 A. By e-mail.
7 agreements, all the sales for owners and buyers, 7 Q. Did they tell you why the document was
8 sellers and buyers. ‘ 8 necessary?
9 Q. Isthere an owner's portal? ] A, They wers trying to gef their house back
10 A Yes. _ 10 from a sale that was considered to them to be
il Q. What documents are pravided on that portal? 11 fraudulent.
iz A. It's their statement, monthly statement. 12 Q. Is that your signature at the bottom?
13 Now it's --the owne(s portal is an at-request type 13 A. Yes,
12 of thing, They doi't have to go there, We can just 14 Q. Prior to signing it, did you review this
15 send them a statement monthly. Some people don't even 15 document?
16 like being on the Internet, so sometimes we have to 16 A. Yes.
17 print things off, right? 17 Q. Is this document accurate?
18 So anyways, it would be their maintenance, 1s A. Yes,
19 bills, and all the -- anything associated with that 13 Q. Did you ask for any revisions to be made to
20 maintenance bill. Utility bills, if we pay their 20 this document?
21 taxes, if we pay - | don't think we pay anyhody's 21 A. No.
22 payments, but we do pay water, trash, sewer, taxes at 22 Q. Did you receive anything in exchange for
23 times, and maintenance, management fees, a releasing 23 executing the document?
24 fee, things like that. 24 A. Hum-um.
25 Q. Did the Kramers sign up for the portal? 25

Page 23
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1 executing the document? 1 happens. So we try so hard to protect not only the
2 A. No. 2 owner, ourself, but the tenant, because we don't want
3 Q. Does Chaffin have a policy with regard to 3 anyhody hurting. It's very difficult to find a rentat
4 the handing over of documents received by tenants? 4 right now.
5 A. Well, we are an agent of the owner, so 5 Q. Have the Kramers advised you that the
6 anything that Is received by us, we have to give to & property was In foreclosure?
7 the owner. 7 A. No. Wa let them know of the postings.
8 Q Soif mail is provided by a tenant, what 8 They'd never been served.
e would you do with that? 8 Q. Mark this as Exhibit 3.
10 A. We'd mail it to them, 10 (Exhibit 3 was marked for identification.)
1 Q. Mailitto the owner? _ 11 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
12 A, Um-hum,. Butwe do not receive mail for 1z Q. Is this a document titted Notice of Default
13 owners on a normal basis. The only thing that we do 12 and Election o Sell Under Deed of Trust important
14 receive Tately is because the Clty of Fernley has 14 Notice, within the upper right-hand corner of the
15 these horrible laws where if you don't pay your 15 document a recording stamp number 5711457
1s utilities, they will put a lfen against your home. 16 A. Yes.
17 So we pay the trash and the water and sewer 17 Q. Have you seen this document before?
1s for most owners that request that. But they've all 18 A. Yes,
15 been noticed that this is a possibility, that the 18 Q. Was there a copy of this document in
20 liens would come if they didn't let us pay the bllls, 20 Chaffin's records?
21 because tenants are not very good at paying theirown |21 A. When It was delivered to us, we kept a copy
22 utilities. 22 ofit.
23 Q. Did you ever receive any mail for the 23 Q. And who delivered it?
24 Kramers? 24 A. | was not there. Debi said it was the
25 A. No. !t was whatever Debi said about the 25 tenant.
. age 26 Page 28
1 documents. And part of that problem, too, was, you 1 Q. And by tenant, that's Mr. Starling?
~ 2 know, it's so windy where we live, as you can tell, we 2 A. Yaes, sir.
3 getwind, So maybe even part of the stuff that they'd 3 Q. Did you communicate with Ms. Taylor about
4 been meant to have received might be in Fallon. I'm 4 the notice of default?
5 not kidding you. [ received a plastié pool in my 5 A. She communicated with me.
6 backyard one time, § Q. What did she tell you?
7 Q. Do you know if any tenant ever provided any ? A. That it was received. And then | fold her
g8 mail for the Kramers relating to the Autumn Glen 8 we heed to let Audrey and Rico know what was going on,
9 property? 9 because we didn't know anything and she didn'i know
10 A. No, sir. 1o anything.
11 Q. Did any tenant ever provide any documents 11 Q. Did you speak with the Kramers about it?
1z which had been posted on the Autumn Glen properiy? 12 A, Atthat time | think it was Debl.
13 A. The tenants that we told you about, they 13 Q. Did you speak with anyone about the notice
14 brought those posted documents in. 14 of default with the exception of Ms. Taylor?
15 Q. And again, those tenants are -- 15 A. Probably my husband, but 1 don’t know if it
16 A. Starling. 15 was -- something, if it was dinner table conversation
17 Q. Mr. Starling and Ms. Mendoza? 17 at that fime. 'm not sure. -
18 -A. ‘Mr. Starling Is who we've been dealing with, 18 Q. Did you provide a copy of the nofice of
19 yes, 15 default to anybody?
20 Q. Does Chaffin have a policy on how it handles 20 A. No. You. That's about it. And Debiisa
21 properties in foreclosure? 21 part of me, so she provided it to the Kramers.
22 A. We tell the -- we have a statement in our 22 Q. I'm going mark this as Exhibit 4.
23 property management, which Is an addendum, it says if |23 {Exhibit 4 was marked for identification.)
25 you're in foreclosure, you've got to let us know, 24 BY MR, VAN PATTEN:
25 hecause sometimes we don't know until 2 horrible event |25 Q. This is a document which appears fo be two
) Page 27 Page 29
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1 e-mails dated October 16, 2017, s that what you're 1 Chaffin's records?
2 |ooking at? 2 A. Ibelieve so.
3 A. Yes. 3 Q. Who provided this document to Chaffin?
4 MS. KRAMER: Do you have copies for us? 4 A, lbelleve it was Daniel Starling.
5 MR. VAN PATTEN: They were as part of 5 Q. Did you have any discussions with Ms. Taylor
§ Ms. Taylor's. | befieve it was Exhibit 4 for hers. & about the notice of sale?
7 " MS. KRAMER: Okay. Thank you. 7 A. Just to provide this for the Kramers.
8 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 8 Q. Did you discuss the notice of sale with
5 Q. Have you seen this document before? ¢ anyone besides Ms. Taylor?
10 A. Yes. 10 A. Probably my husband, but | don't think so.
11 Q. When? . 11 We do have things like this happen every once ina
12 A. When we were first — you know, 'm cc'd on 12 while. So it's --it's not In the situation where the
13 this one. So when it first happened, and then just 13 owner doesn't know what's going on, usually they are
14 recently reviewing things. 14 in default.
15 Q. Do you remember receiving that e-mail? 15 Q. And at that point you would just rely upon
16 A. lrecallit. | don't remember the exact 15 Ms, Taylor to be sort of the day-to-day point of
17 time and date, but it would be right — it would have 17 contact?
18 been October 16th. lt's a long time ago, and I'm 60, le A. True, But she does let me know, especially
1% so stop. 19 things like this, what's going on.
20 Q. Do you have any reason to believe Ms. Taylor 20 Q. I'l mark this as Exhibit 6.
21 did not send the October 17th 2017 e-mail? 21 (Exhiblt 8 was marked for identification.)
22 A. [believe her, so | have no doubt she sent 22 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
23§t - 23 Q. Is this a document with title Trustee's Deed
24 Q. Do ybu have any reason to believe you did 24 Upon Sale with a document recording number 581625 in
25 notreceive the response from Ms, Kramer that same 25 the upper right-hand corner?
Page 30 Page 32
1 day? 1 A. Yes.
2 A. ldon't recall it, but that doesn't mean 2 Q. Have you seen this document before?
3 that she ~ 3 A. ldon't exactly remember how [ saw it, but [
4 Q. is-that your e-mail address? 4 think it was online.
5 A. Onthe 16th, yes. s Q. Do you remember when you saw it?
6 Q. On the 16th. € A, Somewhere in the days real ciose afterwards.
7 A. Uh-huh. And to the best of my recollection, 7 But they don't record these things quickly, you know.
8 justin géneral, Debi ¢cc's me on most things. And 2 So we kept iooking and looking trying to make sure.
& sometimes she forgets, because I've got her running | 9 We were fold by these other people that they
1¢ around like a chicken with her head cut off most of 10 were the cwners and trying to get us to give
11 the time. . 11 information for the tenants and rental info, and we
12 {Exhibit 5 was marked for identification.) 12 can't do that. So we were trying to figure out what
13 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 13 was golng on. We were as confused as confusion can
14 Q. Are you looking at a document entitled 14 be. And we ware having -- at least [ was having the
15 Notice of Trustee's Sale, which is a document 15 title company at least just keep an eye out for any
16 recording number 579380 in the upper right-hand 16 recording, because we didn’t want to do anything
17 gcorner? 17 illegal,
18 A. Yes. 18 Q. Sowhen you would have seen that then, it
14 Q. Have you seen this document before? 19 would have been --
20 A. Yes, 20 A. Prabably recorded.
21 Q. Justalso for the sake of clarity, 'm going 21 Q. —Juneof20187?
22 {o call this document the notice of sale. When did 22 A. Probabiy. | mean it says June. ! think it
23 you See the notice of sale? 23 took a couple weeks, maybe even longer than that.
24 A. Shortly after it was posted, | believe, 24 Q. Would it be fair to say summer of 20187
25 ° Q. lsthere a copy of this document in 25 A. Um-hum.
Page 31 Page 33
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Q. And going forward, I'm geing to l:all this

1 1 regard to the Autumin Glen property?
2 document the trustee’s deed. Do you remember how you 2 A. Idon'tknow ifl did or not. If one of
3 received a copy of the trustee's deed? 3 these women are part of NDSC, [ did, but | don't know.
4 A. |don't remember exactly recelving it. | 4 Q. So except for the ~
s think it was just seen online. And If Debi saw it, 5 A. Two people.
6 she would have printed it and sent it on to Audrey. & Q. Except for those people —
7 Butl didn't - [ike nobody brought it to me. Like 7 A. Right.
& the tenant didn't bring it to us, you know. 8 Q. - you would not have communicated —
9 It was something that was probably given to 9 A. Well, there was one more person. | think it
10 me by the title company. 1just don't recall. 'm 10 was a Mr. Nelson, Breckenridge Property Fund. That
11 not exactly sure what happened there. ] 11 was another person. And he was now managing the
12 Q. But there is a copy of the trustee's deed i in 12 property or he was In-house counse! for Breckenridge
13 Chaff n's record? 13 Property. And he stated that his company was the new
14 - A. Pm notsure. [think so, but I'm not sure. 14 owner. So again, another owner.
15 Itwould have been something | saw online personally. 115 We're not sure who owns it at this point.
16 [If Debi had it, | don't recall seeing it. 16 We just know that there was a trustee sale.
17 Q. Did you communicate with Ms. Taylor about 17 Q. And who was that, just to clarify?
18 the trustee's deed? 18 A. Mr, Nelson?
19 A. Yes. We talked about getting it to Audrey 19 Q. Is that Casey Nelson?
20 or telling them it's recorded. This is what we found, 20 A. Uh-huh. The whole thing was confusing, to
21 Q. - Did you speak about the trustee’s deed with 21 he honest.
22 the Kramers? : 22 Q. Has your testimony today been complete and
23 A. Basically that we couldn’t manage the 23 accurate?
24 property anymore, because it was no longer in their 24 A. To the best of my ability.
25 name. 25 Q. With regard to questions I've asked on
. o . Page 34 Page 36
1 Q. Whatdid they say in response? 1 behalf of the NDSC, do you have anything to add?
2 A That they were going fo fight It, because 2 A No.
3 ibs not true. Buton our end we had to look at 3 MR. VAN PATTEN: Does anyone else have
4 the --as far as -1 called the Reno-Sparks "4 questions?
5 Assocnation of Realtors They hava a legal hotline, 5 MR. SCHRIEVER: Just a couple real quick.
& ltold them what was gomg on, and they said, "Yeah, 6 EXAMINATION
7 can't manage spmethlng that's not in their name." 7 BY MR. SCHRIEVER:
'_B Q‘ Besides the legal hotline and Ms. Taylor, 8 Q. You said you've never had a property that
.9 did you speak to anyone else about the trustee's deed? 9 has been foreclosed, correct?
10 A. No. Oh you mean the - wall as faras tha 10 A. That I've owned.
12 people calling us and saymg they owned it, but | 11 Q. Has any been an LLC cr an entity that —
12 don't know if that's specific to the trustee's deed. 12 A. There was -
13 You know, we had two phone calls; one, Alyssa 13 Q. -that you controlled?
14 McDermott, and the other one -- | forgot her name, 14 A. There was a home that - no, it wasn't
315 Aguilera.~She was ~ they both said they were the 15 foreclosed on.
16 owners, you know, which was very misleading, because |16 Ask that question again.
17 [latér on they said they were somebody else, something |17 Q. Any home that's titled in or that was titted
18 else. Butit wasn't particular to this. They were 18 in an LLC or corporation or any sort of business
19 just saying they dwned it. So they didn't say here's 13 entily that you have an ownership interest in, has
20 your trust deed. And later on | guess Debi sald they 20 that been foreclosed on?
21 sentit, 21 A. No.
22 So that's how we received it, because Debi 22 Q. Haveany of your properties that you have
23 said they sent it to her, but | don't remember them 23 personally owned or a business that you control owns
24 sending it exactly to me. 24 ever received any sort of foreclosure notices?
25 25

-Q: " Did you ever speak to anybne at NDSC with 35

A. That I've owned or had an interest in?
. Page 37
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1 Q. Correct. 1 .Q. Now the declaration from you indicates that
2 A. No. 2 you were contacted by Alyssa McDermott. And Debi's
3 Q. In your conversations with the Kramers, was 3 declaration says that she was contacted by Alyssa
4 any of that correspondence or those convarsations with 4 McDermott. Were there two different phone calls or
5 Mr. Kramer? 5 were you guys both on the same phone with her?
‘s A. ldon'tremember, Sorry, & A, It was two different phone calls. She
17 Q. Okay. Regarding the e-mail, you mentioned 7 called Dabi first, who called me, insofar as | know.
a that something called AppFclio. Could you just 8 Because she called the office first, and then she gave
9 describe that a little further, what that is. ¢ her my phone number. And | talked to her, and 1 said,
1¢ A. It's a property management software. 1¢ "From now on, please put everything In writing."
11 Q. And that's on the cloud? 11 Q. Allright. And then you made some comments
12 A Yes, o iz about that the Kramers had never been served with the
13 Q. But that does not controf or have your 13 documents ~
14 e-mails? 14 A. According to them.
15 A. Well, we send e-malls through thare that are 15 Q. - according — those are all their
16 to tenants or owners, but my leeanne@chaffinreal 15 statements --
17 estate, that sends it right to my e-mail. 17 A. Yes.
18 So if | send an e-mail or an e-mail is sent, 18 Q. --nothing that you have any personal
19 |always get it on my server. So it's not controlled 19 information about?
20 or--it's not a separate spot where e-malls are put, 20 A. Well, 1 mean | didn't receive any service
2t There's-a record of them, but there's not a — 21 for them. | didn't have any permission for them to do
22 Q. Okay.- Does your— 22 that: And [ didn't have — the only thing that we
22 A, ldon'tloseit. 23 raceived was from the tenant.
24 Q. Does your - does the e-mail chaffinreal 24 They live in California, so [ wouldn't have
25 estate.com, do you have an IT eompany that services 25 known, you know, what their mail delivery was, But
Page 38 Page 40
1 thator that does your information technology, your 1 they had told me that they were unawara.
2 computé'rs? - . ' 2 Q. And then had you known the Kramers -- did
3 A, 'Welll; 1 did for a while. lrunit now. | 3 you know the Kramers before your company acquired the
4 mean lm fnanagihﬁ that e-mail. 4 management company?
5 Q. Juét on your own? - 5 A. No.
6 A Just ad&in.g'people. We don't have a big § Q. Okay. Then one last quastion about the
7 cor.ﬁpalﬁy. ) ' . ' . 7 foreclosure. You seemed a little hesitant answering
8 Q.' Are the e-mails backed up 6n a server .8 some of those questions. Do you have a — doas your
9 anyWhére? ‘ 2 husband have property that was foreclosed -
10 A Iwouidn't !mow how to even answer that 10 A. No. | mean I'm just, you know, trying fo
11 q_ué;tio_n. I'm technicai to a reaiiy small point. So 11 search my mind. We owned a house when | was a young
12 |f tlileyﬁa deleted, as far as [ know, they're deleted. 12 kid, and then [ purchased it from my parents. And it
13 If they're there, they're there. You know, | can 13 was close to us losing it, but we never went into
14 search them -- all my inboxes, all my e-mail boxes | 14 foreclosure.
1s just put in, like, names like Kramer or Autumn Glen, 15 Q. Gotyou, Thatwas many years —
16 and that's how we got the e-mails. 16 A, We sold it before the — that was 19 ~
17 Q. Soif you have - if your company has 17 Q. That's a good enough estimate for me, when
18 network problems or say you'ré not able to send e-mail 18 you-start with 19,
19 fora dayOr two or you're not getting Intemet, do 19 A. Yeah, oh, God. 1980 somathing.
20 - you have somebady that you contact that — 20 Q. Okay. |'don't—
2% A, ldon't haveit. I've never had that 21 A. It's depressing, thinking about how old |
22 problem. - .. 2z am,’ '
23 . Q. Okay. Allright. 23 MR. SCHRIEVER: | don't have any other
24 . "A. " Unless there's sunspots, which I've never 24 questions.
25 had any problem with that. 25 i
. o . Page 39 Page 41
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EXAMINATION
BY MS. KRAMER:
Q. |just have one. Just ta clarify for the
record: ‘We never contracted you to be an authorized
agent to receive mail on our behalf?
A. No, never.
MS. KRAMER: Thank you.
MR. VAN PATTEN: Any further questions?
MS. KRAMER: No.
MR. VAN PATTEN: All right. Atthis point |
think we can canclude.
Again, you'll receive a copy of the
transcript, once prepared, you can review and sign.
THE WITNESS: Okay.
MR. VAN PATTEN: But otherwise we appreciate
your time today.
{(Whereupon the deposition concluded at 11:55 a.m.)

18 --olo--
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
. ‘ Page 42
1  ~00o--
; .
3 | CERTIFICATE OF WITNESS
\ o .
5 | hereby certify under penalty of perjury,
& that | have read the foregoing deposition, made the
7 changes and corrections that | deem necessary, and
8 approve the same as now true and correct.
]
10 DATED: At ,
11 (Cityj (Stte)
12 This day of , 2019,
13 '
14
15 ' :
16
17
18
15
20
21
22
23
24
25
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STATE OF NEVADA )
} ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

I, EVELYN J. STUBBS, a Certified Court
Reporter in and for the County of Washoe, State of
Nevada, do hereby certify:

'That on Monday, the 16th day of September,
2019, at the hour of 11:00 a.m. of said day, at the
Courtyard by Marriott, 1 Ballpark Lane, Reno, Nevada,
personally appeared LEE ANNE CHAFFIN, who was duly
sworn by me, and thereupon was deposed in the matter
entitled herein;

That said deposition was taken in stenotype
notes by me, a Certified Court Reporter, and
thereafter transcribed into typewriting as herein
appears; ‘

-That the foregoing transcript, consisting of
pages 1 through 42, is a full, true and correct .
transcript of my stenotype notes of said deposition to
the best of my knowledge, skill and ability.

DATED: At Reno, Nevada, this lst day of

October, 2019.

. EVELYN J. STUBBS, CCR #356

{702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com Page 13 (44)
Depo International, LL.C m
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THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
LYON COUNTY, NEVADA

--o00o--

LEO KRAMER,

AUDREY KRAMER,

Dept. No.: I
Plaintiffs,

vs.

)

)

)

)

)

)
NATIONAIL DEFAULT SERVICING )
CORPORATION, ALYSSA MC )
DERMOTT, WEDGWOOD, INC., )
BRECKENRIDGE PROPERTY FUND )
2016 LLC, and DOES 1 THROUGH )
50 INCLUSIVE, )
)

)

)

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF DANIEL STARLING
MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2019

Reno, Nevada

Reported by: EVELYN J. STUBBS, CCR #356

Case No.: 18-CV-00663
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Depo International, LL.C
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Leo Kramer, . ey Kramer vs. National Default Se. vlg Corp., et al.
1 APPEARANCES: 1 PURSUANT TO NOTICE, and on Monday, the 16th
2 2 day of September, 2019, at the hour of 9:00 a.m. of
3 LE gor Ig}\e}\FEl?'\lnﬂﬁds.AUDREY KRAMER 3 sald day, at the Courtyard by Marriott, 1 Ballpark
4 Appearing In 4 Lane, Reno, Nevada, before me, Evelyn J. Stubbs,
Proper Persona
5 5 parsonally appeared DANIEL STARLING.
§  Forthe DefendanttNatlonaI Defauit Servicing &
7 TIKEgRle& BOSCO P.A, 7 DANIEL STARLING,
8 1016 E?’West Chaﬂestgnfé ouIEvgrd Sulte 220 8 called as a witness by the defendants herein,
9 as Neva a 9 Being first duly sworn,
10 avp%tblaw com 10 Was examined and testified as follows:
11 11
12 For the Defmc#&h Breckennsd_f_;E FPmﬁerly Fund 2016 LLC: 12 EXAMINATION
Hameys at Law
13 Bgoahg%ggkvﬁ(tasc?mgavga Esg:s 13 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
14 Las Ve aségl \éada '89145 12 Q. Can you please state your name and spell It
18 msc%never@hutchlegai.com 15 for the record.
16 16 A. Danlel Willlam Starling, D-A-N-I-E-L
17 17 W-l-L-L-I-A-M §-T-A-R-L-{-N-G.
18 18 Q. Somyname is Ace Van Patten. | represent
13 19 National Default Servicing Corporation. I'm probably
20 20 going to sharten that at some point to NDSC. So if
21 21 you hear me saying NDSC, I'm referring to National
22 22 Default Servicing Corporation.
23 23 We're here today to discuss the property at
24 24 the 1740 Autumn Gien Street in Fernley. And we're
25 page 2 25 here for your deposition today. Page 4
1 INDEX 1 Another shortcut, just for the sake of
2 THE WITNESS: DANIEL STARLING 2 brevity and clarity, if | say the property or the
3 EXAMINATION PAGE | 3 Autumn Glen property, I'm referring to the 1740 Autumn
4 By Mr. Van Patten 5 4 Glen Street property.
$ By Mr. Schriever 22,23 5 A Okay.
¢ By Ms. Kramer 22 6 Q. Have you been deposed before?
7 ? A. No, sir.
8 8 Q. Do you understand that you're under oath and
] * ok 9 that your deposition testimony today is the same
1o 10 testimony that you would be giving at court, ata
" INDEX OF EXHIBITS 11 trial for instance?
12 NUMBER: MARKED; 12 A. Yes,sir
13 4. ‘iled N‘PBce Qfl 7 13 Q. So as we get going, if you don't understand
14 E%S o 3” oi-Danie 14 a question, let me know. |l try to repeat it or |
1% 2- Eeclaraslon of Daniel Starhng 12 |15 canclarify. If you answer any question, 'm going to
16 16 assume that you understood the question and that
17 m%g%&lg q%lsg %‘g ection 16 17 you're answering it appropriatsly.
18 18 And because we're being recorded, we have to
15 4- Mg%%a—ﬁ%f\?ﬁé&%ﬁom 18 19 have verbal answers, so no ilke nodding the head or
] =] -
z: 5- Jé%a&%%ﬁblg% &%gs 21 z: uh :th :l:: ::. Do you understand that?
22 22 Q. And also because it is being recorded, we
23 23 will make it easler on her. We'll have to work
24 24 together on this one. So please allow me to finish my
a5 page 3 25 question befare you provide your answer, And in turn,Page .
(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com Page 2 (2 - 5)
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1 'l make sure that you're finished with your answer 2 Q. And that's the document that you're looking
2 before | start my gquestion, 2 at?
3 A. Okay. 3 A. Yes, sir.
4 Q. Someons may object to some of my questions s Q. Have you seen this document before?
5 atsome point. That's fine. You can go ahead and 5 A. Ibelieve | have.
¢ answer them if you understood them, unless you're 3 Q. Did you review this notice?
7 specifically instructed not to answer them. And if 7 A. Actually 1 haven't got time to look at if,
8 that becomes an issue, we'll address it at that paint. 8 look it over.
9 Do you understand that? ‘ 5 Q. Okay. Do you want to take a minute to look
10 A. Yes, sir, 10 it over, specifically pages two and three?
11 Q. And then at the end you'll have the 11 A. Sure.
12 oppoerunity to review the franscript of the deposition 12 Okay.
13 and make any corrections you feel necessary, if you 13 Q. Are you able {o testify on these areas of
14 believe something was inaccurately transcribed. 12 topics today?
t5 That's your right. You'll be able to do that, sign 1s A. Yeah.
16 off on that. If you do make any corrections, | will s Q. How did you prepare for the deposition?
17 be able to use thét,- for instance in a frial, to ask 17 A. What do you mean?
18 you why and to point out those differences. Do you 18 Q. Did you review any documents?
19 understand that? 19 A. No, | just ~ honestly | have ~ I've had
20 A. Yes, sir. 20 text messages on my phone and stuff like that.
21 Q. So once we get into it, if you need a break, 21 Q. Did you review those text messages?
22 we can take a break. The only thing is, if we're in 22 A. No. It was on an old phone, and 1 don't
23 the middle of a question, Ml need you to answer the 23 have the phone anymore.
24 question before we take a break. Do you have any 24 Q. Did you talk to anyone about the deposition?
25 questions? page 25 A. No, sir. page &
1 A. No,sir i Q. Didyou communicate with anyone at Chaffin
2 Q. So the next question, | ask it of all the 2 Real Estate Services about the deposition?
3 deponents, so don't take offense to it, but are you 3 A. No, slr.
4 presently taking or under the infiuence of any 4 Q. Another sort of shorteut: If | say Chaffin
5 prescription or non-prescription medications? 5 or Chaffin Real Estate, I'm tatking about Chaffin Real
6 A, No. & Estate Services. Do you understand that?
7 Q. Is there anything else today that would 7 A. Yes, sir.
8 prevent you from giving accurate and truthful 8 Q. Did you cornmunicate with Mr. and Mrs. Kramer
9 testimony? ) s about the deposition?
10 A. No. Well, 1 am - I don't use any kind of 10 A. No,sir.
11 like -1 have asthma, That's the only thing that | 11 Q. Just so that | can get some background
12 use. 12 information on you, can you just start by telling me
13 Q. Okay. Does the asthrma medication you take 13 your educational history.
14 cause any sort of memory impairment or forgetfulness? is A. Just basically high school, all the way up
s 'A. No. 15 through high school,
16 Q: Allright. So I'm going to have this marked 16 Q. Where did you go o high school at?
17 as Exhibit 1. 17 A. Fontana High School In Southern California.
18 {Exhibit 1 was marked for identification.) 18 Q. Did you gef your degree?
15 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 19 A. Yes.
20 Q. 'Sois this a document titled Amended Notice 20 Q. Nocollege?
21 of Taking Deposition of Danie! Starling? 21 A. No, sir.
22 A. Where Is that at? ' 22 Q. And no frade school?
23 Q. In sort of the middle of the caption on 23 A. No.
24 page 1. It's underlined in bold. 24 Q. What's your current occupation?
25 A. Yes, sir. 25 A. lam currently a driver/heavy equipment
Page 7 Page 9
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1 hauler -- or heavy equipment operator, sorry. 1 amounts that { ask you about that you need to
2 Q. What company do you currently work for? 2 eslimate, just let me know that you're estimating
3 A. Ormat Technology. 3 that. Butthat's not a problem,
4 Q. How long have you worked there? 4 So when was the last payment made on the
5 A. Just alittle bit over three years. 5 Autumn Glen property?
6 Q. Before that what were you doing? 6  A. Beginning of August,
7 A. |worked at Kaiser Foundation Hospitals. 7 Q. Where did you live before the Autumn Glen
8 Q. What were you doing at Kaiser? 8 property?
9 A, Materials management. 9 A. In Southern California.
10 Q. And how long were you doing that? 10 Q. Okay. Have you everbeenapartytoa
11 A. Four years and 11 months. 11 jawsuit, either as a plaintiff or a defendant?
12 Q. Okay. What's your currént address? 12 A. No.
13 A, 918 Desert Breeze Way, Fernley, Nevada, 12 Q. Have you ever been — aside from fraffic
14 89408, 14 opffenses, have you ever been convicted of any criminal
15 Q. When did you move there? 15 offenses?
16 A. 1 moved in there, | believe it was 16 A. No.
17 September 1st, 2018. 17 Q. I'm going to have this marked as Exhibit 2.
18 Q. Do you rent or own? 18 (Exhibit 2 was marked for identification.)
13 A lrent. ’ 19 BY MR, VAN PATTEN;
20 Q. Where did you live before that? 20 Q. Have you seen this document before?
21 A. 1740 Autumn Glen, Fernley, Nevada, 83408, |21 A. Yeah.
22 Q. And how long did you live there? 22 Q. Whatis this document?
23 A. March 1st, 2017. 23 A. It's speaking of the text messages and those
24 Q. And when did you move out? 24 things that | recelved from Alyssa McDermott. And|
25 A. Just before | moved into this new place, 25 can't remember what the company was called, but . . .
Page 10 Page 12
1 Q. Soitwould have been at the end of August 1 Q. On page 1, just to make sure we're looking
2 of 2018, approximately? 2 atthe same document, is this document called the
3 A. Yeah, 3 Declaration of Daniel Starling down at the hottom?
I Q. When you were living in the Autumn Glen 4 A. Yes, sir.
5 property, did you have any roommates? 5 Q. Did you prepare this document?
6 A. No. § A. |do not believe so,
7 Q. How much was your rent at the Auturan Glen 7 Q. Who prepared it?
& property? 3 A. I'm not sure.
9 A. lwant to say it was 1300, 1350. [ can't 9 Q. Do you remember how you received the
10 remember exactly. 10 document?
1 Q. Okay. So this is something | sometimes say 1 A. ldonot.
12 atthetop. Soaswe go through, there may be times 12 Q. Is that your signafure at the bottom?
13 when you need to estimate or approximate. That's 13 A. Yes, sir.
14 fine, just let me know if you are estimating or 1a Q. Before you signed this document did you
15 approximating. Just let me know that, and that's 15 review it?
16 fine. 16 A. Yes, sir.
17 | dan't want you to be guessing. And a good 17 Q. Did you request any revisions to the
1g example between guessing and estimating is if ] asked 18 document?
|19 you how big this table was, you could estimate It just 19 A. [have no idea. | can't remember.
20 by looking ai if, because you've seen it. If] asked 20 Q. Did you receive anything in exchange for
21 you how big the table was at my office, you'd have to 21 executing the document?
22 guess, because you haven't seen it. 22 A. No.
23 So as we get through it, if you need to 23 Q. Were you promised anything in exchange for
24 estimate, that's fine, because | don't want you to 24 executing the document?
25 guess. But as we go through, if there are dates or 25 A. No.
. Page 11 Page 13
(702) 386-9322 | info@depointernational.com Page 4 (10 - 13)
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Q. Did you have any contact with Mr. and
Mrs. Kramer before you moved into the Autumn Glen
property?

A. No, only Chaffin.

Q. What contact did you have with Chaffin
betfore you moved into the property?

A. |looked at multiple properties that they
manage, and [ moved in or decided on the 1740,
Q. So they showed you like multiple different
prospective locations that you could rent through

them?

i
2
3
4
5
[
?
8
9

10

11

A. Hand It to them. Take it into the Chaffin
office and turn it in.

Q. How many times did you have to take
documents into the office?

A. Only ance.

Q. And do you remember, was that in 2018, 20177

A, 2018

Q. While you were living at the Autumn Glen
property were there any documents ever posted on the
property?

A. As far as what?

12 A. Yes. 12 Q. Any docurments maybe taped to the house or to
13 Q. After you moved inte the property, did you 13 the garage?
14 have any contact with Mr. and Mrs. Kramer? 14 A. Right towards the end we got the -« 1 can't
15 A. Well, before or after Alyssa McDermott? 15 remember what notice exactly It was, but it was taped
i6 Q. Let's start before. 16 to our door. And that was right before somebody from
17 A. No. 17 Alyssa's foundation came up and gave us the rest of
18 Q. After? 18 the papers.
19 A. Yes, 19 Q. Okay. I'm going to mark this as Exhibit 3.
20 Q. And when was that? 20 {Exhibit 3 was marked for identification.)
21 A. It was probably July, August. Like | said, 21 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
22 | can't remember when Alyssa started texting and 22 Q. This is a document. It has a recording
23 calling and stuff like that. 23 stamp in the upper right-hand comer with the number
24 Q. 0f20187 24 571145, [s that what you're looking at?
25 A. Yeah. 25 A. Yes.
Page 14 Page 16
1 Q. When you were living at the Autumn Glen 1 Q. Have you seen this document before?
2 property, did you ever receive mail for the Kramers? 2 A. Not that i recollect right offhand.
3 A. Yes, and ] gave it to the property 3 Q. Does this document appear to be fitled
4 management. 4 Notice of Default and Election to Sell Under Deed of
5 Q. Sowhen you would raceive if, you would just 5 Trust important Notice?
€ turn itoverto Chaﬂ’l'n Real Estate? € A. Thisisit.
7 A. Uh-huh, 7 Q. I'm going to call this the notice of default
8 Q. When you — 8 going forward. Was the notice of default posted on
9 MS. KRAMER: Can 1 just object for one $ the property?
10 second. Could you please clarify what type of mall 10 A. Not that | can recollect, no.
11 you're talking about, because we've never had any mail 11 Q. Did you receive a copy in the mail?
12 given to us. 1z A. One again, not that | can recollect, no.
13 MR. VAN PATTEN: This isn't a chance for 13 Q. Was there anyone who would check your mail
14 yourtestimony. It's a chance for his, 14 for you while you lived in Autumn Glen?
18 I'l ask a few questions to clarify, 15 A. My ex-fiancee,
16 MS. KRAMER: Thank you, 16 Q. What's her name?
17 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 17 A, Maria.
18 Q. What type of mait did you receive on behalf 18 Q. Is this Maria Mendoza?
15 of the Kramers? 19 A. Yes,litis.
20 A. Well, the only thing that we received was, 20 Q. Did she live in the Autumn Glen property?
21 like | said, towards the end, and it was just a packet 21 A. Yes.
22 of, looked like Iimportant documents. | didn't know 22 Q. From when uniil when?
23 what it was. It was obviously their mail, you know. 23 A. The whoie time | lived there.
2¢ Q. When you received those documents how would 2¢ Q. Okay. Do you have her contact information?
25 you provide that to Chaffin? - 25 A

Page 15

As far as what? You want her phone number?
Page 17
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1 ' Q. Phone number, e-mail, address? 1 A. Yeszh. He was looking for houses to buy on
2 A, [have no idea what her e-mail address is. 2 Zillow, and he seen that one.
3 | can give you her phone number. 909-900-5198. 3 Q. Do you know his name?
4 Q. Didyou and Ms. Mendoza ever discuss having ¢ A. |know his first name.
5 seen the notice of default? 5 Q. What's his first name?
6 A. No. The only time we ever knew anything 6 A. Rick.
7 happened was, like 1 said, when that lady came up and 7 Q. Did anyone at Chaifin ever advise you to
8 handed my ex papers. 8 take any action with regard to the foreclosure sale?
s Q. [ you would have received the notice of L] A. As far as what?
10 defauit, would that have been a document you also 10 Q. Any recommended action. Did they —did
11 would have tumed over to Chaffin? 11 Chaffin tell you about the foreclosure sale at any
12 A. Yes, it would. 12 point?
13 Q. Do you remember if you provided a copy of 13 A. No, | informed them.
14 the notice of defauit to anybody? 14 Q. When did you inform them?
15 A, Ofthis one? - is A. When we got the documents that were handed
16 Q. Yes. ' 16 tomy ex.
17 A. Vjusttold you, | didn't see it. 17 Q. And these, agaln, were the documents from
18 Q. Did you ever discuss the notice of default 18 the new owner?
19 with anybody? 19 A. lguess. They were from, like | said,
20 A, No. 20 whatever company Alyssa McDermott is with., Not only
21 MR. VAN PATTEN: Have this marked as 21 that, | was getting text messages and stuff llke that
22 Exhibit 4. 2z from Alyssa that we needed to start paying the rent to
23 ({Exhibit 4 was marked for identification.) 22 them, and I had to go get a copy of my rental
24 BY MR. VAN PATTEN: 24 agreement from Chaffin and give it to her and this and
2s Q. This is a document, appears to be fitled 25 that, so...
. ‘ Page 18 Page 20Q
1 Notice of Trustee's Sale. It bears a document number 1 Q. Okay. Did you ever discuss the foreclosure
2 579380 in the upper right-hand comer? 2 sale with Mr. and Mrs. Kramer?
3 A. Yes, sir. 3 A. No.
4 Q. I'mgoing to call this the notice of sale 4 MR. VAN PATTEN: All right. Mark this as
5 going forward. Have you seen this before? 5 Exhiblt 5.
6 A. Can't say that | have. § (Exhibit 5 was marked for identification.)
7 Q. Did you ever discuss a foreclosure sale with 7 BY MR. VAN PATTEN:
& anybody? 8 Q. This is a document. It's got a fitle
E A. No. g Trustee's Deed Upon Sale. There's a recording stamp
lo Q. Did you know that a foreclosure sale had 10 in the upper right-hand corner of 581625. |s this the
11 been set for the Autumn Glen property? 11 document that you're lcoking at?
1z A. The only time that | knew about it was tike 1z A. Yes, sir
13 aweek before we got the notice. While | was overat |13 Q. Have you seen this document befora?
1¢ my neighbor's across the street, he says, "Hey, you'ra | 14 A. ldon't think so.
15 selling your house." | said, "What do you mean, I'm |15 Q. Did you ever discuss this document with
16 selling the house?” He said, "It was on Ziliow. 1 16 anhybody?
17 was thinking about buying it." ' 17 A. No, not that I'm aware of.
18 Q. What notice was that? 18 Q. Your tesiimony, has it been compiete and
15 A. There was no notice. It was on Zillow. 19 accurate?
20 Q. What neighbor was that? 20 A. As far as I'm aware, it is.
21 A. Just the neighbor right across the street. 21 Q. With regards 1o the questions that I've
22 Q. s it directly across the street? 22 asked you so far, do you have anything else that you'd
23 A. Yes. 23 Jike to add?
24 Q. Did he say how he had found out, other than 24 A. No,
25 25

just through Zillow?
o Page 19
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questions they'd like to ask?

1 1 A. Itwas in 2018.

2 MR. SCHRIEVER: | have a couple of questions. 2 Q. Would it have been in the winter, spring,

3 3 summer, fall?

4 EXAMINATION 4 A. It was in the summer.

5 BY MR. SCHRIEVER: 5 Q. Summer of 2018. Do you know if that was

8 Q. Have you ever owned property before, like & before or after you had conversations with Alyssa

7 real property? 7 McDermott?

8 A. No, sir. g A. That was before.

§ Q. So you have never had a house foreclosed on s Q. Do you know approximately how long before?
1t you in the past? 10 A. 1would say probably at least a month,
11 A. No. . 11 possibly two.
12 Q. Anyimmediate family members that you're 12 Q. Okay.
13 aware of that have had a foreclosure against them? 13 A. ltwasn't ~wasn't along, long time, but
14 A. No. 14 jt was a couple of months.
18 MR. SCHRIEVER: |don't have anything 15 Q. And on Exhiblt 2, your declaration says that
1s further. ‘ 16 your conversations with Alyssa McDermott were on
17 MS. KRAMER: | have just one or two 17 May 28th, 2018. So we're looking probably - those
18 questions. 18 documents probably sometime between February and
15 19 April; is that a good approximation?
20 EXAMINATION 20 A. Yeah.
21 BY MS. KRAMER: 21 MR. SCHRIEVER: All right. 1don't have
22 - Q. Daniel, do you have a recoliection of 22 anything further, :
23 telling me that your then partner had seen some 23 MR. VAN PATTEN: Do you guys have anything
24 notices on the door, but by the time you got home from 24 further?
25 work they had blown away? 25 MS. KRAMER: No.

Page 22 Page 24

1 A. Yes,|do. 1 MR. VAN PATTEN: | think we can conclude the
2 Q. Okay. 2 deposition. [ thank you for your time. Again, you'll
3 A. Those were the ones | was talking about that 3 have the opportunity to review the transcript when
4 were taped to the door. 4 jt's prepared,
3 Q. Ckay. So you never actually got to see 5 THE WITNESS: Okay.
6 those documents yourself? 6 {Whereupon the deposition concluded at 9:35 a.m.)
7 A. The ones that had blown away, no. Like | 7 ~000--
8 said, the only ones that ] actually got to see - and B
¢ these may have been them. [ don't know. It's been ]
10 over a year ago, you know, so | can’t tell you 10
11 100 percent yes or no that that was them. 11
12 Q. You don't know what the documents were that 12
13 were on the door, because they blew away? 13
14 A. Correct. 14
15 MS. KRAMER: Okay. Thats all | have. 15
16 . MR.VANPATTEN: If no one else has any 1¢
17 questions - 17
18 MR. SCHRIEVER: Just one follow up. 18
19 s ’ 15
20 FURTHER EXAMINATION: 20
21 BY MR, SCHRIEVER; : 21
22 Q. Do you know approximately when that was that 22
23 the documents were on the door that blew away? 23
24 A. No. ' 24
25 Q. Do you know what year? 25
Page 23 Page 25
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